BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Agenda For
June 25, 2025
Regular Meeting — 5:00 p.m.
30 Mansfield Road - Hollister, California 95023

Assistance for those with disabilities:
If you have a disability and need accommodation to participate in the meeting, please call Barbara Mauro, Board Clerk,
at (831) 637-8218, 48 hours prior to meeting for assistance so the necessary arrangements can be made.

Effective at the April 27, 2022, The Board of Directors is now allowing the public to attend in person at all meetings of
the San Benito County Water District Board. We will also continue to offer the meeting via Zoom as well. Regarding
virtual participation, members of the public are instructed to be on mute during the proceedings and to speak only
when public comment is allowed, after requesting and receiving recognition from the Board President.

ZOOM LINK
https:/ /us06web.zoom.us/i/83277408849?pwd=JIDOVREEeaEIVOhY6DrgQQisZ6nvEm. 1

Meeting ID
832 7740 8849

Passcode:
367198

Dial Only:
Dial by your location
*+1 669 444 9171 US
* +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
* +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
*+1 719 359 4580 US
e +1 720 707 2699 US (Denver)
e +1 253 205 0468 US

If you plan to participate in the meeting and need assistance, please call
Barbara Mauro, Board Clerk, at (831) 637-8218, 48 hours prior to meeting.

CALL TO ORDER

a. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

b. Roll Call

8 Speakers will be limited to 5 minutes to address the Board; rebuttal will
be limited to 3 minutes; no new business agenda items will be heard
after 8:00 p.m.

d. Approval of Agenda

e. Public Input: Members of the Public are Invited to Speak on any Matter
not on the Agenda




CONSENT AGENDA:

{Consent items shall be considered as a whole and without discussion unless a particular item is removed from the
consent agenda. Board member may discuss individual items or seek information from staff or legal counsel without
removing the item from the Consent Agenda. A member of the public should seek recognition by the President if comment
is desired. Approval of consent items shall be made by one motion.)

1.

Approval of Minutes for: Regular Meeting May 28, 2025
Special Meeting June 2, 2025

Allowance of Claims

Acknowledgement of Paid Claims prior to the June Board Meeting

On Call Contracts — Status Updates

Consider Resolution Adopting the 2025-2026 Salary Schedule to comply
with California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CALPERS)

statutory and regulatory requirements for compensation earnable and
publicly available pay schedules

REGULAR AGENDA

6.

Public Hearing to Consider Approval of Ordinance Establishing Capacity
Fees within the District’s Zone 6 Service Area (“Capacity Fee Ordinance”)

a. Presentation on Capacity Fees within the District’s Zone 6 Service
Area

b. Questions from Directors
o Open Public Hearing
d. Close Public Hearing or continue to a later date

e. Conduct Second Reading of Capacity Fee Ordinance and Approve
Capacity Fee Ordinance

f. Direct District Staff to File a Notice of Exemption under the
California Environmental Quality Act for the Capacity Fee
Ordinance

Board Discussion on the District’s Public Outreach Strategy

Staff Report on the San Benito Urban Area Water Supply and Treatment
Agreement



9. Committee /Agency Representative Reports:

a. San Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority (Tonascia/Jacobson)

b. Pajaro River Watershed Flood Prevention Authority
(Flores/Wright)

o Water Resources Association (Flores/Freeman)

Zone 6 Water Supply & Operations Committee (Tonascia/Wright)
10. Monthly Operations and Maintenance Report
11. General Manager’s Report:

Reach 1 Operations

o ®

Zone 3 Operations

Zone 6 Operations

a o

Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP)

San Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority Activities
City of San Juan Bautista Water Supply Plan

B F Sisk Dam Raise Project

5 ge ™o

. Miscellaneous District items

12. CLOSED SESSION:
Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated litigation
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) or (3) of
subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: One case

13.  Adjournment

Adjournment - Unless there is a special meeting prior to that time, the next regular meeting of the Board will be Wednesday, July 30,
2025. Meetings are held at the District office, 30 Mansfield Road, Hollister, California. LAST DAY TO FILE CLAIMS against the
District is the second Friday of each month, except in November and December. Usually meeting dates change in those months
because of holidays. The Board may hold a closed session to discuss personnel matters, litigation or employee negotiations as
authorized by the Ralph M. Brown Act, Evidence Code #950-962 or other appropriate State law.

All public records relating to an agenda item on this agenda are available for public inspection at the time the record is distributed to
all, or a majority of all, members of the Board. Such records shall be available at the District office located at 30 Mansfield Road,
Hollister, California.




l"

L ™
’5:"-‘."'.’,0 v.s 9
e TTTY LA ~d
S

ln.OLLIS'I"FX"“:»"b

pLTTERdkeeS

Agenda
Item
# 1



May 28, 2025
Regular Meeting
5:00 p.m.

The Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District convened in regular
session on Wednesday, May 28, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. at the San Benito County Water District office
at 30 Mansfield Road, Hollister, California. Members present were: President Doug Williams,
and Directors Sonny Flores, John Freeman and Joe Tonascia; Vice President Mark Wright was
absent. Also present were General Manager Dana Jacobson, District Counsel Jeremy T. Liem,
Assistant General Manager Brett Miller, Operations and Maintenance Manager Michael Craig,
Senior Engineer David Macdonald, Supervising Accountant Cindy Paine, Office Specialist 1
Shannon Darnall, Executive Assistant/Board Clerk Barbara Mauro and Jeff Cattaneo.

CALL TO ORDER
President Williams called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

a. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
President Williams led the Pledge of Allegiance.

b. Roll Call _
Mrs. Mauro called roll. Members present were: President Williams, and Directors Flores,
Freeman and Tonascia; Vice President Wright was absent.

c. Speakers will be limited to 5 minutes to address the Board; rebuttal will be limited
to 3 minutes; no new business agenda items will be heard after 8:00 p.m.

d. Approval of Agenda
With a motion by Director Flores and a second by Director Freeman, the Board approved
the Agenda with 4 affirmative votes, Williams, Flores, Freeman and Tonascia and there
was 1 absence, Wright.

e. Public Input: Members of the Public are Invited to Speak on any Matter not on the
Agenda
There were no public comments.

CONSENT AGENDA:

Approval of Minutes for: Regular Meeting April 30, 2025

Allowance of Claims

Acknowledgement of Paid Claims prior to the May Board Meeting

On Call Contracts — Status Updates

Consider Resolution for Salary and Compensation for the

Management/Confidential/Professional Employee Group

Consider Resolution regarding Salary and Compensation for the Executive

Management Group

7. Consider Resolution Adopting the 2024-2025 Salary Schedule to comply with
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CALPERS) statutory and
regulatory requirements for compensation earnable and publicly available pay
schedules

il

o

Regular Meeting Minutes, May 28, 2025



With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Flores, the Board approved the
Consent Agenda with 3 affirmative votes, Williams, Flores and Tonascia, 1 abstention, Freeman
and 1 absence, Wright.

REGULAR AGENDA

8.

10.

Recognizing David Macdonald for 10 Years of Service, Certificate Issued

Mr. Jacobson thanked Mr. Macdonald for his service and stated he is playing a key role
in the ADRoP Project and presented him with a plaque commemorating his service.
With a motion by Director Flores and a second by Director Tonascia, the Board of
Directors approved Recognizing David Macdonald for 10 Years of Service, with 4
affirmative votes, Williams, Flores, Freeman and Tonascia and there was 1 absence,
Wright.

Consider Approval of Ordinance Establishing Capacity Fees within the District’s
Zone 6 Service Area, First Reading

Mr. Miller reviewed this item for the Board. This fee would be for new service
connections in Zone 6, based on growth. The Board can choose to waive the 1* reading
and then the second reading can be at the June board meeting. Mr. Miller further stated
this item comes with the recommendation of the Finance Committee.

Director Flores stated the ordinance describes payment is to be made in 2 equal
installments. He suggested having the customer make 1 payment, at the time the permit
is issued.

Mr. Miller stated staff has no issue making that change, however; a special meeting
would need to be held as soon as feasible, to have the first reading of the revised
ordinance. Directors Freeman, Tonascia and Williams all agreed with Director Flores’
recommendation for 1 payment. The Board agreed to table this item and hold a special
meeting to consider the first reading.

Mr. Cattaneo asked Mr. Frink if the first reading can be held at a special meeting. Mr.
Frink stated yes, it can be considered at a Special Meeting, as long as it is noticed with 72
hours’ notice, to comply with the Brown Act. The first reading must occur at least 5 days
prior to the second reading and the second reading is scheduled to be held at the June 25,
2025 Board meeting, so that also complies. District Counsel asked if there were any
public comments; there were none. The Board agreed to have a special meeting next
week; Mrs. Mauro to poll the board and get the meeting scheduled.

2025-2026 District Budget

a. Presentation of 2025-2026 District Budget Mr. Miller, using a
PowerPoint presentation, gave an overview of the 2025-2026 Budget for
the Board. He stated this comes to the Board with a recommendation from
the Finance Committee and the Board’s action would be to approve the
budget. Mr. Miller began by reviewing the Operating Budget, first by
Zone and then by category. He then reviewed the Capital Budget and
explained the projects contained in the Capital Budget. Discussion ensued
about the eye wash station at the West Hills Water Treatment Plant. Mr.
Jacobson added staff is looking at this item and reviewing the cost.

Regular Meeting Minutes, May 28, 2025



11.

12.

13.

b. Consider Board Approval of 2025-2026 District Budget
With no further questions from the Board, a motion was made by Director
Freeman and seconded by Director Tonascia; the Board of Directors
approved the 2025-2026 District Budget with 4 affirmative votes,
Williams, Flores, Freeman and Tonascia and there was 1 absence, Wright.

Consider Amending Resolution 2024-33 Regarding the District Policy on Restriction
and Designation of District Net Assets/Cash ’

Mr. Miller reviewed this item for the Board and stated it is part of the budget process.
The only change is in the reserve for expenses for the Operating Budget. Currently, the
reserve is for 50% of 3 years of expenses. Because the District has a single revenue
source, unlike a city or county, staff is recommending raising the reserve to 100% but
phasing it in over 3 years. Director Flores asked what a ballpark amount would be. Mr.
Miller stated if at 100%, $4-5 million, which would be held in an interest-bearing
account.

With no further questions, a motion was made by Director Flores and seconded by
Director Freeman; the Board of Directors approved Resolution # 2025-12 4 Resolution of
the Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District Amending Resolution
#2024-33 Regarding the District Policy on Restriction and Designation of District Net
Assets/Cash with 4 affirmative votes, Williams, Flores, Freeman and Tonascia and there
was 1 absence, Wright.

Consider Authorizing the Board President to Execute the San Luis & Delta-
Mendota Water Authority Yuba Transfers 2026-2050 Activity Agreement and
Authorizing the General Manager to Terminate the Existing Activity Agreement
Mr. Jacobson reviewed this item for the Board. He summarized the current agreement
and reported this agreement has worked well for the District in the past. It includes
administrative costs which are in addition to the cost of the water, which is below market
rates. The new agreement, per Mr. Jacobson, is still being negotiated for the amount of
water and its cost. The District will still have the option to opt in or out annually to
purchase the water, but the administrative costs would remain. If DWR and Yuba cannot
make it work out, the Board could withdraw from the agreement, if they chose to.

With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Flores, the Board of
Directors Authorized the Board President to Execute the San Luis & Delta-Mendota
Water Authority Yuba Transfers 2026-2050 Activity Agreement and Authorized the
General Manager to Terminate the Existing Activity Agreement with 4 affirmative votes,
Williams, Flores, Freeman and Tonascia and there was 1 absence, Wright.

Lessalt Water Treatment Plant

a. Consider Awarding a Contract to SafeSmart LLC in the Amount of
$56,736 for Materials for Tank Access Catwalks at the Lessalt Water
Treatment Plant

Regular Meeting Minutes, May 28, 2025



14.

Mr. Macdonald reviewed this item for the Board. When Sunnyslope
County Water District staff are doing maintenance on the tanks, the
current way presents a safety issue for them. This would be a permanent
structure and there is $105,000 in the budget for this item. Sunnyslope
sent out two Request for Quotes; one for the materials only and one for the
installation of the catwalks. This item is for the materials. SafeSmart was
the low bid at $56,736. Mr. Macdonald stated this would be a part of the
maintenance agreement the District has with Sunnyslope County Water
District.

With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Freeman,
the Board of Directors Awarded a Contract to SafeSmart LLC in the
Amount of $56,736 for Materials for Tank Access Catwalks at the Lessalt
Water Treatment Plant with 4 affirmative votes, Williams, Flores,
Freeman and Tonascia and there was 1 absence, Wright.

b. Consider Approval for Sunnyslope County Water District to perform
Construction of the Tank Access Catwalks at the Lessalt Water
Treatment Plant (NTE $22,400)

Mr. Macdonald also reviewed this item. This is for the installation of the
catwalks. There were no responses received for the RFQ, so Sunnyslope
County Water District proposed installing the catwalks with their staff.
Mr. Liem stated the correct amount is $22,440.

With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Freeman,
the Board of Directors Approved for Sunnyslope County Water District to
perform Construction of the Tank Access Catwalks at the Lessalt Water
Treatment Plant (NTE $22,440) with 4 affirmative votes, Williams,
Flores, Freeman and Tonascia and there was 1 absence, Wright.

(For agenda items #14 and #15, Director Williams recused himself and Director
Tonascia ran the meeting for these two items)

Consider Awarding a Contract to Pacific Coast Well Drilling, Inc. for the North San
Benito Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP) for Aquifer Storage and
Recovery (ASR) Well 2, 4 and Optional Well 1 Construction and Authorize General
Manager to execute all necessary documents (NTE § 3,701,922)

Mr. Macdonald reviewed this item for the Board. When the District has excess water, it
could be stored in an ASR well. The District went out to bid for drilling 2 wells and 1
additional well, in the Fallon Road area. The bids received were competitive and below
the engineer’s estimate. There was a wrong number on all the bids and the not to exceed
number has been updated. Mr. Macdonald added the bid from Pacific Coast Well
Drilling, Inc. is 15% below the engineer’s estimate. Staff is recommending the Board
approve both contracts (#14 & #15) and begin by drilling one well, testing it and then
proceeding to the other wells once everyone is satisfied with how the first one is
performing.

Mr. Jacobson added the $3,701,922 is the correct number,

Regular Meeting Minutes, May 28, 2025



15.

16.

Director Tonascia asked why there are two different numbers on the transmittal. Mr.
Macdonald stated the higher number includes the 5% contingency amount.

Director Freeman asked, if only 2 wells are drilled, where do the additional funds go?
Mr. Miller stated, back to our reserves. Mr. Macdonald added, agenda items #14 and #15
are similar.

With a motion by Director Flores and a second by Director Freeman, the Board of
Directors Awarded a Contract to Pacific Coast Well Drilling, Inc. for the North San
Benito Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP) for Aquifer Storage and
Recovery (ASR) Well 2, 4 and Optional Well 1 Construction and Authorized the General
Manager to execute all necessary documents (NTE §$ 3,701,922) with 3 affirmative
votes, Flores, Freeman and Tonascia, 1 recused, Williams and 1 absence, Wright.

Consider Awarding a Contract to Pacific Coast Well Drilling for the North San
Benito Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP) for Aquifer Storage and
Recovery (ASR) Well 3, 5 and Optional Well 1 Construction and Authorize General
Manager to execute all necessary documents

(NTE $3,762,822)

Mr. Macdonald also reviewed this for the Board. He stated this is similar to #14, but the
contractor will delay starting this until all are satisfied when the first well is drilled and
tested. The low bidder on this bid is also Pacific Coast Well Drilling and the bid was
13% below the engineer’s estimate.

Director Tonascia asked why this contract is higher. Mr. Macdonald stated it is because
of the location of the well and possible sound mitigation during drilling. Mr. Cattaneo
added, one of the wells would be between 2 homes and a temporary pipe would need to
be laid so the water could go to the drainage ditch.

With a motion by Director Flores and a second by Director Freeman, the Board of
Directors Awarded a Contract to Pacific Coast Well Drilling for the North San Benito
Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP) for Aquifer Storage and Recovery
(ASR) Well 3, 5 and Optional Well 1 Construction and Authorized the General Manager
to execute all necessary documents (NTE $3,762,822) with 3 affirmative votes, Flores,
Freeman and Tonascia, 1 recused, Williams and 1 absence, Wright.

(Following the votes on agenda items #14 and #15, Director Williams returned to the
meeting)

Consider Authorizing the General Manager to Execute a Contract with
Kennedy/Jenks Inc. Consultants for Construction Management Services related to
Phase 2 of the Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP) (NTE $2,388,128)
Mr. Cattaneo reviewed this item for the Board. He stated Kennedy/Jenks is the current
construction manager on the West Hills expansion project. Staff is recommending the
Board have Kennedy/Jenks continue on Phase 2 of the ADRoP Project. The other option
would be to have the design engineer (HDR) do the construction management, but to
prevent a possible conflict of interest, staff is more comfortable having another firm
manage a project that they didn’t also design.

Regular Meeting Minutes, May 28, 2025



17.

18.

19.

With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Flores, the Board of
Directors Authorized the General Manager to Execute a Contract with Kennedy/Jenks
Inc. Consultants for Construction Management Services related to Phase 2 of the
Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP) (NTE $2,388,128) with 4 affirmative
votes, Williams, Flores, Freeman and Tonascia and there was 1 absence, Wright.

Consider Authorizing the General Manager to Execute a Contract with Todd
Groundwater for Professional Services associated with the Accelerated Drought
Response Project (ADRoP) Well Construction, Fallon Road (NTE $472,540)

Mr. Cattaneo reviewed this item for the Board. He stated this is also related to the
ADROP Project. Approved earlier in the meeting, the District needs someone to manage
the well drilling contracts. Todd Groundwater developed the project and would be able
to work with the drillers, collect and test samples and review the well pump testing.

With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Freeman, the Board of
Directors Authorized the General Manager to Execute a Contract with Todd Groundwater
for Professional Services associated with the Accelerated Drought Response Project
(ADRoP) Well Construction, Fallon Road (NTE $472,540) with 4 affirmative votes,
Williams, Flores, Freeman and Tonascia and there was 1 absence, Wright.

Consider Resolution for the San Benito County Water District, Acting as the
Groundwater Sustainability Agency for the North San Benito Groundwater Basin,
Requesting the County of San Benito to Collect a Groundwater Management Fee on
the Property Tax Rolls

Mr. Miller reviewed this item for the Board. He stated this is an annual action by the
Board to have San Benito County add the Groundwater Management Fee (GMF) to the
property tax rolls. There are 3166 parcels, and the total is $471,432; which is an
estimate, and the final number will be sent to the County. Mr. Miller added, this comes
with a recommendation from the Finance Committee.

With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Flores, the Board of
Directors approved Resolution #2025-13, 4 Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
San Benito County Water District, Acting as the Groundwater Sustainability Agency for
the North San Benito Groundwater Basin, Requesting the County of San Benito to Collect
a Groundwater Management Fee on the Property Tax Rolls with 4 affirmative votes,
Williams, Flores, Freeman and Tonascia and there was 1 absence, Wright.

Committee/Agency Representative Reports:
a. San Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority (Tonascia/Jacobson)
As per Director Tonascia, Mr. Jacobson can cover under his manager’s report.

b. Water Resources Association (Flores/Freeman)
As per Director Flores, general business was discussed.

c. Association of California Water Agencies—Joint Powers Insurance
Authority, Spring Conference/Board of Directors Meeting, Monterey,
California (Freeman)

As per Mr. Miller, the primary activity was electing new board members.

Regular Meeting Minutes, May 28, 2025



d. Association of California Water Agencies—Spring Conference,
Monterey, California (Freeman, Tonascia, Jacobson, Miller)
As per Director Freeman, he found the conference and seminars very interesting
and expressed interest in becoming a member of the Energy Committee and the
Water Quality Committee. Director Tonascia is a member of the Ag Committee,
which he attended. Topics discussed at the conference were the mussels and how
to comply with the electric vehicle mandate. Mr. Jacobson found the conference
to be good and a great way to make connections.

e. Finance Committee (Williams*/Freeman)
As per Directors Freeman and Williams, this has already been covered.

f. Zone 6 Water Supply & Operations Committee (Williams*/Wright)
As per Directors Williams and Wright, this has already been covered.

20. Monthly Operations and Maintenance Report
Mr. Craig reported San Justo is currently at 484.5° and the District is operating off
reverse flow until June 9" or 10%. Valley Water is doing electrical and cement work, but
it will be done the first week of June. Hernandez and Paicines Reservoirs are both at
dead pool, as all water has been released. District staff is currently mowing at both
Paicines and Hernandez. The Department of Safety of Dams (DSOD) did their annual
inspections at Hernandez and Paicines and had high praise for the valves working at
Hernandez. Both inspections went well. District staff repaired 4 leaks this month and the
2 16” clay valves arrived today, and he will work on scheduling their installation.

21. General Manager’s Report:
a. Reach 1 Operations
Mr. Jacobson reported a meeting was held with Valley Water regarding the Pacheco
Pumping Plant.

b. Zone 3 Operations
Mr. Jacobson reported Mr. Craig covered everything in Zone 3.

c. Zone 6 Operations
Mr. Jacobson reported the Bureau increased the Ag allocation to 55% and the M & 1
allocation to 80%. He further reported the District will be able to refill San Justo
Reservoir, San Luis Reservoir (our portion) and percolate.

d. Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP)
Mr. Jacobson reported the project is moving along, Work has begun at West Hills,
but the wait continues for the final permit. Regarding the two well contracts
approved earlier, work should begin in early July and easements should be on the
June agenda. Mr. Jacobson reported staff is working to schedule a meeting at the
Epicenter downtown to offer the public information on the project; likely in late June
or early July.

Regular Meeting Minutes, May 28, 2025



22.

23.

24,

25.

e. San Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority Activities
Mr. Jacobson reported at the May 8™ meeting, the hot topic was the Subsidence
Project as there is a cost allocation and conveyance issue.

f. City of San Juan Bautista Water Supply Plan
Mr. Jacobson reported staff is working on a series of agreements. The Water Supply
and Treatment Agreement is nearing completion. There will also be a reimbursement
agreement to build the turnout at West Hills WTP and then an O & M Agreement for
the District to maintain the pipeline.

g. B F Sisk Dam Raise Project
Mr. Jacobson reported they are still working on the agreement with the Bureau.

h. Miscellaneous District items
Mr. Miller reported last Monday, he and Mrs. Paine attended a meeting where the
underwriter issued our bonds for $37 million, which will be available in June. Mr.
Miller thanked staff and the Board for all the work to get this completed.

CLOSED SESSION: Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing litigation
Government Code § 54956.9(d)(1)
Kurasaki vs. Caltrans et al; San Benito County

CLOSED SESSION: Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated litigation
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) or (3) of subdivision (d)
of Section 54956.9: one case

(The Board convened in Closed Session at 6:23 p.m.)

OPEN SESSION:
Report any actions, if any, from Closed Session item

(The Board reconvened in Open Session at 7:08 p.m.)

President Williams called the meeting back into Open Session and stated there was no
action to report on either Closed Session items.

Adjournment
With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 7:09 p.m.

Doug Williams, President

Barbara L. Mauro, Executive Assistant/Board Clerk

Regular Meeting Minutes, May 28, 2025



June 2, 2025
Special Meeting
5:00 p.m.

The Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District convened in special

session on Monday, June 2, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. at the San Benito County Water District office at
30 Mansfield Road, Hollister, California. Members present were: President Doug Williams, Vice
President Mark Wright and Directors Sonny Flores, John Freeman and Joe Tonascia. Also
present were General Manager Dana Jacobson, District Counsel Jeremy T. Liem, Assistant
General Manager Brett Miller, and Executive Assistant/Board Clerk Barbara Mauro. Jeff
Cattaneo participated via Zoom.

CALL TO ORDER

President Williams called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

a. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
President Williams led the Pledge of Allegiance.
b. Roll Call
Mrs. Mauro called roll. Members present were: President Williams, Vice President
Wright and Directors Flores, Freeman and Tonascia.
c. Approval of the Agenda
With a motion by Director Flores and a second by Director Tonascia, the Board approved
the Agenda with 5 affirmative votes, Williams, Wright, Flores, Freeman and Tonascia.
d. Speakers will be limited to S minutes to address the Board
There were no public comments.
AGENDA ITEMS:
1. Consider Approval of Ordinance Establishing Capacity Fees within the

District’s Zone 6 Service Area, First Reading

Mr. Miller reviewed this item for the Board. At our last board meeting on May 28", the
Board asked that the payment structure for the capacity fee be revised. The wording has
now been changed to have the payment paid in full when the permit is pulled. (The
Board waived the reading of the Ordinance) The Board’s action would be to approve the
1 reading and agree to have the 2" reading and approval at the June 25, 2025 Board
meeting. If there are any questions Russ Frink, from Kronick, Moscovitz, Tiedemann
and Girard, is participating via Zoom.

With no questions from the Board, a motion was made by Director Freeman and
seconded by Director Flores, the Board of Directors approved the first reading of the
Ordinance Establishing Capacity Fees within the District’s Zone 6 Service Area with 5
affirmative votes, Williams, Wright, Flores, Freeman and Tonascia.

Special Meeting Minutes, June 2, 2025



2. Consider Approval of Four Well, Pumping Plant, and Easement Agreements for the
Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP), and Authorize the General
Manager to Sign
a. 1490 Fallon Road
b. 880 Fallon Road
¢. 350 Scagliotti Road
d. E/L Scagliotti Road & S/L Fallon Road

Mr. Cattaneo reviewed this item for the Board. He reviewed the properties and
easements and stated how the payment for the easements were based on the value. The
easements for the well sites, including access, will be permanent. There will also be
temporary easements for construction, likely for 18 months. Mr. Cattaneo, using a map
of the area, explained how the wells would be drilled and where. There will be a slight
change from what is being presented tonight.

Discussion ensued about if the District is ready to drill two wells, how will it affect the
project if a new ag well is needed by the property owners. Mr. Cattaneo stated it would
have no effect, as long as the Ag well is away from the ASR, there would be no
limitations. A few years ago, the state tried to implement changes to well locations, but
due to the opposition it received, it never went through.

Director Freeman asked if the District had considered leasing out space in with the
pipeline, such as a fiber optic line, to help with the overall costs. Mr. Cattaneo stated no,
the pipeline is in the road, so the right of way authority belongs to the City of Hollister
and San Benito County.

With no further questions, a motion was made by Director Tonascia and seconded by
Director Flores, the Board of Directors Approved of Four Well, Pumping Plant, and
Easement Agreements for the Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP), and
Authorized the General Manager to Sign; a. 1490 Fallon Road; b. 880 Fallon Road; c.
350 Scagliotti Road; d. E/L Scagliotti Road & S/L Fallon Road; with 4 affirmative votes,
Wright, Flores, Freeman and Tonascia and 1 recused, Williams.

ADJOURNMENT
With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 5:13 p.m.

Doug Williams, President

Barbara L. Mauro, Executive Assistant/Board Clerk

Special Meeting Minutes, June 2, 2025



\‘\\\\\\\\\\‘
)

SOUNTY pt

§ pudeeg, 4 ."'
..:' &0 .u'..i:q“\n USHEE,‘.."Q‘? "('
:*‘? .'og.')’
! T YN
Selh s N & : E‘
y s Z
-t : ’
u..:‘rﬂvi 3, \95?...‘ ..‘:
Rl LTI A CJ §
<

# 2
CLAIMS



A i
ﬁngﬁf;*&% Check Register

FO P Gy
£57 %% San Benito County Water District Packet: APPKTO0006 - BD062525

'y &

Y, ~g
%‘:,,“@;2@?',‘;%“& j By Check Number

T

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount  Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP-Accounts Payable
000018 A-1 Services 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 972.00 60000
000081 Alan Zeisbrich 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 2,647.50 60001
000415 Before the Movie Inc 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 438.00 60002
000561 Brigantino Irrigation 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 15,776.73 60003
000742 Central Ag Supply LLC 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 233.56 60004
000869 Cintas Corporation 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 625.84 60005
000964 Cupertino Marketing 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 800.00 60006
001041 Dassel's Petroleum Inc 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 148.96 60007
001043 Dataflow Business Systems Inc 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 397.28 60008
001264 Don Chapin Company Inc 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 220.00 60009
001375 Edges Electrical Group 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 626.74 60010
001409 ELC Consulting 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 8,731.55 60011
001553 Fastenal Company 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 216.79 60012
001651 Fresno Valves & Castings, Inc. 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 7,635.78 60013
001813 GRAINGER 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 459.57 60014
001821 Green Valley Farm Supply Inc 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 365.24 60015
001850 Grossmayer & Associates 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 290.00 60016
001866 Gutierrez Consultants 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 4,970.00 60017
001901 HDR Engineering Inc 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 647,876.96 60018
001949 Hoflister Auto Parts Inc 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 42411 60019
001968 Hollister True Value Inc. 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 57.85 60020
001988 ICONIX Waterworks Inc 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 87,913.97 60021
001997 Independent Business Forms Inc ~ 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 86.70 60022
002405 John Smith Landfill 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 716.98 60023
002423 johnson Lumber Company 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 770.88 60024
002699 Kennedy/Jenks Consultants Inc. 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 50,340.89 60025
002766 Kronick, Moskovitz, Tiedemann & Gir 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 86,095.38 60026
002783 Landscape Design by Rosemary Brid 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 300.00 60027
003010 Maggiora Brothers Drilling 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 2,610.00 60028
003247 McKinnon Lumber, Inc. 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 214.50 60029
003249 McMaster-Carr Supply Co 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 286.23 60030
003399 Mission Village Voice Media LLC 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 530.00 60031
003592 palace Business Solutions 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 475.80 60032
003614 pat Davis Design Group, Inc. 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 95000 60033
003796 Raftelis 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 1,106.25 60034
004218 $.J. Electro Systems, Inc. 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 46,297.80 60035
004332 SBC Chamber of Commerce 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 1,850.00 60036
004364 Sentry Alarm Systems 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 370.00 60037
004422 Shred-it 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 259.93 60038
004456 Spurzem & Liem LLP 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 8,475.00 60039
004554 Sunnyslope County Water District ~ 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 431,415.54 60040
004728 Todd Groundwater 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 19,420.77 60041
004771 Toro Petroleum Corporation 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 3,934.16 60042
004807 Tyler Technologies 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 8,471.24 60043
004808 U S Bureau of Reclamation 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 971,075.77 60044
004810 U.S. Bank Corporation 06/25/2025 Regular 0.00 13,748.33 60045

6/20/2025 8:50:47 AM Page 1 of 4



Check Register
Vendor Number Vendor Name
004854 Verdant Commercial Capital LLC

Payment Type
Regular Checks
Manual Checks
Voided Checks
Bank Drafts
EFT's

Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount
06/25/2025 Regular 0.00
Bank Code AP Summary
Payable Payment

Count Count Discount Payment

106 47 0.00 2,431,870.39

0 0 0.00 0.00

0 0 0.00 0.00

0 0 0.00 0.00

[¢] 0 0.00 0.00

106 47 0.00 2,431,870.39

Packet: APPKT00006-BD062525

Payment Amount Number
239.81 60046

§/20/2025 9:50:47 AM

Page 2 of 4



Check Register Packet: APPKT00006-BD062525

Fund Summary

Fund Name Period Amount

939 Pooled Cash 6/2025 2,431,870.39
2,431,870.39

6/20/2025 9:50:47 AM Page 3 of 4



Check Register Packet: APPKT00006-BD062525

Authorization Signatures

Board Claims Approval

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF SAN BENITO

| DO HEREBY CERTIFY, UNDER THE PENALTY OF PERJURY AT HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA, THAT THE FOREGOING DEMANDS ENUMERATED HAVE BEEN AUDITED; THAT THE SAME
ARE TURATE AND NJST CLAIMS AGAINST THE DISTRICT; AND THAT THERE ARE FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR PAYMENT.

ONEN

~
Dana Jacobson, General Manager

Cincllﬁ Pa’pne, Svup. Acco untrant

Doug Williams, Board President

6/20/2025 9:50:47 AM Page 4 of 4



SOOI e Payable Regist
o s Ve, yable Register
it 37?3% San Benito County Water District Payable Detail by Vendor Name
%%2 §§§ Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525
U iin s E
R
Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Payable Description Bank Code On Hold
Vendor: 000018 - A-1 Services Vendor Total: 972.00
5038 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/2/2025 6/2/2025 6/2/2025 972.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 972.00
Janitorial Services AP - Accounts Payable No
ltems )
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
June Service NA 0.00 0.00 540.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 540.00
Distributions o . )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
100-62750-0000-06 CS-Maintenance-GA 54.00 10.00%
300-62750-0000-06 CS-Maintenance 27.00 5.00%
600-62750-0000-06 CS-Maintenance-GA 459.00 85.00%
items ) ) ] : : o
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
5/2, 5/16, 5/30 -10 Mansfield NA 0.00 0.00 432.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 432.00
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
100-62750-0000-06 CS-Maintenance-GA 43.20 10.00%
300-62750-0000-06 CS-Maintenance 21.60 5.00%
600-62750-0000-06 CS-Maintenance-GA 367.20 85.00%
Vendor: 000081 - Alan Zeisbrich Vendor Total: 2,647.50
5:202% invoice 6/25/2025  6/2/2025 6/2/2025 6/2/2025 1,667.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,667.50
Contract Services AP - Accounts Payable No
items . )
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
5/1-5/31 Asset mgmt NA 0.00 0.00 120.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 120.75
Distributions ) ) ; ) . . ) . )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
300-62700-0000-03 CS-Operations-SSO 120.75 100.00%
Items
ftem Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
5/1-5/31 Asset mgmt NA 0.00 0.00 1,086.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,086.75
Distributions B o ) ) . L )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-62700-0000-03 CS-Operations-TO 1,086.75 100.00%
ltems e T , , e .
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
5/1-5/31 Asset mgmt NA 0.00 0.00 230.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 230.00
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
B800-62700-0602-01 CS Operations - Lessalt WTP 230.00 100.00%
items -
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
5/1-5/31 Asset mgmt NA 0.00 0.00 230.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 230.00
Distributions ‘ e e ; ‘ , ‘
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
B00-62700-0603-01 CS Operations - West Hills WTP 230.00 100.00%
5.2025P Invoice 6/25/2025  6/2/2025 6/2/2025 6/2/2025 980.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 580.00
Contract Services AP - Accounts Payable No

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

pPage 1 of 28



Payable Register

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Payable Description Bank Code On Hold
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
5/1-5/31/25 Pacheco SBCWD NA 0.00 0.00 215.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 215.60
Distributions B ) ) o
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-15030-0158-07 Reach 1 Capital Improvement Proje... 215.60 100.00%
items ) ) )
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
5/1-5/31/25 Pacheco SCVWD NA 0.00 0.00 764.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 764.40
Distributions )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-15030-0158-07 Reach 1 Capital improvement Proje... 764.40 100.00%
Vendor: 000415 - Before the Movie Inc Vendor Total: 438.00
54216 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/1/2025 6/1/2025 6/1/2025 438.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 438.00
On-Screen Ad AP - Accounts Payable No
Items
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
6/1-7/1/25 Water conservation NA 0.00 0.00 438.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 438.00
Distributions e ) N
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
803-68650-0000-D1 Advertising/Public Info {P1) 438.00 100.00%
Vendor: 000561 - Brigantino levigation Vendor Total: 15,776.73
220000107868 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/12/2025  5/12/2025  5/12/2025 45.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 45.92
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
items . . )
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Galv nipple 2" x 24" NA 0.00 0.00 45.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 45.92
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63208-0000-03 Supplies-TM 45.92 100.00%
220000108859 Invoice 6/25/2025 5/27/2025 5/27/2025 5/27/2025 1,484.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,484.75
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
Items ) ) )
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Sub 7 -crack back 4" repair coupler (4) NA 0.00 0.00 1,484.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,484.75
Distributions . o . ) -
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63200-0820-03 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks 1,484.75 100.00%
22 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/28/2025  5/28/2025  5/28/2025 8,526.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,526.79
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
Items
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
4" (2) & 6" (4) Butterfly valves NA 0.00 0.00 8,526.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,526.79
Distributions . . . e .
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63208-0000-03 Supplies-TM 8,526.79 100.00%
220000110233 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/29/2025  5/29/2025  5/29/2025 90.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 90.11
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
Items ) . . . . . .
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
3" Delivery repair -flange, blue tape {2)  NA 0.00 0.00 90.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 90.11
Distributions R e I
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
£00-63208-0000-03 Supplies-TM 90.11 100.00%

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page 2 of 29



Payable Register

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Bank Code On Hold
Invoice 6/25/2025  6/2/2025 6/2/2025 6/2/2025 3,826.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,826.20
AP - Accounts Payable No
items . - ) .
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Spring Grove repair -8" repair coupler, s... NA 0.00 0.00 3,826.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,826.20
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-62750-0820-03 CS Maintenance TDM-Subsystem B... 3,826.20 100.00%
220000110671 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/2/2025 6/2/2025 6/2/2025 49.32 0.00 0.00 0.00 43.32
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
items )
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
3" Fittings {2) NA 0.00 0.00 49.32 0.00 0.00 0.00 49.32
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63208-0000-03 Supplies-TM 49.32 100.00%
220000110789 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/3/2025 6/3/2025 6/3/2025 1,598.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,598.50
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
items . ) ) ) )
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Fairview Rd leak -4" repair coupler (4) NA 0.00 0.00 1,598.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,598.50
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63200-0920-03 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks 1,598.50 100.00%
220000111679 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/10/2025  6/10/2025  6/10/2025 155.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 155.14
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Liquid filled pressure gauges (10) NA 0.00 0.00 155.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 155.14
Distributions B )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63208-0000-03 Supplies-TM 155.14 100.00%
Vendor: (00742 - Central Ag Supply LLC Vendor Total: 233.56
1-9748 invoice 6/25/2025  5/30/2025  5/30/2025  5/30/2025 233.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 233.56
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
ltems « ; , e « « . , e
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Blue marking paint NA 0.00 0.00 233.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 233.56
Distributions ) )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63208-0000-03 Supplies-TM 233.56 100.00%
Vendor: Q00869 - Cintas Corporation Vendor Total: 625.84
4231830598 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/28/2025  5/28/2025  5/28/2025 156.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 156.46
Weekly Service AP - Accounts Payable No
items . -
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Mats and shop towels NA 0.00 0.00 156.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 156.46
Distributions ) . . -
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
CS-Maintenance-GA 15.65 10.00%
CS-Maintenance 7.82 5.00%
CS-Maintenance-GA 132.99 85.00%

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page 3 of 29



Payable Register

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Payable Description Bank Code On Hold
4232563656 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/3/2025 6/3/2025 6/3/2025 156.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 156.46
Weekly invoice AP - Accounts Payable No
Items
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Mats and shop towels NA 0.00 0.00 156.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 156.46
Distributions o o
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
100-6275G-0000-06 CS-Maintenance-GA 15.65 10.00%
300-62250-0000-06 CS-Maintenance 7.82 5.00%
B00-62750-0000-06 CS-Maintenance-GA 132.99 85.00%
4233323725 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/10/2025  6/10/2025  6/10/2025 156.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 156.46
Weekly invoice AP - Accounts Payable No
items
ftem Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Mats and shop towels NA 0.00 0.00 156.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 156.46
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
100-62750-0000-06 CS-Maintenance-GA 15.65 10.00%
300-52750-0000-05 CS-Maintenance 7.82 5.00%
600-62750-0000-06 CS-Maintenance-GA 132.99 85.00%
4234030758 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/17/2025  6/17/2025  6/17/2025 156.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 156.46
Weekly invoice AP - Accounts Payable No
items ; . . ) )
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Mats and shop towels NA 0.00 0.00 156.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 156.46
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
100-62750-0000-06 CS-Maintenance-GA 15.65 10.00%
300-62750-0000-06 CS-Maintenance 7.82 5.00%
600-62750-0000-06 CS-Maintenance-GA 132.99 85.00%
Vendor: 000964 - Cupertino Marketing Vendor Total: 800.00
1463 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/12/2025  6/12/2025  6/12/2025 400.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 400.00
Social Media Ads AP - Accounts Payable No
items . ; ; . o B , e
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Turf removal ads -May 2025 NA 0.00 0.00 400.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 400.00
Distributions )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
B03-6RE50-0000-D Advertising/Public Info (PI) 400.00 100.00%
1464 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/12/2025  6/12/2025  6/12/2025 400.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 400.00
Social Media Ads AP - Accounts Payable No
ltems . . . I . e
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Turf removal ads - June 2025 NA 0.00 0.00 400.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 400.00
Distributions . . ) — »
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
803-68650-0000-D1 Advertising/Public Info (PI} 400.00 100.00%
Vendor: $01041 - Dassel's Petroleum Ing Vendor Total: 148.96
4779 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/22/2025  5/22/2025  5/22/2025 148.96 0.00 0.00 .00 148.96
Vehicle Fuel Bill AP - Accounts Payable No
6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM Page 4 of 29



Payable Register

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Payable Description Bank Code On Hold
items - " . .
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Fuel -truck #24 NA 0.00 0.00 148.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 148.96
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-64650-0000-06 Vehicle Fuel-GA 148.96 100.00%
Vendor: 001043 - Dataflow Business Svstems Ing Vendor Total: 397.28
424258 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/5/2025 6/5/2025 6/5/2025 397.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 397.28
Copier Lease AP - Accounts Payable No
items
Item Description Commaodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Overage 5/5/25 - 6/4/25 NA 0.00 0.00 397.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 397.28
Distributions B
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
100-62750-0000-06 CS-Maintenance-GA 39.73 10.00%
300-62750-0000-06 CS-Maintenance 19.86 5.00%
600-62750-0000-06 CS-Maintenance-GA 337.69 85.00%
Vendor: 001264 - Don Chapin Company Ing Vendor Total: 220.00
195366 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/15/2025  5/15/2025  5/15/2025 110.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 110.96
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
items
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Sub 6 leak -concrete sand NA 0.00 0.00 110.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 110.96
Distributions o }
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63200-0920-03 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks 110.96 100.00%
196508 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/4/2025 6/4/2025 6/4/2025 109.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 10s.04
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
Items
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Spring Grove leak -3/4" class |l recycle AB NA 0.00 0.00 109.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 109.04
Distributions )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63200-0604-03 Supplies - RWP TM 109.04 100.00%
Vendor: 001375 - Edges Electrical Group Vendor Total: 626.74
56455107.001 invoice 6/25/2025  6/2/2025 6/2/2025 6/2/2025 121.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 121.79
Electrical Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
Items
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
LED lights (10), locking plug NA 0.00 0.00 121.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 121.79
Distributions » ) o
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
Supplies-GA 121.79 100.00%
56455107.002 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/6/2025 6/6/2025 6/6/2025 94.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 94.73
Electrical Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
items . . . T .
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Freight -invoice $6455107.001 NA 0.00 0.00 94.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 94.73
Distributions ) .
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63200-0000-02 Supplies-GA 94.73 100.00%
$6455107.903 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/9/2025 6/9/2025 6/9/2025 410.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 410.22
Electrical Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page 5 of 29



Payable Register

Packet: APPKTO0004 - BD062525

Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Payable Description Bank Code On Hold
items . B : . : . R ——
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
U-Bend LED lights (24) NA 0.00 0.00 410.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 410.22
Distributions ] ) )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63208-0000-02 Supplies-TM 410.22 100.00%
Vendor: 001409 - ELC Consulting Vendor Total: 8,731.55
10391 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/1/2025 6/1/2025 6/1/2025 6,897.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,897.00
Monthly Service Agreement AP - Accounts Payable No
items
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
June -District NA 0.00 0.00 6,597.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,587.00
Distributions . . . .
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
100-62750-0000-08 CS-Maintenance-GA 659.70 10.00%
300-62750-0000-06 CS-Maintenance 329.85 5.00%
600-62750-0000-06 CS-Maintenance-GA 5,607.45 85.00%
Items ) o
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
June -Scada NA 0.00 0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 300.00
Distributions o ) ) -
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
£00-62600-0000-06 CS-Computer-GA 300.00 100.00%
10392 invoice 6/25/2025  6/1/2025 6/1/2025 6/1/2025 1,480.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,480.00
Monthly Service Agreement AP - Accounts Payable No
ltems . . . . . .
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
June 2025 NA 0.00 0.00 690.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 690.00
Distributions R B
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-62600-0602-01 CS Computer - Lessalt WTP 690.00 100.00%
items . . . N . . B
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
June 2025 NA 0.00 0.00 790.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 780.00
Distributions . o . e . R
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-62600-0603-01 CS Computer - West Hills WTP 790.00 100.00%
10393 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/1/2025 6/1/2025 6/1/2025 100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
Monthly Service Agreement AP - Accounts Payable No
Items
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
June 2025 NA 0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
Distributions L : .
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
803-62600-0000-D1 CS - Computers 100.00 100.00%
10425 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/17/2025  6/17/2025  6/17/2025 254.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 254.55
Computer Upgrade/Storage AP - Accounts Payable No
Items .
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
2 TB SSD drive, 8 GB Dell memory upgra.. NA 0.00 0.00 254.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 254.55
Distributions ) . i - .
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
CS-Computer-GA 254,55 100.00%
Vendor Total: 216.79

Vendor: (01553 - Fastenal Company

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page 6 of 29



Payable Register

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Payable Description Bank Code On Hold
Invoice 6/25/2025 5/22/2025 5/22/2025 5/22/2025 98.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 98.50
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
Items )
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Nuts & bolts bin restock NA 0.00 0.00 98.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 98.50
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
; Supplies-TM 98.50 100.00%
invoice 6/25/2025 5/30/2025 5/30/2025 5/30/2025 67.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 67.36
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
Items
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Nuts & bolts bin restock NA 0.00 0.00 67.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 67.36
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63208-0000-03 Supplies-TM 67.36 100.00%
MNO18647810 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/6/2025 6/6/2025 6/6/2025 50.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 50.93
inventory Control -Nuts & Bolts AP - Accounts Payable No
items , , ‘ o o ,
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Bin fees June 2025 NA 0.00 0.00 50.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 50.93
Distributions ;
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-68200-0000-03 Dues and Fee 50.93 100.00%
Vendor: 001651 - Fresno Valves & Castings, Inc. Vendor Total: 7,635.78
50676481 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/13/2025  6/13/2025  6/13/2025 7,635.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,635.78
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
Items s )
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Chem valves -4x4, 6x6, 8x8, 10x10, 12x1.. NA 0.00 0.00 7,635.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,635.78
Distributions ) B ) ) .
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63370-0916-02 Chemigation Valves-- (New}-CA 7,635.78 100.00%
Vendor: (001813 - GRAINGER Vendor Total: 459,57
9527942032 invoice 6/25/2025  6/3/2025 6/3/2025 6/3/2025 96.81 0.00 0.00 0.00 96.81
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
items . . . o .
{tem Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
2" Stainless steel fittings (3) NA 0.00 0.00 96.81 0.00 0.00 0.00 96.81
Distributions ) ; ) . e . )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
Supplies-T™M 96.81 100.00%
9528076855 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/3/2025 6/3/2025 6/3/2025 115.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 115.04
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
items
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Moisture meter NA 0.00 0.00 115.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 115.04
Distributions ) » N .
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
Supplies-TM 115.04 100.00%
$541616992 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/16/2025  6/16/2025  6/16/2025 247.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 247.72
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page 7 of 29



Payable Register

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Payable Description Bank Code On Hold
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Swivel caster wheels, cordless pruner NA 0.00 0.00 247.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 247.72
Distributions . .
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63208-0000-03 Supplies-TM 247.72 100.00%
Vendor: 001821 - Green Valley Farm Supply ing Vendor Total: 365.24
444326 Invoice 6/25/2025 6/11/2025 6/11/2025 6/11/2025 365.24 0.00 0.00 0.00 365.24
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
items . :
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Rodent abatement NA 0.00 0.00 365.24 0.00 0.00 0.00 365.24
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
300-63100-0000-03 Chemicals-5SM 365.24 100.00%
Vendor: (01850 - Grossmaver & Associates Vendor Total: 290.00
1VC3890 invoice 6/25/2025  6/10/2025  6/10/2025  6/10/2025 290.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 290.00
Consulting Services AP - Accounts Payable No
Items .
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
GP special back-up for Tyler data conver... NA 0.00 0.00 290.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 250.00
Distributions - o
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
100-62600-0000-06 CS-Computer-GA 25.00 10.00%
300-62600-0000-06 CS-Computer-GA 14.50 5.00%
600-62600-0000-06 CS-Computer-GA 246.50 85.00%
Vendor: 001866 - Gutierrez Consultants Vendor Total: 4,970.00
1996 invoice 6/25/2025  6/13/2025  6/13/2025  6/13/2025 2,730.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,730.00
Consulting Services AP - Accounts Payable No
Items . ) . . . . . -
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
5/1-5/31/25 NA 0.00 0.00 2,730.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,730.00
Distributions ) ‘ )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
£00-13510-€129-02 Grant Expense - ADRoP (DWR $11.5... 2,730.00 100.00%
1897 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/13/2025  6/13/2025  6/13/2025 1,540.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,540.00
Consulting Services AP - Accounts Payable No
ftems
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
5/1-5/31/25 R2 NA 0.00 0.00 1,540.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,540.00
Distributions ) . T . .
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-13510-0168-02 Pajaro Watershed IRWMP 1,540.00 100.00%
1998 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/13/2025  6/13/2025  6/13/2025 700.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 700.00
Consulting Services AP - Accounts Payable No
Items ’
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
5/1-5/31/25 NA 0.00 0.00 700.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 700.00
Distributions . . S
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-13510-D129-02 Grant Expense - ADRoP (USBR $6.7.., 700.00 100.00%
Vendor Total: 647,876.96

Vendor: (01901 - HDR Engineering Inc

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page B of 29



Payable Register

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Payable # payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Payable Description Bank Code On Hold
1200716063 Invoice 6/25/2025 4/28/2025  4/28/2025 4/28/2025 327,415.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 327,415.84
Engineering Services AP - Accounts Payable No
Items )
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
2/23-3/29/25 ADRoP NA 0.00 0.00 327,415.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 327,415.84
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
3210:0, Pajaro Watershed IRWMP 327,415.84 100.00%
1200716087 Invoice 6/25/2025  4/28/2025  4/28/2025  4/28/2025 43,989.00 0.00 0.00 0.00  43,989.00
Engineering Services AP - Accounts Payable No
items
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
2/23-3/29/25 ADRoP -task 23 NA 0.00 0.00 43,989.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 43,989.00
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
£00-13510-0168-02 Pajaro Watershed IRWMP 43,989.00 100.00%
1200724423 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/28/2025  5/28/2025  5/28/2025 11,251.55 0.00 0.00 0.00  11,291.55
Engineering Services AP - Accounts Payable No
Items ) . } B
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
3/30-5/3/25 ADRoP -task 24 NA 0.00 0.00 11,291.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,291.55
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-13510-0168-07 Pajaro Watershed (RWMP 11,291.55 100.00%
1200724498 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/28/2025  5/28/2025  5/28/2025 228,630.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 228,630.57
Engineering Services AP - Accounts Payable No
ftems ; ; . ; «
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
3/30-5/3/25 ADRoP NA 0.00 0.00 228,630.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 228,630.57
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-13510-0168-02 Pajaro Watershed IRWMP 228,630.57 100.00%
1200724727 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/29/2025  5/29/2025  5/29/2025 36,550.00 0.00 0.00 0.00  36,550.00
Engineering Services AP - Accounts Payable No
items
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
3/30-5/3/25 ADRoP NA 0.00 0.00 36,550.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36,550.00
Distributions o ) B ) _ ) e
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-13510-0168-00 Pajaro Watershed IRWMP 36,550.00 100.00%
Vendor: 001949 - Hollister Auto Parts Inc Vendor Total: 424.11
008167 invoice 6/25/2025  5/23/2025  5/23/2025  5/23/2025 396.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 396.38
Electrical Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
Items : . : [,
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
RTU 6 -battery replacement NA 0.00 0.00 396.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 396.38
Distributions . . )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63210-0000-02 Supplies - Structure Equipment PM 396.38 100.00%
008521 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/28/2025  5/28/2025  5/28/2025 27.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 27.73
District Vehicle Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No

6/20/2025 B:50:35 AM

Page 9 of 29



Payable Register

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Payable Description Bank Code On Hold
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Rain X water repellent NA 0.00 0.00 27.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 27.73
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-64600-0000-03 Vehicle Maintenance-GA 27.73 100.00%
Vendor: 001968 - Hollister True Value Inc., Vendor Total: 57.85
A463116 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/21/2025  5/21/2025  5/21/2025 12.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12.00
WRA Survey Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
ftems :
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Washers for faucets NA 0.00 0.00 12.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12.00
Distributions o )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
803-53200-0000-A2 Supplies {Survey) 12.00 100.00%
A465708 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/13/2025  6/13/2025  6/13/2025 45.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 45.85
WRA Survey Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
Items ; . y , e B
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Fiat bib washer (2), 14pc screwdriver set  NA 0.00 0.00 45.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 45,85
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
803-63200-0000-A2 Supplies {Survey) 45.85 100.00%
Vendor: 001983 - ICONIX Waterworks Ing Vendor Total: 87,913.97
2516019513 Invoice 6/25/2025 5/27/2025  5/27/2025 5/27/2025 87,377.39 0.00 0.00 000  87,377.39
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
items
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
16" Claval valve (2) NA 0.00 0.00 87,377.39 0.00 0.00 0.00 87,377.39
Distributions ) .
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
£500-14502-0000-00 TDS Structures & Improvements ) 87,377.39 100.00%
U2516021460 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/5/2025 6/5/2025 6/5/2025 396.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 396.94
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
items " . . . . i
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Gaskets 4", 6", 8", 10" {12 each), 12" {11} NA 0.00 0.00 396.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 396.94
Distributions ) ) .
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63208-0000-03 Supplies-TM 396.94 100.00%
12516022148 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/10/2025  6/10/2025  6/10/2025 139.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 139.64
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
items S - . : , e , - ,
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
12" non-asbestos gasket (1}, 16" gasket ... NA 0.00 0.00 139.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 139.64
Distributions )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63208-0000-03 Supplies-TM 139.64 100.00%
Vendor: 001997 - Independent Business Forms ing Vendor Total: 86.70
43999 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/22/2025  5/22/2025  5/22/2025 86.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 86.70
AP - Accounts Payable No

Printing Services

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

pPage 10 of 29



Payable Register

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Payable Description Bank Code On Hold
Items ) . ) ‘ " B
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Business cards -JCA NA 0.00 0.00 86.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 86.70
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
803-63200-0000-01 Supplies (P1} 86.70 100.00%
Vendor: 002405 - John Smith Landfill Vendor Total: 716.98
01-01103990 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/16/2025  6/16/2025  6/16/2025 145.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 145.04
Dump Fees AP - Accounts Payable No
Items )
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Dump Fees NA 0.00 0.00 145,04 0.00 0.00 0.00 145.04
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-68600-0000-03 Utilities 145.04 100.00%
01-01104160 Invoice 6/25/2025 6/17/2025  6/17/2025  6/17/2025 235.86 0.00 0.00 0.00 235.86
Dump Fees AP - Accounts Payable No
ltems ) )
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Dump Fees NA 0.00 0.00 235.86 0.00 0.00 0.00 235.86
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-68600-0000-03 Utilities 235.86 100.00%
01-01104161 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/17/2025  6/17/2025  6/17/2025 336.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 336.08
Dump Fees AP - Accounts Payable No
Items .
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Dump Fees NA 0.00 0.00 336.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 336.08
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-68600-0000-03 Utilities 336.08 100.00%
Vendor: 002423 - johnsgr Lumber Company Vendor Total: 770.88
284452 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/27/2025  5/27/2025  5/27/2025 37.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 37.09
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
tems ; e . , . , -
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
RTU 6 -reset panel box supplies NA 0.00 0.00 37.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 37.09
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
£00-63208-0000-03 Supplies-TM 37.08 100.00%
284453 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/27/2025  5/27/2025  5/27/2025 76.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 76.42
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
Items . s . .
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Sub 4 leak -caution tape (5) NA 0.00 0.00 76.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 76.42
Distributions .
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63208-0000-03 Supplies-TM 76.42 100.00%
284467 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/27/2025  5/27/2025  5/27/2025 152.86 0.00 0.00 0.00 152.86
AP - Accounts Payable No

Maintenance Supplies

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page 11 of 29



Payable Register

Packet: APPKTO0004 - BD062525

Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Payable Description Bank Code On Hold
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
RTU 6 -reset panel box supplies NA 0.00 0.00 152.86 0.00 0.00 0.00 152.86
Distributions )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63208-0000-03 Supplies-TM 152.86 100.00%
284523 Invoice 6/25/2025 5/28/2025 5/28/2025 5/28/2025 43.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 43.66
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
items ) i
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Blue marking paint NA 0.00 0.00 43.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 43.66
Distributions ) .
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63208-0000-03 Supplies-T™M 43.66 100.00%
284538 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/29/2025  5/29/2025  5/29/2025 56.77 0.00 0.00 0.00 56.77
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
Items o }
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
RTU 6 -reset panel box supplies NA 0.00 0.00 56.77 0.00 0.00 0.00 56.77
Distributions ) ) ) _— . )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63208-0000-03 Supplies-TM 56.77 100.00%
284745 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/5/2025 6/5/2025 6/5/2025 98.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 9831
Personal Safety Equipment AP - Accounts Payable No
tems . e . .
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
stiht pro helmet -LV NA 0.00 0.00 98.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 98.31
Distributions S
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-61970-0000-03 Personal Equipment/Uniform 98.31 100.00%
284868 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/11/2025  6/11/2025  6/11/2025 269.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 269.56
Heavy Maintenance Supplies/Maintenance ... AP - Accounts Payable No
Items . . . e e
ftem Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Trailer bedliner coating kit NA 0.00 0.00 240.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 240.33
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-64820-0000-03 Equipment Maintenance-Heavy 240.33 100.00%
Items
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Paint tray (3), paint tape NA 0.00 0.00 29.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 29.23
Distributions o ) . »
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63208-0000-03 Supplies-TM 29.23 100.00%
284965 Invoice §/25/2025  6/16/2025  6/16/2025  6/16/2025 36.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 36.21
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
items . .
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Tip cleaner/hammer drill bit set/bolt eye.. NA 0.00 0.00 36.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 36.21
Distributions . . ——
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
£00:63208-0000-03 Supplies-TM 36.21 100.00%
Vendor: 002639 - Kennedy/ienks Consultants in¢. Vendor Total: 50,340.89

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

page 12 of 29



Payable Register

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Payable Description Bank Code On Hold
380703 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/10/2025  6/10/2025  6/10/2025 50,340.89 0.00 0.00 0.00  50,340.89
Engineering Services AP - Accounts Payable No
Items
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Services thru 5/23/25 NA 0.00 0.00 50,340.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 50,340.89
Distributions .
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-13510-€128-02 Grant Expense - ADRoP (DWR $11.5... 50,340.89 100.00%
Vendor: 002766 - Kronick, Moskovitz Tiedemann & Girard Vendor Total: 86,095.38
30812923 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/28/2025  5/28/2025  5/28/2025 19,389.50 0.00 0.00 0.00  15,389.50
Legal Services AP - Accounts Payable No
items . ‘
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Services thru 4/30/25 -Water Supply NA 0.00 0.00 19,389.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 19,389.50
Distributions . o ‘
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-62101-0000-06 CS-Legal GA 19,389.50 100.00%
Invoice 6/25/2025  5/28/2025  5/28/2025  5/28/2025 14,502.78 0.00 0.00 0.00  14,502.78
Legal Services AP - Accounts Payable No
Items . . . . - .
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Services thru 4/30/25 NA 0.00 0.00 14,502.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 14,502.78
Distributions )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-623101-0000-06 CS-Legal GA 14,502.78 100.00%
30913116 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/13/2025  6/13/2025  6/13/2025 21,368.50 0.00 0.00 0.00  21,368.50
Legal Services AP - Accounts Payable No
Items
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Services thru 5/31/25 -Water Supply NA 0.00 0.00  21,368.50 0.00 0.00 0.00  21,368.50
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
£00-62101-0000-06 CS-Legal GA 21,368.50 100.00%
30913117 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/13/2025  6/13/2025  6/13/2025 28,322.10 0.00 0.00 0.00  28322.10
Legal Services AP - Accounts Payable No
tems ; S e ‘ : . s -
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Services thru 5/31/25 -Capacity fee NA 0.00 0.00  28,322.10 0.00 0.00 0.00  28,322.10
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
£00-62100-0000-06 CS Legal-CA 28,322.10 100.00%
30913118 Invoice §/25/2025  6/13/2025  6/13/2025  6/13/2025 2,512.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,512.50
Legal Services AP - Accounts Payable No
Items . .
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Services thru 5/31/25 -SIB Turnout Rei... NA 0.00 0.00 2,512.50 0.00 0.00 0.00  2,512.50
Distributions . . .
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-62101-0000-06 CS-Legal GA 2,512.50 100.00%
Vendor: {02783 - Landscape Design by Rosemary Bridwell CCN Vendor Total: 300.00
052025 invoice 6/25/2025  5/20/2025  5/20/2025  5/20/2025 300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 300.00
Landscape Plan Review AP - Accounts Payable No

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page 13 of 29



Payable Register

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Payable Description Bank Code On Hold
items . . . e . .
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
5/12-5/16/25 NA 0.00 0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 300.00
Distributions )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
303-62400-0000-83 CS - General Consulting {Plan Cks/R... 300.00 100.00%
Vendor: 003010 - Maggiora Brothers Drilling Vendor Total: 2,610.00
111297 Invoice 6/25/2025 5/22/2025 5/22/2025 5/22/2025 2,610.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,610.00
Engineering Contracted Services AP - Accounts Payable No
items
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Troubleshoot well pump NA 0.00 0.00 2,610.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,610.00
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-62752-0000-02 CS-Maintenance-PM 2,610.00 100.00%
Vendor: 003247 - McKinnon Lumber, Inc. Vendor Total: 214.50
AQNWH invoice 6/25/2025 5/27/2025 5/27/2025 5/27/2025 16.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 16.76
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
items : )
Item Description ‘ Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
RTU 6 -reset panel box supplies NA 0.00 0.00 16.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 16.76
Distributions } ) ]
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
£00-63208:0000:03 Supplies-TM 16.76 100.00%
L7EZX Invoice 6/25/2025  5/13/2025  5/13/2025  5/13/2025 197.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 197.74
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
Items )
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Spring Grove leak -asphalt NA 0.00 0.00 197.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 197.74
Distributions ) . -
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
Supplies-T™M 187.74 100.00%
Vendor: 003749 - MchMaster-Carr Supply Co Vendor Total: 286.23
46000300 invoice 6/25/2025  5/21/2025  5/21/2025  5/21/2025 158.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 158.43
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
items
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Pump station -pump screen NA 0.00 0.00 158.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 158.43
Distributions .
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
800-63210-0000-03 Supplies-Structure Equip TDM 158.43 100.00%
46602909 invoice 6/25/2025  6/3/2025 6/3/2025 6/3/2025 127.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 127.80
Maintenance Supplies AP - Accounts Payable No
Items . . . . .
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
5" Stainless steel fittings (2) NA 0.00 0.00 127.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 127.80
Distributions ) )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
Supplies-TM 127.80 100.00%
Vendor: 003399 - Mission Village Voice Media LLC Vendor Total: 530.00
1326 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/26/2025  5/26/2025  5/26/2025 530.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 530.00
Monthly Print Ad AP - Accounts Payable No

6/20/2025 B:50:35 AM

Page 14 of 29



Payable Register

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Payable Description Bank Code On Hold
Items - . o . . .
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Turf removal program -June 2025 NA 0.00 0.00 530.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 530.00
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
B03-68650-0000-D1 Advertising/Public Info (P1) 530.00 100.00%
Vendor: 003597 - Palace Business Solutions Vendor Total: 475.80
2432636:0 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/30/2025  5/30/2025  5/30/2025 40.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 40.96
Office Supplies AP - Accounts Payable
Items
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Office Supplies NA 0.00 0.00 40.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 40.96
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
Office Supplies-GA 4.10 10.00%
Office Supplies 2.05 5.00%
Office Supplies 34,81 85.00%
2433780-0 invoice 6/25/2025  6/3/2025 6/3/2025 6/3/2025 434.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 434.84
Office Supplies AP - Accounts Payable
items . , ; , L ,
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Office Supplies NA 0.00 0.00 434.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 434.84
Distributions )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
100-68350-0000-06 Office Supplies-GA 43.48 10.00%
3 Office Supplies-GA 21.74 5.00%
600-68350-0000- OG Office Supplies 369.62 85.00%
Vendor: 003614 - Pat Davis Design Group, Ing, Vendor Total: 950.00
8275 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/12/2025  6/12/2025  6/12/2025 950.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 950.00
Website Maintenance AP - Accounts Payable No
tems .
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Website edits 5/1-5/31/25 NA 0.00 0.00 950.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 950.00
Distributions . . . ) y )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
100-62600-0000-06 CS-Computer-GA 95.00 10.00%
300-62600-0000-06 CS-Computer-GA 47.50 5.00%
600-62600-0000-06 CS-Computer-GA 807.50 85.00%
Vendor Total: 1,106.25
Invoice 6/25/2025  6/12/2025  6/12/2025  6/12/2025 1,106.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,106.25
Consulting Services AP - Accounts Payable No
items
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
5/1-5/31/25 NA 0.00 0.00 1,106.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,106.25
Distributions ) - ) » ) i
Account Number Account Name Praoject Account Key Amount Percent
600-13510-0168-02 Pajaro Watershed IRWMP 1,106.25 100.00%
Vendor: 004218 - 5., Electro Systems, Inc. Vendor Total: 46,297.80
099572998 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/29/2025  5/29/2025  5/29/2025 46,297.80 0.00 0.00 0.00  46,297.80
Scada Support AP - Accounts Payable No

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page 15 of 29



Payable Register

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Payable Description Bank Code On Hold
items ) ) )
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Task order 7 -RTU 3 PLC & device upgra... NA 0.00 0.00 46,297.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 46,287.80
Distributions )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-13950-0925-02 SCADA telemetry upgrade 46,297.80 100.00%
Vendor: 004337 - SBC Chamber of Commerce Vendor Total: 1,850.00
8262 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/5/2025 6/5/2025 6/5/2025 1,850.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,850.00
WRA Publication AP - Accounts Payable No
Items
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
SBC Community guide/bus directory -full.. NA 0.00 0.00 1,850.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,850.00
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
803-68650-0000-D1 Advertising/Public Info {P1) 1,850.00 100.00%
Vendor: (04354 - Sentry Alarm Systems Vendor Total: 370.00
Invoice 6/25/2025  5/30/2025  5/30/2025  5/30/2025 250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 250.00
AP - Accounts Payable No
items } } } }
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
System check -keypad showed zone erro.. NA 0.00 0.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 250.00
Distributions ) )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
CS-Operations-GA 25.00 10.00%
CS-Operations-GA 12.50 5.00%
CS-Operations-GA 212.50 85.00%
2288141 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/15/2025  6/15/2025  6/15/2025 120.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 120.00
Quarterly Monitoring AP - Accounts Payable No
Items ) }
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
7/1-9/30/25 NA 0.00 0.00 120.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 120.00
Distributions )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
100-62700-0000-06 CS-Operations-GA 12.00 10.00%
300-62700-0000-06 CS-Operations-GA 6.00 5.00%
CS-Operations-GA 102.00 85.00%
Vendor Total: 259.93
Invoice 6/25/2025  5/31/2025  5/31/2025  5/31/2025 259.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 259.93
Monthly Shredding Service AP - Accounts Payable No
Items ) . -
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
5/12/25 & 4 additional boxes NA 0.00 0.00 259.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 259.93
Distributions s . .
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
CS-Operations-GA 25.99 10.00%
CS-Operations-GA 13.00 5.00%
CS-Operations-GA 220.94 85.00%
Vendor: (04456 - Spurzem & Liem LLP Vendor Total: 8,475.00
64189 Invoice 6/25/2025 6/4/2025 6/4/2025 6/4/2025 8,475.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,475.00
Legal Services AP - Accounts Payable No

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page 16 of 29



Payable Register

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Payable Description Bank Code On Hold
Items ) o ‘ ) L
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
5/1-5/31/25 NA 0.00 0.00 6,562.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,562.50
Distributions }
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-62101-0600-06 CS-Legal GA 6,562.50 100.00%
Items
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
5/1-5/31/25 NA 0.00 0.00 1,912.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,912.50
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
) CS-Legal-GA 191.25 10.00%
300-62100-0000-06 CS-Legal GA 95.62 5.00%
500-62101-0000:06 CS-Legal GA 1,625.63 85.00%
Vendor: 004554 - Sunnyslope County Water District Vendor Total: 431,415.54
INV0Q331 invoice 6/25/2025 5/31/2025 5/31/2025 5/31/2025 214,624.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 214,624.63
Plant Operations -West Hills AP - Accounts Payable No
items
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
May 2025 NA 0.00 0.00 214,624.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 214,624.63
Distributions o ) )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
CS Operations - West Hills WTP 214,624.63 100.00%
1NVD332 invoice 6/25/2025  5/31/2025  5/31/2025  5/31/2025 216,790.91 0.00 0.00 0.00  216,790.91
Plant Operations -Lessalt AP - Accounts Payable No
Items . .
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
May 2025 NA 0.00 0.00 216,790.91 0.00 0.00 0.00 216,790.91
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
B00-62700-0602-01 CS Operations - Lessalt WTP 216,790.91 100.00%
Vendor: 004728 - Todd Groundwater Vendor Total: 19,420.77
37653525 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/8/2025 5/8/2025 5/8/2025 3,758.27 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,758.27
Engineering Services AP - Accounts Payable No
Items . . e - . S .
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount TYax Shipping Discount Total
4/1-4/30/25 NA 0.00 0.00 3,758.27 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,758.27
Distributions . . S .
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
700-62400-0160-02 CS-Annual Grwtr Report-SS0 3,758.27 100.00%
37658525 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/8/2025 5/8/2025 5/8/2025 15,662.50 0.00 0.00 000  15,662.50
Engineering Services AP - Accounts Payable No
Items
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
4/1-4/30/25 NA 0.00 0.00  15,662.50 0.00 0.00 0.00  15,662.50
Distributions . oo . . -
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-13510-0168-02 Pajaro Watershed IRWMP 15,662.50 100.00%
Vendor: 004771 - Toro Petroleum Corporation Vendor Total: 3,934.16
0710463-IN Invoice 6/25/2025  5/29/2025  5/29/2025  5/29/2025 105.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 105.76
Forklift Fuel AP - Accounts Payable No

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page 17 of 28



Payable Register

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Payable Description Bank Code On Hold
Items ) . . . S . .
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Propane tanks -forklift NA 0.00 0.00 105.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 105.76
Distributions ) ) e ) )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63200-0000-03 Supplies-GA 105.76 100.00%
£L86840 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/31/2025  5/31/2025  5/31/2025 3,828.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,828.40
Vehicle Fuel AP - Accounts Payable No
Items ) )
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
May usage NA 0.00 0.00 16.69 0.00 0.00 0.00 16.69
Distributions )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
100-64650-0000-06 Vehicle Fuel-GA 16.69 100.00%
items ‘ )
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
May usage NA 0.00 0.00 55.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 55.55
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
200-64650-0000-06 Vehicle Fuel-GA 55.55 100.00%
items . - e — .
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Yax Shipping Discount Total
May usage NA 0.00 0.00 3,615.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,615.59
Distributions e ) ) )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
Vehicle Fuel-GA 3,615.59 100.00%
items ; ; B
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
May usage NA 0.00 0.00 140.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 140.57
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
£03-64650-0000-A1 Vehicle Fuel 140.57 100.00%
Vendor: (04807 - Tyler Technologies Vendor Total: 8,471.24
025-511540 Invoice 6/25/2025  7/1/2025 7/1/2025 7/1/2025 5,058.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,058.74
Document Po "Base" Module Support FY25-... AP - Accounts Payable No
ltems R R I - e e e — ——
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
7/1/25-6/30/26 NA 0.00 0.00 5,058.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,058.74
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
CS-Computer-GA 505.87 10.00%
CS-Computer-GA 252.94 5.00%
CS-Computer-GA 4,299.93 85.00%
§25-512477 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/21/2025  5/21/2025  5/21/2025 910.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 910.00
Tyler Implementation AP - Accounts Payable No
ftems ) .
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
ERP Pro 10 NA 0.00 0.00 910.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 910.00
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
100-62600-0000-06 CS-Computer-GA 91.00 10.00%
300-62600-0000-06 CS-Computer-GA 45.50 5.00%
600-62600-0000-06 CS-Computer-GA 773.50 85.00%
025-513016 Invoice §/25/2025  5/28/2025  5/28/2025  5/28/2025 1,040.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,040.00
Tyler Implementation AP - Accounts Payable No

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page 18 of 29



Payable Register

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Payable Description Bank Code On Hold
items . i, S - - e e .
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
ERP Pro 10 NA 0.00 0.00 1,040.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,040.00
Distributions ‘
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
00-6269 -3000-06 CS-Computer-GA 104.00 10.00%
CS-Computer-GA 52.00 5.00%
bOO—GZSOO-OOOO—Ob CS-Computer-GA 884.00 85.00%
025-513546 Invoice 6/25/2025  5/31/2025  5/31/2025  5/31/2025 1,462.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,462.50
Tyer Implementation AP - Accounts Payable No
Items
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
ERP Pro 10 NA 0.00 0.00 1,462.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,462.50
Distributions )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
100-62600-0000-06 CS-Computer-GA 146.25 10.00%
300-62600-0000-06 CS-Computer-GA 73.12 5.00%
600-62600-0000-06 CS-Computer-GA 1,243.13 85.00%
Vendor: (04808 - U S Bureau of Reclamation Vendor Total: 971,075.77
1808206917 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/4/2025 6/4/2025 6/4/2025 971,075.77 0.00 0.00 0.00 971,075.77
8-07-20-WO130A AP - Accounts Payable No
Items B :
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Principal NA 0.00 0.00 960,608.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 960,608.25
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-15010-0207-07 Water Rights - CVP Amendatory Co... 960,608.25 100.00%
items :
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Interest NA 0.00 0.00 10,467.52 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,467.52
Distributions ) ) )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-75070-0207-07 CVP Amendatory Contract Rpmt Int... 10,467.52 100.00%
Vendor: Q04810 - 1.5, Bank Corporation Vendor Total: 13,748.33
052225BIM Invoice 6/25/2025  5/22/2025  5/22/2025  5/22/2025 3,146.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,146.99
Monthly Statement AP - Accounts Payable No
items
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
CSMFO Training-Accounting Cap|ta| Asse.. NA 0.00 0.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 250.00
Distributions R . .
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
Training 25.00 10.00%
Training 12.50 5.00%
Training 212.50 85.00%
items - .
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Domain -SBCWD.com NA 0.00 0.00 89.98 0.00 0.00 0.00 89.98
Distributions i )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
CS-Computer-GA 9.00 10.00%
CS-Computer-GA 4.50 5.00%
76.48 85.00%

CS-Computer-GA

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page 19 of 29



Payable Register

ACWA Conference -hotel BIM
Distributions

Account Number

Items
Item Description

ACWA Conference -hotel BIM

Distributions
Account Number

600-68500-0000-06

Items

Item Description

ACWA Conference -hotel BiM
Distributions

Account Number
100-68500-0000-06

600-68500-0000-06

items
item Description

Bonds Meeting -hotel CP
Distributions

Account Number

ftems
item Description

Bonds Meeting -hotel BIM
Distributions

Account Number

0522258M

Monthly Statement
items
item Description

Aatrix 941 form filing
Distributions

Account Number

Payable # Payable Type Post Date
Payable Description Bank Code
items S ) B
item Description Commodity
CSMFO -Monterey chapter meeting NA
Distributions
Account Number Account Name
100-61950-0000-06 Training
300-61350-0000-06 Training
600-61950-0000-06 Training
Items
item Description Commodity

NA

Account Name

Travel and Mileage
Travel and Mileage
Travel and Mileage

Commodity
NA

Account Name

Travel and Mileage
Travel and Mileage
Travel and Mileage

Commodity
NA

Account Name

Travel and Mileage
Travel and Mileage
Travel and Mileage

Commodity
NA

Account Name

Travel and Mileage
Travel and Mileage
Travel and Mileage

Commodity
NA

Account Name

Travel and Mileage
Travel and Mileage
Travel and Mileage

invoice

Commodity
NA

Account Name

CS-Computer-GA
CS-Computer-GA
CS-Computer-GA

6/25/2025
AP - Accounts Payable

Payable Date Due Date Discount Date

On Hold

Units Price Amount

0.00 0.00 200.00
Project Account Key Amount
20.00
10.00
170.00

Units Price Amount

0.00 0.00 536.52
Project Account Key Amount
53.65
26.83
456.04

Units Price Amount

0.00 0.00 281.69
Project Account Key Amount
28.17
14.08
239.44

Units Price Amount

0.00 0.00 1,057.62
Project Account Key Amount
105.76
52.88
898.98

Units Price Amount

0.00 0.00 320.08
Project Account Key Amount
32.01
16.00
272.07

Units Price Amount

0.00 0.00 411.10
Project Account Key Amount
41.11
20.56
349.43

5/22/2025 5/22/2025 5/22/2025

No

Units Price Amount

0.00 0.00 9.99
Project Account Key Amount
1.00
0.50
8.49

Tax

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Amount Tax Shipping Discount

Total
200.00

Discount
0.00

Shipping

0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

Total
536.52

Discount
0.00

Tax
0.00

Shipping
0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

Total
281.69

Discount
0.00

Shipping
0.00

Tax
0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

Total
1,057.62

Discount
0.00

Tax
0.00

Shipping
0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

Total
320.08

Discount
0.00

Tax
0.00

Shipping
0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

Total
411.10

Discount
0.00

Tax
0.00

Shipping
0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%
0.00

1,320.54 0.00

Total
9.99

Tax
0.00

Shipping Discount
0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

Total

1,320.54

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page 20 of 28



Payable Register
Payable #

Payable Description
Items

Item Description

Aatrix -CA DE-9 form filing
Distributions

Account Number
100-62600-0000-08

600-62600-0000-06 0(3

Items
Item Description

Paperweights -WRA
Distributions

Account Number
Items
item Description

B2 Cloud backblaze
Distributions

Account Number

p_QQ—-&BdOG»OOOG 06
Items B
item Description

Pest control service
Distributions

Account Number
100-62750-0000-06

600—62 250-0000- 06

items
Item Description

Display board replacement
Distributions

Account Number

Items )
Item Description

Mini moos half & half creamer
Distributions

Account Number

Items
Item Description

Returned item -Board too small
Distributions

Account Number

600-68350-0600- O

Payable Type
Bank Code

Commodity
NA

Account Name

CS-Computer-GA
CS-Computer-GA
CS-Computer-GA

Commodity
NA

Account Name
Supplies {(WC)

Commodity
NA

Account Name

Communications
Communications
Communications

Commodity
NA

Account Name
CS-Maintenance-GA
CS-Maintenance
CS-Maintenance-GA

Commodity
NA

Account Name
Office Supplies-GA
Office Supplies
Office Supplies

Commodity
NA

Account Name

General Business Expense
General Business Expense
General Business Expense

Commodity
NA

Account Name
Office Supplies-GA
Office Supplies
Office Supplies

Post Date

Payable Date Due Date

Units Price

0.00 0.00
Project Account Key

Units Price

0.00 0.00
Project Account Key

Units Price

0.00 0.00
Project Account Key

Units Price

0.00 0.00
Project Account Key

Units Price

0.00 0.00
Project Account Key

Units Price

0.00 0.00
Project Account Key

Units Price

0.00 0.00

Project Account Key

Discount Date
On Hold

Amount
31.44

Amount
3.14
157

26.73

Amount
48.87

Amount
48.87

Amount
5.03

Amount

0.50
0.25
4.28

Amount
175.00

Amount
17.50
8.75
148.75

Amount
222.98

Amount
22.30
11.15

189.53

Amount
33.50

Amount
3.35
1.68

28.47

Amount
-41.12

Amount
-4.11
-2.06

-34.95

Amount

Tax  Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

Tax  Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
100.00%

Tax Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

Tax  Shipping

0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

Tax  Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%

5.00%
85.00%

Tax Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

Tax Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Tax Shipping Discount

Discount
0.00

Discount
0.00

Discount
0.00

Discount
0.00

Discount
0.00

Discount
0.00

Discount
0.00

Total

Total

31.44

Total
48.87

Total
5.03

Total
175.00

Total
222.98

Total
33.50

Total
-41.12

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page 21 of 29



Payable Register
Payabie #

Payable Description
items

Item Description

WRA Replacement board
Distributions

Account Number
100-68350-0000-06

600-68350-0000-06

items
Item Description

Payable Type
Bank Code

Commodity
NA

Account Name
Office Supplies-GA
Office Supplies
Office Supplies

Commodity

Staff meeting -bagels & doughnuts NA

Distributions

Account Number

ftems
Item Description

Speaker -Engineering
Distributions

Account Number

items
Item Description

Staff meeting -cream cheese

Distributions

Account Number
100-68450-0000-06

600-68450-0000-06

Items
Item Description

Board meeting photos -AS & MC

Distributions
Account Number
100-68450-0000-06

items
item Description

Milestone gift cards -AS & MC

Distributions
Account Number
100-68450-0000-06
300-68450-0000-06
Items )
Item Description

Remote satellite phone Jun/Apr

Distributions
Account Number
100-68400-0000-06
200-68400-0000:086

600-68400-0000-06

Account Name

General Business Expense
General Business Expense
General Business Expense

Commodity
NA
Account Name
Office Supplies-GA

Office Supplies
Office Supplies

Commodity
NA

Account Name

General Business Expense
General Business Expense
General Business Expense

Commodity
NA

Account Name

General Business Expense
General Business Expense
General Business Expense

Commodity
NA

Account Name

General Business Expense
General Business Expense
General Business Expense

Commodity
NA

Account Name

Communications
Communications
Communications

Post Date

Payable Date Due Date Discount Date

On Hold

Units Price Amount

0.00 0.00 179.68
Project Account Key Amount
17.97
8.98
152.73

Units Price Amount

0.00 0.00 38.22
Project Account Key Amount
3.82
191
32.49

Units Price Amount

0.00 0.00 35.70
Project Account Key Amount
3.57
1.78
30.35

Units Price Amount

0,00 0.00 7.98
Project Account Key Amount
0.80
0.40
6.78

Units Price Amount

0.00 0.00 6.53
Project Account Key Amount
0.65
0.33
5.55

Units Price Amount

0.00 0.00 326.80
Project Account Key Amount
32.68
16.34
277.78

Units Price Amount

0.00 0.00 82.00
Project Account Key Amount
8.20
4.10
69.70

Amount

Tax Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

Tax Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

Tax  Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

Tax Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

Tax  Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

Tax Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%

5.00%
85.00%

Tax Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Tax Shipping Discount Total
Discount Total
0.00 179.68
Discount Total
0.00 38.22
Discount Total
0.00 35.70
Discount Total
0.00 7.98
Discount Total
0.00 6.53
Discount Total
0.00 326.80
Discount Total
0.00 82.00

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page 22 of 29



Payable Register
Payable #

Payable Description
Items

Item Description

Minit moos half & half creamer

Distributions

Account Number
100-68450-0000-06

600-68450-0000-C

Items
Item Description

Mini moos half & half creamer

Distributions
Account Number

300-6845(

Items
Item Description

Bostitch stapler
Distributions

Account Number

Items )

Item Description

Monthly Ipad storage
Distributions

Account Number
100-68400-0000-06

600-68400-0000-06

items )
Item Description

Returned item -coffee creamer

Distributions
Account Number

300-68350-0000-06
Items
Item Description
Sympathy flowers -LDV
Distributions
Account Number
100-68450:0000-06
300-68450:-0000-06

05222504 Invoice 6/25/2025
Monthly Statement AP - Accounts Payable
Items
Item Description Commodity
SWRCB application fee for ADRoP NA

Distributions
Account Number

Payable Type
Bank Code

Commodity
NA

Account Name

General Business Expense
General Business Expense
General Business Expense

Commodity
NA

Account Name

General Business Expense
General Business Expense
General Business Expense

Commodity
NA

Account Name
Office Supplies-GA
Office Supplies
Office Supplies

Commodity
NA

Account Name

Communications
Communications
Communications

Commodity
NA

Account Name
Office Supplies-GA
Office Supplies
Office Supplies

Commodity
NA

Account Name

General Business Expense
General Business Expense
General Business Expense

Account Name

Pajaro Watershed [RWMP

Post Date

Payable Date Due Date Discount Date

On Hold

Units Price Amount

0.00 0.00 34.99
Project Account Key Amount
3.50
1.75
29.74

Units Price Amount

0.00 0.00 8.08
Project Account Key Amount
0.81
0.40
6.87

Units Price Amount

0.00 0.00 33.57
Project Account Key Amount
3.36
1.68
28.53

Units Price Amount

0.00 0.00 2.99
Project Account Key Amount
0.30
0.15
2.54

Units Price Amount

0.00 0.00 -33.50
Project Account Key Amount
-3.35
-1.68
-28.47

Units Price Amount

0.00 0.00 111.81
Project Account Key Amount
11.18
5.59
95.04

5/22/2025 5/22/2025 5/22/2025

No

Units Price Amount

0.00 0.00 673.00
Project Account Key Amount
673.00

Amount

Tax Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%

5.00%
85.00%

Tax  Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

Tax Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

Tax Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

Tax Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.01%
84.99%

Tax Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
10.00%
5.00%
85.00%

1,378.22

Tax Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
100.00%

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Tax Shipping Discount Total
Discount Total
0.00 34.99
Discount Total
0.00 8.08
Discount Total
0.00 33,57
Discount Total
0.00 2.99
Discount Total
0.00 -33.50
Discount Total
0.00 111.81

0.00 0.00 0.00 1,378.22

Discount
0.00

Total
673.00

&/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page 23 of 29



Payable Register

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Payable Description Bank Code On Hold
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
SWRCB - online payment fee (ADRoP) NA 0.00 0.00 18.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 18.51
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-13510-0168-02 Pajaro Watershed (RWMP 18.51 100.00%
items . N )
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Adobe Pro monthly charge NA 0.00 0.00 19.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.99
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
CS-Computer-GA 1.00 5.00%
CS-Computer-GA 2.00 10.00%
CS-Computer-GA 16.99 85.00%
Items
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Fuel NA 0.00 0.00 75.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 75.00
Distributions ] ] )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
100-64650-0000-06 Vehicle Fuel-GA 7.50 10.00%
Vehicle Fuel-GA 3.75 5.00%
B00-64650-0000-06 Vehicle Fuel-GA 63.75 85.00%
items ) o - )
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
AWWA Membership Fee NA 0.00 0.00 525.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 525.00
Distributions ) ] i
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-68200-0000-06 Dues and Fees 525.00 100.00%
ftems
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Meal - ACWA NA 0.00 0.00 30.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.72
Distributions ) ) o . )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-68500-0000-06 Travel and Mileage 30.72 100.00%
items ) ) ) )
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
parking - ACWA NA 0.00 0.00 36.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36.00
Distributions e — -
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
£00-68500-0000-06 Travel and Mileage 36.00 100.00%
Invoice §/25/2025  5/22/2025  §/22/2025  5/22/2025 734.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 734.62
Monthly Statement AP - Accounts Payable No
Htems
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
CAGBN Conference Tickets NA 0.00 0.00 46.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 46.36
Distributions - . . A
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
803-68520-0000:-A1 Conferences 46.36 100.00%
items - . . . .
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Parking for CAGBN Conference NA 0.00 0.00 50.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50.00
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
803-68500-0000-A1 Travel and Mileage 50.00 100.00%

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM Page 24 of 29



Payable Register

Payable # Payable Type

Payable Description Bank Code
Items ) )
item Description Commodity
Hotel JCA/LV - CAGBN Conference NA

Distributions
Account Number

803-68500-0000-A1

Monthly Statement
items
item Description

Marking spray paint 12pk

Distributions
Account Number
600-63208-0000-03

items

Item Description

Car cleaning supplies
Distributions

Account Number
600-63200-0000-03
ltems
ftem Description
Marking Paint
Distributions

Account Number
items
item Description

Maintenance tools
Distributions

Account Number
600-63208-0000-03
items
Item Description

Generator (PO9110)
Distributions
Account Number
600-64402-0000-03

items

ftem Description

Account Name
Travel and Mileage

Invoice

Commodity
NA

Account Name
Supplies-TM

Commodity
NA

Account Name
Supplies-GA

Commodity
NA

Account Name
Supplies-TM

Commodity
NA

Account Name
Supplies-TM

Commodity
NA

Account Name
Equipment Purchase-TM

Commodity

Submersible trash pumps -pipe repairr... NA

Distributions

Account Number

600-64402-0000-03
items .
Item Description

Marking paint
Distributions

Account Number
600-63208-0000-03

items
Item Description

Nexgen -user conference

Distributions
Account Number

Account Name
Equipment Purchase-TM

Commodity
NA

Account Name
Supplies-TM

Commodity

NA

Account Name
Training

Post Date

6/25/2025
AP - Accounts Payable

5/22/2025

Payable Date Due Date

Units Price

0.00 0.00

Project Account Key

5/22/2025
Units Price
0.00 0.00

Project Account Key
Units Price
0.00 0.00
Project Account Key
Units Price
0.00 0.00
Project Account Key
Units Price
0.00 0.00
Project Account Key
Units Price
0.00 0.00
Project Account Key
Units Price
0.00 0.00

Project Account Key

Units Price

0.00 0.00

Project Account Key

Units Price
0.00 0.00

Project Account Key

Discount Date
On Hold

Amount
638.26

Amount
638.26

5/22/2025

Amount
62.67

Amount
62.67

Amount
43.25

Amount
43.25

Amount
52.40

Amount
52.40

Amount
177.65

Amount
177.65

Amount
3,029.92

Amount
3,029.92

Amount
1,179.88

Amount

1,179.88

Amount
12178

Amount
121,78

Amount
1,475.00

Amount
1,475.00

Amount
Tax  Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
100.00%

7,167.96

Tax  Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
100.00%

Tax Shipping

0.00 0.00

Percent
100.00%

Tax Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
100.00%

Tax Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
100.00%

Tax Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
100.00%

Tax Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent

100.00%
Tax  Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
100.00%

Tax Shipping
0.00 0.00

Percent
100.00%

0.00

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Discount
0.00

Discount
0.00

Discount
0.00

Discount
0.00

Discount
0.00

Discount
0.00

Discount
0.00

Discount

0.00

Discount
0.00

0.00

Tax Shipping Discount

Total
638.26

0.00

Total
62.67

Total
43,25

Total
52.40

Total
177.65

Total
3,029.92

Total
1,179.88

Total
121.78

Total
1,475.00

Total

7,167.96

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page 25 of 29



Payable Register

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Date Due Date Discount Date Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Payable Description Bank Code On Hold
Items . = L y ) _ .
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Car cleaning supplies NA 0.00 0.00 115.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 115.08
Distributions . o .
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63200-0000-03 Supplies-GA 115.08 100.00%
Items
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Maintenance tools NA 0.00 0.00 216.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 216.08
Distributions . o ) )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
£00-63208-0000-03 Supplies-TM 216.08 100.00%
Items )
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
RTU 18 -Sump pump NA 0.00 0.00 576.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 576.97
Distributions . ) o . )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
£00-63210-0000-03 Supplies-Structure Equip TDM 576.97 100.00%
items ) o )
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
$$ 304 ball valve with locking device NA 0.00 0.00 58.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 58.34
Distributions
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63208-0000-03 Supplies-TM 58.34 100.00%
items .
Item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
90 Degree elbow 2" male x female thre... NA 0.00 0.00 58.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 58.94
Distributions ) )
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
600-63208-0000-03 Supplies-TM 58.94 100.00%
Vendor: Q04854 - Verdant Commercial Capital LLC Vendor Total: 239.81
905624438 Invoice 6/25/2025  6/11/2025  6/11/2025  6/11/2025 239.81 0.00 0.00 0.00 239.81
Copler Lease AP - Accounts Payable No
items ‘ )
item Description Commodity Units Price Amount Tax Shipping Discount Total
Lease 6/7-7/6/25 NA 0.00 0.00 239.81 0.00 0.00 0.00 239.81
Distributions ) . e
Account Number Account Name Project Account Key Amount Percent
100-64500-0000-06 Tool & Equipment Rental GA 23.98 10.00%
300-64500-0000-06 Tool & Equipment Rental-GA 11.99 5.00%
£00-64500-0000-06 Tool & Equpment Rental GA 203.84 85.00%

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page 26 of 29



Payable Register Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Payable Summary

Type

Count Gross Tax Shipping Discount Total Manual Payment Balance
Invoice 106 2,431,870.39

000 000 000 243187039 000  2,431,870.39
Grand Total: 2,431,870.39 0.00 0.00 0.00  2,431,870.39 0.00 2,431,870.39

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM Page 27 of 29



Payable Register

Account Summary

Account Name _..Amount
Training 45,00
CS-Legal-GA 191.25
CS-Computer-GA 986.26
CS-Operations-GA 62.99
CS-Maintenance-GA 876.73
Tool & Equipment Rental GA 23.98
Vehicle Fuel-GA 24.19
Office Supplies-GA 87.32
Communications 9.00
General Business Expense 56.79
Travel and Mileage 260.70
Total: "2,62421
Account Name Amount
300-61950-0000-06 Training 22.50
300-62100-000C-0¢ CS-Legal GA 95.62
300-62600-0000-06 CS-Computer-GA 453.13
300-62700-0000-03 CS-Operations-SSO 120.75
300-62700-0000-06 CS-Operations-GA 31.50
300-62750-0000-06 CS-Maintenance 438.34
300-6314 Chemicals-SSM 365.24
300-64500-0000-06 Tool & Equipment Rental-GA 11.88
5 Vehicle Fuel-GA 59.30
Office Supplies-GA 21.74
Office Supplies 21.90
Communications 4.50
General Business Expense 28.40

300-68500-0000-06 Travel and Mileage

Total:

Account

600-51950-0000-03
§00-61950-000C-C6

Name ) Amount
Pajaro Watershed [RWMP 666,877.22
Grant Expense - ADRoP (DWR $11.5 M) 53,070.89
Grant Expense - ADRoP (USBR $6.7 M) 700.00
SCADA telemetry upgrade 46,297.80
TDS Structures & Improvements 87,377.39
Water Rights - CVP Amendatory Contract Repmt 960,608.25
Reach 1 Capital Improvement Project 980.00
Training 1,475.00
Training 382.50
personal Equipment/Uniform 98.31
CS Legal-CA 28,322.10
CS-Legal GA 65,961.41
CS-Computer-GA 8,937.80
CS Computer - Lessalt WTP 690.00
CS Computer - West Hills WTP 790.00
CS-Operations-TO 1,086.75
CS-Operations-GA 535.44
CS Operations - Lessalt WTP 217,020.91
CS Operations - West Hills WTP 214,854.63
CS-Maintenance-GA 7,452.05
CS Maintenance TDM-Subsystem Breaks 3,826.20
CS-Maintenance-PM 2,610.00
Supplies-GA 216.52
Supplies-GA 264.09
Supplies - RWP TM 109.04
Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks 3,194.21

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page 28 of 29



Payable Register

Account Summary

Packet: APPKT00004 - BD062525

Account Name Amount
Supplies-TM 410,22

Supplies-TM 11,785.25

Supplies - Structure Equipment PM 396.38

Supplies-Structure Equip TDM 735.40

Chemigation Valves-- (New)-CA 7,635.78

Equipment Purchase-TM 4,209.80

Tool & Equpment Rental GA 203.84

Vehicle Maintenance-GA 27.73

Vehicle Fuel-GA 3,828.30

Equipment Maintenance-Heavy 240.33

Dues and Fee 50.93

Dues and Fees 525.00

Office Supplies 742.15

Communications 76.52

General Business Expense 482.72

Travel and Mileage 2,282.68

Utilities 716.98

CVP Amendatory Contract Rpmt Interest 10,467.52

Total: T 2,418,556.04

Account S— Name et e . Amount
700-62400-0160- 02 CS-Annual Grwtr Report-5S0 3,758.27
Totat: '3,758.27

»Accou nt Name _Amount
CS - General Consulting (Plan Cks/Rev) 300.00

CS - Computers 100.00

Supplies (WC) 48.87

80;}*63200-0@00 -AZ Supplies (Survey) 57.85
803-63200-0000-D1 Supplies (P1} 86.70
Vehicle Fuel 140.57

Travel and Mileage 688.26

Conferences 46.36

803~68b¢0 0000- Dl Advertising/Public Info {P1) 3,61800

Total:

6/20/2025 8:50:35 AM

Page 29 of 29



San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Agenda Item: 3

Meeting Date: June 25, 2025
Submitted By: Leilani Vidal

Presented By: Dana Jacobson

Agenda Title: Acknowledgement of Paid Claims prior to the June 2025 Board Meeting

Detailed Description: This is a notification that the checks & wire transfers listed below were
issued outside the normal claims process.

Payee Check No./ Amount For Issued Date
Confirmation #
Hollister
Downtown Assc. 59720 $120.00 | Farmers Market Stall 05/28/25
Wire Transfers

San Luis Delta Wire O&M delivery costs

Mendota Water Transf $99,000.00 | (May 2025 advanced water 06/09/25

Authority ransier delivery payment form)
Wire

USBR (pay.gov) Transfer $75,225.45 | Water Payment 06/09/25
Wire .

Overaa $321,000.00 | ADRoP Construction 06/05/25
Transfer




Financial Impact: X Yes No

Funding Source/ Recap:
Fiscal Year Budget as approved

Material Included for Information/Consideration:
Copy of Wire Transfer Request

Action Required: Resolution X Motion Review
Board Action
Resolution No._ Motion By Second By
Ayes Abstained
Noes Absent
Reagendized Date No Action Taken




MEMORANDUM

TO: Dana Jacobson or Brett Miller

rrom: Oty (ogm Ao

s 52325

Subject: Manual Check Request

This is a request for a manual check to be processed as listed below:

Vendor name and address
{for remittance)

Amount of Request

Disposition Method:
Return to Requestor / Federal
Express / Regular Mail

Pollgier Divrdown | | Vet o
P /}7 O
Assouumhon [ ./ ﬁ,ﬂ LA uertw
Expense
Account - —
number(s) BUB- L§LS - D000 -SL2- ©)

R fi \ ‘
cason ot pm\{wl e T%VWVS Mayiot Smlt Tee

Request:

Lo e vemamdw of The L@UWT

Supporting documentation for this request:

Is attached

Will be returned to Accounting
upon receipt

Please sign below as approval for issuance of this manual payment.

Ap@d by:

S/a&/ 25

Dana Jacobson or Brett Miller Date




ST-9-9 SZ-PT A4 193USHIOM 1sonbay Jajsuel) asp\sIajsues) anm\sianat-sowsw\1dag saueurd\Jununoiv\:s

A
. \ﬁj\(\wd Q )\\% é Q :Aq 3uijuo Ises|s. 10§ panciddy

e

N Q\\KJ Y %M.w \ .»n Anua auuo
d ) LN ﬁ\u m @ A
00°000'66 $ 12303 Auanoe aam Ajeg , A '
N,
00°000°66 S| 42fsunsy anm 0301
00°000'66 $ £0-ET$-0000-00v5-009 |(w0) Juswhed Aiaalap Jaiem paaueape SZoz "suny) $29090 5202/9/9 Kuoqiny
$3500 AUBAIIPP INBO JIIEM BJOPUSIN B3 SinT ues
ol
unowy *Ou JUN02JY 19 uondudsag *OU 9310AU] 318 IDI0AUY JOpUSA

[ s202/6/9 | @1ep aseajpy [szoz/9/9 ] paisanbay Jajsuest aam




L

Sldaie

\.Qédbj { ..%M.V@m W.w «

s1eQ

)

Aq Aua auyuQ

!

— sy'szZe'sL  $ jero1n08-Aed Ajteq _ ,
-

mv.mNN~m,N M wmown utNE.ADQ 19301
00°0SLLY S £0-£1S-0000-0TTS-009 4V 0052 Aedaid 8ny §25090 SZ0Z/9/9 (vi-yasn)
uonewrIay Jo neaung
S¥'Sis9y S LO-£T1S-0000-¥T15-009 4v 56T Aedaad 3ny $7S090 5202/9/9 {(vi-ugsn)
uoeWRIVY JO neaung
{ooo0t'sT) $ £0-€15-0000-0115-009 4V 0001 ptedasd Aepy $7S090 520Z/9/9 (v1-ygsn)
uoilewe|day Jo neasng

junowy *0OU JUNOJJY 19 uondiuasag *OU 9I10AU| paiedasd JOpUBA
21ep deday JuawAed

s202/6/9 ajep asesoy

|szoz/9/9

paisanbai JuawAed aoS-Aed




SZ-bTAd 199USHION 159nbay JajsueL] BIM\SIBJSURIL BIIM\SPNT-SoWdN\1dag 2oueud\Buunodv\:s

ST-6-9
~ | L (1) 210
ﬁ,mu C | Wwi /
7B 17 \w\v w\g m/v :Ag 2UIjuo Jses|al 10§ panosddy
v L
TN T ~aea
Aq Aijus auluQ
00°00T°TZE $ 8303 Ayianoe aum Ajteq
00°00T°12E § | Jafsupiy anm (3ol
00001 'TZE S 20-1ST-621D-TSET-009 SZ/1E/5-S7/T/S UoNINASLO] JOHAY £ S20Z/S/9 033 RRUBAQ D
unowy “OU JUNONY 19 uondudssg “OU 9910AT] STREETL FTIETY

~ sz0z/ot/9 | vep searey _mNaN\m\w _ pasanbay Jajsues] SiM




<

Q .
&.0 *s o'

‘b},’S’

‘\\\\\\\\\;||..
QUNTY 2 n,
SO PN

.'. 'ES‘ SRR e % "

v
L“' [
r

“ll
Wy

l...l

)
Y L]
Vo, 5 100"

‘...-..f.... c

O
W LLISTER,
."Il\ﬁ\\\\\“\

%
Jﬁhb

Agenda
Item
# 4



Fiscal Year 2025 On-Call Contract Activity Report
MCC Controls dba Primex - *Control System Services {SCADA Services)
Contract #: PRIMEX-2024 OC

Board Meeting 6/ 25/25
**NTE Contract Task Order Status Task Order Contract uf.so:_: Task Order Task Order Description Task Order Issued Payments to
Amount Amount Remaining Number Date Date

$ 813,000
Open S 30,0001 S 783,000 1 Control System Services 8.27.24 $  20,494.75
Closed S 48,1781 S 734,822 2 PLC install and system start up RTU 20 8.26.24 S 48,177.80
Closed S 46,3481 S 688,474 3 PLC install and system start up RTU 9 8.27.24 $  46,347.80
Closed S 103,8501$ 584,624 4 Replacement hardware for RTU 3/4/6/7/17 10.17.24 $  103,849.54
Closed S 47,058 1S 537,566 5 RTU-6 and device upgrades 1.29.25 S 47,057.80
Closed S 48,228 1S 489,338 6 RTU-7 and device upgrades 1.31.25 $ 48,227.80
Open S 46,298 | S 443,041 7 RTU-3 and device upgrades 1.31.25 S -
Open $ 47,758 1 $ 395,283 8 RTU-4 and device upgrades 1.31.25 S -
Open S 47,2881 S 347,995 9 RTU-17 and device upgrades 1.31.25 $ -

$ 813,000 $ 465,005 S 347,995 $  314,155.49

*SBCWD Board approved 7.31.24, Contract #PRIMEX-2024 OC

**Contract expires 7.31

.27




NSy,

]
SSTOUNTY it

Lat0t2%a, <

5 O -.OQS\H\BUSHEE-.‘% "

' .t....;....o ~.
"yor ISTER,

L TTEATR A

Agenda
I[tem

# 5




DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-14

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
ADOPTING THE 2025-26 SALARY SCHEDULE TO COMPLY WITH
CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CALPERS)
STATUTORY AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS FOR COMPENSATION
EARNABLE AND PUBLICLY AVAILABLE PAY SCHEDULES

WHEREAS, all employers must comply with the compensation earnable and
publicly available pay schedules provisions contained in California Code of
Regulations (CCR) Title 2, Section 570.5 and amendments to CCR Section 571,
subdivision (b); and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to review and duly approve and adopt in
accordance with requirements of applicable public meetings laws, a publicly
available pay schedule; and

WHEREAS, attached to this resolution and incorporated by reference is the
District’s comprehensive salary schedule which will be made publicly available on
the District’s website and provided upon request; and

WHEREAS, this resolution confirms and formally adopts, but does not
modify any salary rates previously approved by the District; and

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San
Benito County Water District that the San Benito County Water District hereby
adopts and confirms the salary schedule to. comply with California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) statuary and regulatory requirements
for compensation earnable and publicly available pay schedules.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water
District this 25t day of June, 2025, by the following vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS:

NOES: DIRECTORS:

ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:

ABSENT: DIRECTORS:



DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

(Signature of presiding Board member
Attested by Board Secretary
Resolution #2025-14)

Doug Williams
President

ATTEST:

Barbara L. Mauro
Board Secretary



DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

San Benito County Water District
Publicly Available Salary Schedule
Board Adopted 6-25-25

Field and Office
Effective 7/7/25

Rate

Classification Type |Step A|Step B|Step C|StepD|Step E|StepF|Step G| Step H
Accounting Technician monthly 5,092| 5,296/ 5,508 5,728| 5,957| 6,196| 6,443 6,701
Customer Account Specialist | monthly 4,219 4,388] 4,563] 4,746] 4,935] 5,133] 5,338 5,552
Customer Account Specialist Il monthly 4,641 4,827/ 5,020[ 5,221 5430| 5647 5,873 6,107
Customer Account Specialist lll monthly 5,105{ 5,309 5,521 5,742] 5,972] 6,211 6,459 6,717
Electrical/Electronic Technician monthly 6,498| 6,758| 7,029] 7,310| 7,602] 7,906| 8,222 8,551
Engineer (unlicensed) monthly 6,378 6,633 6,898) 7,174 7,461 7,760 8,070 8,393
Engineering Technician monthly 5,546| 5,767 5,998 6,238 6,487| 6,747 7,017 7,298
*Executive Assistant/Board Clerk monthly 5,360 5,574| 5,797\ 6,029] 6,270 6,521 6,782 7,053
Maintenance | monthly 4,329| 4,502| 4,682 4,870 5,064| 5,267| 5,478 5,697
Maintenance Il monthly 4,763 4,953| 5,151| 5,357| 5,572 5,795 6,026 6,267
Maintenance lIl monthly 5477| 5,696| 5,923| 6,160 6,407 6,663] 6,930 7,207
Maintenance Trainee monthly 3,608 3,752 3,903| 4,059 4,221] 4,390 4,565 4,748
Office Specialist | monthly 3,835| 3,988] 4,148| 4,314| 4,486| 4,665 4,852 5,046
Office Specialist Il monthly 4,219{ 4,388 4,563] 4,746 4,935 5,133] 5,338 5,552
Office Specialist Il monthly 4,641| 4,827| 5,020 5,221) 5430| 5,647 5,873 6,107
Water Distribution/Maint. | monthly 5,042| 5,244| 5,453| 5,671] 5,898| 6,134 6,380 6,635
Water Distribution/Maint. Il monthly 5,547| 5,768| 5,999| 6,239| 6,489 6,748| 7,018 7,299
Water Distribution/Maint. Ill monthly 6,378| 6,633| 6,898 7,174 7,461] 7,760, 8,070 8,393
Water Programmer |l monthly 5105| 5,309] 5,521] 5,742| 5,972| 6,211 6,459 6,717
Water Resources Technician | monthly 5,142| 5,347| 5,561| 5,784| 6,015 6,256] 6,506 6,766
Water Resources Technician |l monthly 5,657| 5,883| 6,118 6,363| 6,618/ 6,882 7,158 7,444
*incl. 2.5% Bd approved 7/24/24

Management/Confidential/Professional
Effective 7/7/25

Rate
Classification Type Step A|Step B|Step C|Step D|Step E|Step F | Step G | Step H
Accountant | monthly 5,599| 5,823| 6,056 6,298/ 6,550 6,812 7,085 7,368
Accountant Ii monthly 6,159| 6,406| 6,662| 6,928| 7,206| 7,494| 7,794 8,105
Deputy District Engineer monthly | 11,375[ 11,830| 12,303| 12,795| 13,307| 13,839] 14,393| 14,969
Engineer | (Assistant)* monthly | 6,785] 7,056] 7,338] 7,632] 7,937] 8,255 8585 8,928
Engineer Il (Associate)* monthly 7,490| 7,790 8,101| 8,425 8,762| 9,113 9,477 9,857
Engineer Il (Senior)* monthly 9,347| 9,721) 10,110] 10,514] 10,935| 11,372] 11,827] 12,300
Finance Manager monthly 7,977| 8,296| 8,628 8,973 9,332 9,706] 10,094 10,498
HR/Administrative Analyst monthly 6,756| 7,026) 7,307| 7,599| 7,903] 8,219] 8,548 8,890
Operations & Maintenance Manager | monthly 9,311| 9,684| 10,071| 10,474| 10,893| 11,328| 11,782 12,253
Supenising Accountant monthly 7,083 7,367| 7,661/ 7,968/ 8,286 8,618 8,963 9,321
Water Consenation Program Manage| monthly 7,083| 7,367| 7,661| 7,968 8,286 8,618 8,963 9,321
*Professional Engineer Series
1
Executive Management
Rate
Classification Annual Type Effective Date
General Manager $240,000 - |300,000{ monthly|20,000 to max of 25,000 |5/20/24 (Res.2024-18)
Board Approved 5/20/24 hourly [115.38 - 144.23
Assistant General Manager $200,000 -|240,000{ monthly| 16,667 to max of 20,000 [11/01/24 (Res 2024-40)
Board Approved 10/30/24 hourly |96.15 - 115.38
District Engineer $170,500 - |203,500{ monthly| 14,208 to max of 16,958 [07/07/25 (Res 2025-10)
Board Approved 5/28/25 hourly |81.97 -97.94
1

Longevity Pay: Employees hired by the District before January 1, 2013 who have more than five (5) years of continuous
District service, shall receive longevity pay in the amount of eight percent (8%).




San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

4

Agenda Item: (g

Meeting Date: June 25, 2025
Submitted By: Brett Miller
Presented By: Brett Miller

Agenda Title: Consider Approval of Ordinance Establishing Capacity Fees with the District’s
Zone 6 Service Area, Second Reading

SUBJECT:

Second reading of a proposed Ordinance of the Board of Directors of the San Benito County
Water District establishing capacity fees for new water service connections within the District’s
Zone 6 service area (“Capacity Fee Ordinance”) and adding Chapter 4.53 to Title 4 of the
District Code; public hearing on Capacity Fee Ordinance; adoption of a Notice of Exemption
under the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”).

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

1. Hold a Public Hearing on Potential Adoption of the Capacity Fee Ordinance.

2. Conduct the Second Reading of the Capacity Fee Ordinance; Adopt the Capacity Fee
Ordinance and Add the Capacity Fee Ordinance as Chapter 4.53 to the District Code.
(Attachment 1.)

3. Approve the Capacity Fee Ordinance and Direct Staff to File a Notice of Exemption
under CEQA. (Attachment 4.)

DISCUSSION:

The capacity fees proposed by the Capacity Fee Ordinance will apply to all new water service
connections that receive treated water from any of the District’s wholesale water customers
within the District’s Zone 6 zone of benefit. The Capacity Fee Ordinance requires a one-time
payment of $12,327 per equivalent meter (“EM”), the full payment of which will be due prior to
obtaining the respective building permit(s) for the development project. The revenues collected
from capacity fees will be used to fund the costs of new water supply projects that the San Benito
Urban Areas Water Supply and Treatment Master Plan Update (“Master Plan”) determined were
needed to meet anticipated future development. As a result, the intent of the Capacity Fee
Ordinance is to require that new development pay the costs for the new water supply projects

1-



that are needed to accommodate projected future growth, as opposed to using fees paid by
existing customers to subsidize that cost.
sidize that cost.

Under section 66013 of the Government Code, the District has the statutory authority to adopt
capacity fees for new water service connections. Capacity fees are also commonly known as
capacity charges, developer fees, development impact fees, or connection fees. Capacity fees are
one-time capital charges assessed against a new development to recover the proportional share of
capital facility investment necessary to accommodate growth. Capacity fees cannot exceed the
estimated reasonable cost of providing the service for which the fee is charged. If a proposed
capacity fee exceeds the estimated reasonable cost of providing service, then it is subject to a
two-thirds voter approval requirement. (Government Code section 66013(a).)

e service for which the fee is charged. If a proposed capacity fee exceeds the estimated
reasonable cost of providing service, then it is subject to a two-thirds voter approval requirement.
(Government Code section 66013(a).)

In order to demonstrate that a proposed capacity fee does not exceed the estimated reasonable
cost of the service provided and that voter approval of the capacity fee is not required, District
staff engaged Raftelis Financial Consultants to develop a Capacity Fee Report. (Attachment 2.)
This report evaluated the anticipated costs of the District’s planned water supply expansion
projects and used established methodology to determine the appropriate dollar amount for the
capacity fee. The analysis in the Capacity Fee Report demonstrates that the proposed capacity
fee amount ($12,327 per EM) does not exceed the estimated reasonable cost of providing water
service to new development. More details regarding the projects that will be funded by the
capacity fee and the Capacity Fee Report’s findings are discussed below.

ndings are discussed below.

Proposed Capacity Fees. The Capacity Fee Report evaluated the District’s growth-related capital
costs to be recovered by the capacity fees. This included the District’s capital costs associated
with two growth projects: (1) the North Area Groundwater Phase 1; and (2) BF Sisk growth-
related capacity. The District’s estimated adjusted capital cost for these growth projects is $115.3
million. The proposed capacity fee is therefore based on the adjusted capital cost divided by the
estimated equivalent meters that can be served by that increased capacity.

increased capacity.

Line item

Adjusted Capital Cost $115,294,935
Equivalent Meters 9,353
Capacity Fee, $/EM $12,327

The proposed base capacity fee is $12,327 for each new single-family dwelling unit (an
“Equivalent Dwelling Unit” or “EDU”). The standard EM size, on which the capacity fee is
based, relies on the assumption that a 5/8” meter is needed for each EDU. As the table below
demonstrates, when the meter size goes up, then the applicable capacity fee increases
proportionally. The applicable capacity fee for meters larger than 4” will be determined by the
District upon request.




Meter Size Ratio Fee, S/mtr

5/8" 1.00 $12,327
3/4" 1.50 $18,490
1" 2.50 $30,817
1.5" 5.00 $61,635
2" 8.00 $98,616
3" 17.50 $215,722
4" 31.50 $388,300

The capacity fees will be eligible for annual inflationary increases each year based on the
Consumer Price Index for the San Francisco Bay Area All Urban Index. As the base meter size is
adjusted annually, the other meter sizes will be adjusted according to the ratios shown in the
table above.

Addition of Chapter 4.53 to the District Code. The District has not previously adopted capacity
fees for new water service connections. Thus, the District’s Code of Regulations does not contain
an applicable code chapter to which the proposed capacity fees can be incorporated. As a result,
the proposed Capacity Fee Ordinance will add Chapter 4.53 to the District Code, setting forth the
capacity fees and associated regulations.

Capacity Fee Ordinance Adoption Procedures. Under applicable law, the District cannot
approve or adopt an Ordinance within five days of the first reading, and final adoption of the
Ordinance must be at a regular meeting. The District voted to waive the first reading of the
Ordinance at its June 2, 2025 meeting, as allowed under applicable law. The Ordinance is set for
adoption (i.e., the “second reading”) at the June 25, 2025 meeting following a public hearing at
which oral or written presentations by interested members of the public will be allowed.
Following the public hearing, the Board of Directors shall read the title of the Capacity Fee
Ordinance and it can then be adopted by a majority vote of the Board. Under applicable law, the
Ordinance will become effective on the sixty-first day after its adoption.

Direct Staff to File a Notice of Exemption under CEQA. The District’s decision to adopt capacity
fees is not subject to environmental review under CEQA. First, the capacity fees, in and of
themselves, do not have the potential for resulting in either a direct physical change in the
environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment and
therefore are not considered a “project” under CEQA. (Pub. Resources Code, § 21065; 14 Cal.
Code Regs., § 15378, subd. (a).) Further, capacity fees are a government funding mechanism that
does not involve any commitment by the District to any specific project which may resultin a
potentially significant physical impact on the environment. (14 Cal. Code Regs., § 15378, subd.
(b)(4).) District Staff prepared the Notice of Exemption in Attachment 4 in collaboration with the
District’s legal counsel and, if the Board of Directors adopts the Capacity Fee Ordinance, then
the District’s legal counsel recommends that the Board of Directors direct District staff to file the
attached Notice of Exemption.




FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff estimates that the proposed capacity fees will generate approximately $115 million in
revenue, as adjusted by future inflation, to cover the District’s estimated capital costs associated
with new growth.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Proposed Ordinance of the Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District
(Establishing Capacity Fees Within the District’s Zone 6 Service Area; Adding Chapter
4.53 to the District Code).

2. Raftelis Water Capacity Fee Final Report.
3. Finance Committee Recommendation

4. Notice of Exemption under CEQA




ATTACHMENT 1

Proposed Ordinance of the Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District
Establishing Capacity Fees Within the District's Zone 6 Service Area; Adding Chapter
' 4.53 to the District Code.




DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

ORDINANCE NO. 66

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
(ESTABLISHING CAPACITY FEES WITHIN THE DISTRICT’S ZONE 6
SERVICE AREA;
ADDING CHAPTER 4.53 TO THE DISTRICT CODE)

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF THE SAN BENITO
COUNTY WATER DISTRICT THAT

ORDINANCE NO. 66 IS ENACTED AS

FOLLOWS:

Authority. Pursuant to the Water Code Appendix sections 70-6 and 70-
9.2, the San Benito County Water District (District) has the express
authority to impose fees and charges for water service by any and every
lawful act necessary for a sufficient water supply to be available for present
and future beneficial use, and to establish such fees and charges by
ordinance. District ordinances shall be adopted pursuant to the same
procedures applicable to the County of San Benito. The District adopts
this Ordinance to establish capacity fees all new water service connections
that will receive treated water from the District’s wholesale water
customers within the District’s Zone 6 service area, as the boundaries of
Zone 6 may be amended from time to time, including the Sunnyslope
County Water District and the City of Hollister, as well as potential future
customers in the City of San Juan Bautista, pursuant to sections 66013
and 66016 of the California Government Code.

Findings. The following findings are adopted by the Board.

a. The District owns water treatment plants in the Hollister Urban Area
that deliver treated water to the District’s wholesale water
customers, which provide municipal and industrial water service
within those customers’ respective service areas. These wholesale
customers include the Sunnyslope County Water District and the
City of Hollister. The District contemplates that the City of San Juan
Bautista may be added as a wholesale water customer.

b. The District manages local and imported surface water through the
San Benito River System and the San Felipe Distribution System in
order to deliver imported Central Valley Project (“CVP”) water to the
aforementioned retail water agencies.

C. The District’s 2023 San Benito Urban Areas Water Supply and
Treatment Master Plan Update states that current urban water

-6-



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

demands are approximately 5,560 acre-feet per year (“AFY”), and
that, due to anticipated urban growth, projected urban water
demands will be approximately 12,500 AFY by 2045. Because
existing water supplies cannot satisfy anticipated future demand,
the 2023 San Benito Urban Areas Water Supply and Treatment
Master Plan Update identifies potential future projects that can
provide supplemental water supplies for new development.

d. The District finds that new growth within the District’s Zone 6 which
will receive treated water from District-owned treatment facilities
should pay a fair share of the cost of future projects that can provide
supplemental water supplies for new development and that existing
customers should not subsidize the cost of providing supplemental
water for new growth.

The capacity fees established herein are for the purposes of funding
capital projects and improvements necessary to provide
supplemental water for new growth within the District’s Zone 6.

Pursuant to Government Code section 66016.6, the District
prepared a Water Capacity Fee Report (“Capacity Fee Study”) to
evaluate capacity fees that can be charged to new development to
fund the costs of supplemental water supplies that do not exceed
the estimated reasonable cost of providing water service.

Pursuant to Government Code section 66016.6, at least 14 days
prior to the meeting held on June 2, 2025, the District posted on its
website, shared with interested stakeholders, and made available to
at its district office, located at 30 Mansfield Road in Hollister,
California, the Capacity Fee Study containing evidence to support
that the capacity fees do not exceed the estimated reasonable cost
of providing service.

h. The District’s decision to adopt capacity fees is not subject to
environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA). First, the capacity fees, in and of themselves, do not
have the potential for resulting in either a direct physical change in
the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical
change in the environment and therefore are not considered a
“project” under CEQA. (Pub. Resources Code, § 21065; 14 Cal. Code
Regs., § 15378, subd. (a).) Further, capacity fees are a government
funding mechanism that does not involve any commitment by the
District to any specific project which may result in a potentially
significant physical impact on the environment. (14 Cal. Code Regs.,
§ 15378, subd. (b)(4).)



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

1. The capacity fees will not be levied as an incident of property
ownership but are levied solely at the request of a property owner or
its agency for the privilege of gaining access to water supplies from
the District’s treated water system and related facilities.

] The capacity fees for new connections do not involve rates, delivery
charges, or fixed monthly charges for water delivery or treatment.
The capacity fees are imposed only as a condition of receiving water
service through new connections.

k. The capacity fees adopted by this Ordinance do not exceed the
estimated reasonable costs of providing the services for which the
fees or charges are imposed.

Adoption of Water Capacity Fee Report. The capacity fees reflected in the
Raftelis Water Capacity Fee Report are hereby adopted as the new capacity
fees for all new water service connections that will receive treated water
from the District’s wholesale water customers within the District’s Zone 6
service area, as the boundaries of Zone 6 may be amended from time to
time, including the Sunnyslope County Water District and the City of
Hollister as well as potential future customers in the City of San Juan
Bautista.

Addition of Chapter 4.53 to the District Code. Chapter 4.53 shall be added
to the District Code of Regulations setting forth the capacity fees adopted
pursuant to this Ordinance, and shall read in full as follows:

Chapter 4.53 - CAPACITY FEES
4.53.010 - Purpose and intent.

The purpose and intent of this Chapter is to set forth the rules
and regulations that shall apply to capacity fees for new water
service connections that will receive treated water from the
District’s wholesale water customers within the Zone 6 service
area, as the boundaries of Zone 6 may be amended from time
to time, including the Sunnyslope County Water District and
the City of Hollister, as well as potential future customers in
the City of San Juan Bautista.

4.53.020 - Applicability.

The capacity fees established by this Ordinance shall apply to
new water service connections that will receive treated water
from the District’s wholesale water customers within the
District’s Zone 6 service area, as the boundaries of Zone 6 may



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

be amended from time to time, including the Sunnyslope
County Water District and the City of Hollister, as well as
potential future customers in the City of San Juan Bautista.

4.53.030 - Effective date.

The capacity fees shall take effect at 12:01 a.m. on the sixty-
first day following the final Board action on the adoption of
the capacity fee or an increase thereto.

4.53.040 - Capacity fees.

A capacity fee for the right of service in existing, proposed, and
pending water supply, treatment, storage, transmission, and
distribution facilities of the District shall be payable to the
District for all new water service connections that will receive
treated water from the District’s wholesale water customers
within the District’s Zone 6 service area, as the boundaries of
Zone 6 may be amended from time to time, including the
Sunnyslope County Water District and the City of Hollister, as
well as potential future customers in the City of San Juan
Bautista. The capacity fees shall be in the amounts as set
forth in Appendix A of this Chapter, incorporated herein by
reference.

4.53.050 - Adjustment of capacity fees.

The capacity fees shall be automatically adjusted each July 1
using the Consumer Price Index for the San Francisco Bay
Area—All Urban Index for May of the then current year and
May of the previous year.

4.53.060 - Payment of all fees.

No property or facility within the boundaries of the District’s
Zone 6 service area, as the boundaries of Zone 6 may be
amended from time to time, shall be eligible to receive treated
water from the District’s wholesale water customers, including
the Sunnyslope County Water District and the City of
Hollister, as well as potential future customers in the City of
San Juan Bautista, until all applicable capacity fees are paid
in full. The full payment of all applicable capacity fees shall be
due prior to obtaining the respective building permit(s) for the
development project.



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

4.53.070 - Effect of Repeal or Amendment on Past Actions
and Obligations.

This Ordinance does not affect prosecutions for ordinance
violations committed prior to the effective date of this
Ordinance, does not waive any fee or penalty due and unpaid
on the effective date of this Ordinance, and does not affect the
validity of any bond or case deposit posted, filed, or deposited
pursuant to the requirements of any ordinance.

4.53.080 - Expiration of building permit.

If a building permit expires, those capacity fees previously
paid in relation thereto shall not be refunded. If a new building
permit is subsequently sought for the same parcel, a capacity
fee shall be paid prior to issuance of a new permit. The amount
of the capacity fee shall be the current capacity fee less the
prior amount paid.

4.53.090 - Fee limitation.

The capacity fees adopted by this Ordinance shall not exceed
the estimated reasonable costs of providing the services for
“which the capacity fees are imposed. Any charges that exceed
the reasonable costs of providing the service shall be
refunded.

4,53.100 - Record of fees.

The District shall keep accurate records concerning the
collection of capacity fees. Such records shall set forth the
amount of capacity fees paid for each parcel of land, building,
or improvement within the District’s Zone 6 boundaries.

4.53.110 - Rounded fees.
Capacity fees shall be rounded to the nearest dollar.
4.53.120 - Appeals.

An appeal from any decision or determination made pursuant
to this Chapter may be made to the Board of Directors. Any
such appeal shall be in writing and shall be filed with the
District’s Manager of Administration, Finance, and Business
Services within 15 days after the decision or determination. In
the absence of such an appeal, the decision or determination

-10-



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

shall be deemed final. In the event of such an appeal, the
decision or determination appealed shall be final upon the
final decision reached by the Board of Directors upon such an
appeal.

5. Effective Date of Ordinance. Pursuant to Government Code section
66017(a), this ordinance shall become effective and in full force and effect
at 12:01 a.m. on the sixty-first day after its final passage.

0. Publication. Within 15 days after its passage, this Ordinance shall be
published once in a newspaper of general circulation in the County of San
Benito, State of California, together with the names of the members of the
Board of Directors voting for and against the same.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 25t day of June 2025, by the San Benito
County Water District Board of Directors by the following vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS:
NOES: DIRECTORS:
ABSENT: DIRECTORS:
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:

-11-



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

(Signature of presiding Board member
Attested by Board Secretary
Ordinance #66)

Doug Williams
President

ATTEST:

Barbara L. Mauro
Board Secretary

-12-



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

APPENDIX A - WATER CAPACITY FEES

A RATE PER EQUIVALENT METER - $12,327

B. WATER SUPPLY CAPACITY AT DIFFERENT METER SIZES

The table included herein sets forth the capacity fee for different meter sizes, from 5/8” to 4”.
The District will charge new single family residences which are required to install a 1” meter for
fire requirements at the 5/8” capacity fee.

Meter Size Ratio Fee, S/mtr
5/8" 1.00 $12,327
3/4" 1.50 $18,490

1" 2.50 $30,817
1.5" 5.00 $61,635
2" 8.00 $98,616
3" 17.50 $215,722
4" 31.50 $388,300

Meters Larger than 4”: The capacity fee for meters that are greater than
4” shall be set by the District upon request.

-13-



ATTACHMENT 2

Raftelis Water Capacity Fee Final Report.

-14-



\\1: J

SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Zone 6 Water Rate and Capacity
| Fee Study
FINAL REPORT/
JANUARY 25, 2023

\\hl& u!

San Benito County
Water District

"""""""""

AN By,
Fa .~
-\
p—
3

Water Resources
~ N Economics
15- ‘ v

= RAFTELIS



-16-



= RAFTELIS

January 25, 2023

Mr. Jeff Cattaneo

General Manager

San Benito County Water District
P.O. Box 899

Hollister, CA 95024

Subject: Zone 6 Water Financial Plan, Cost-of-Service, Rate Study, and Capacity Fee DRAFT FINAL
Report

Dear Mr. Cattaneo:

Raftelis and Water Resources Economics are pleased to provide this Zone 6 Water Financial Plan, Cost-of-
Service, Rate Study, and Capacity Fee Report for the San Benito County Water District (SBCWD) to help
SBCWD maintain its strong financial position as it addresses water quality, supply, and reliability issues, as
well as to establish water rates that are equitable and align with Proposition 218 and Proposition 26.

The major objectives of the study include the following:

e Develop financial plans for the water enterprise to ensure financial sufficiency, meet operation and
maintenance (O&M) costs, ensure sufficient funding for capital needs, and maintain required reserve
levels

» Conduct a current water cost-of-service that aligns with Prop. 218 and Prop. 26

e Propose water and power rates for Water Years (WY) starting March 1, 2023, March 1, 2024, and
March 1, 2025

e Develop a capacity fee for new water supply capacity projects

The report summarizes the key findings and recommendations related to the development of the financial
plan and the development of the updated water and power rates.

It has been a pleasure working with you, and we thank you and the SBCWD staff for the support provided
during the course of this study.

Sincerely,
P4
Theresa Jurotich, P.E., PMP Sanjay Gaur
Manager, Raftelis Principal Consultant, Water Resources Economics

=]7=

www raftelis com



Contents

1.1.
1.2,
1.3.

2.1.
2.2.

3.1.
3.2
3.3.

41.

4.2.
4.3.

MIGLNOTOIOGY ... crveeccmrnrersrnenns corersmssmsansisisesss sissnes sastsssiasnsasssns sosmussssansonsssasessssnssasssasssarenssn 1
Proposed Financial Plan and Revenue Adjustments...........ccccociiiinniniiinniiie 1
Proposed Three-Year Rates ................cccccconvinnmiismmmsminmnsisssnsesssensassantssesssnsasasssensuassors 3
1.3.1. AgriCUHUFAI WBLET BUBLES ... e s b0 8 5550 5803 o k0 803 S5051 56 SRERIS €498 PATBRITAS SR 43390 553 3
1.3.2. M&I Water Rates ... o 4
1.3.3. Water Supply-Reliability Charge..........cccooiii e 5
1.3.4. GroUuNAWAEr RaAES .. ..ot e et e atae e s ae e e st e s e e 5
1.3.5. ROCYCIOA WRlOr RBBS...............cocnmnnmvasiniosas 55 055inss 5 655 ssa 38858 SHEAY FFamiEves FoSEN03 53 54 wwes wabes 5
1.3.6. POWEE CREBTDIO ... ..o 5555 s s susvmsssns 65 ks S8 5550153 Sy g 675 o104 £33 oxi cretamss s mes s 6
Study Background ... s e s 7
SCoPe of the StUdY.......c..ccovcimrsimsersmrssmsssmsenmsssss sssarssssssnssessssannmre xassssnsssssssssnisassssanss 7
California Constitution — Article Xill D, Section 6 (Prop 218) .........ccccevciniiinnininnnnne 8
California Constitution — Article X, SeCtion 2 .......oveciveiiiin i 8
Cost-Based Rate Setting Methodology ........c.cccovvvvimiiriiiinnn e, 9
3.3.1. Calctlate Revenue ReqUIPemMIONT..........u v s sves srss voses sorss susstmmaumyorsssasarens e vigs muarss spsons 9
3.3.2. Cost-0f-Service ANGIYSIS .........oiiiiiiiiiiie e 9
3.3.3. Rate Design and CalCulations ..........c.ccvviiiiiiiiiii i 9
334, RO ADODYON 1vrivvonssvencon semeovsommmmusmonmes suenssn coxs prees veses smad ok o6 56 6054508 545 548658455 SHSSTSRSUES AR 0¥ 9
Projected Revenue at Existing Rates ... 10
4.1.1. Current Water and POWEE RAtES.. .. c..oxcrsssmmss sosmsnmssusns sosssrs sunse saves sos smsms vs e sos vt veaw swicsn o s cas 10
4.1.2. Projected Water and Power USe ... 11
4.1.3. ReVENUE PrOJECHIONS ......ooceieieiiiite e 11
Operating and Maintenance EXPenses........cccovvrnnmninicnninnnnccsnnnis e e 12
Capital Improvement Program and FUunding.......cccccceviimiinncnn i, 13
4.3.1. Capital IMPrOVBMBII PUEA ..o iores irssn s omssmssss ssvan sonssves orsissmams ssymssoms sy e svess syswyrssssa s 13

4.3.2. Capital Sources and Uses of Funr‘~1 .......................................................................... 14



4.4.
4.5.

5.1.
5.2.
5.3.

6.1.
6.2.
6.3.
6.4.
6.5.
6.6.

7.1.

7.2.

A 3. 3, DDt SO VICE oo et e e 14

Proposed Financial Plan and Revenue Adjustments.............cccceniiiiinninnniens 15
Water Supply-Reliability Projects FUNAiNG ... 17
Revenue Requirements (Costs-of-Service) to be Allocated...............ccccveniinn 18
Allocation of Revenue Requirements to Cost Components..........ccccceniincinnnen. 19
Unit Cost DeIVBLION.............cccccciiiiiiiiniissinsssamssuasismssns shommnsssnnssesssasss soaksss Koausssraues sromssns 21
Agricultural Water Rates ...........c.cccoiininiimninonnnnnn et 22
MBI WBLET RBLS...........covcvevonnsrssmamsrensnmmenmssseseness innsessssssss siiih S545Ew SHREASHHRS 4EVIEERIIAPSIFISIRRHOR 22
Water Supply-Reliability Charge..........ccccouvimmmmmn e 23
GrOUNGWERLET RALEE ............coooooeninnisosinssimmsssmonmasn s s (hsss v Eamens £ s &8 rFARTs VERLETRTEEASSERPRARNS 23
Recycled Water Rates........c..ccceivcimiiiimnniiiiien st 24
POWOT CRBIQE o ionsisvissrmmsrerisss ssmssnsssss sxesnssssess e sssassstsssuasressssen sonsassnessnenssessssssnsesnsnsns 24
Methodology Options ... e s 25
711, BUy=In MEthOG ... 25
71.2. InCremerital CoSt WSRO . ... ... oo o cosenmmmes o ssnes b s 5555 54555 K508 54508043 THHEN £95EREINENE 547 26
A T 517 B s PSSP PSP —— 26
7.14. Recomménded MeEthOOIOGY . ...t 27
Fee CalCUIAtioN.......cuuveiieiiiirriercie s ccnmmr s reesre s s ers s st rs s s s s ar e s arsssss s nnans e sann e e mananes 27

-19-



Tables

Table 1-1: Annual Revenue Adjustments ... ..ot 2
Table 1-2: Proposed Financial Plan Cashflow.............cccoiiiiiiii e 2
Table 1-3: Current and Proposed Agricultural Rates, $/AF ... 4
Table 1-4: Current and Proposed M&I Water Rates, $/AF ... 5
Table 1-5: Proposed Water Supply-Reliability Charge, $/AF ..., 5
Table 1-6: Current and Proposed Groundwater Rates, $/AF ... 5
Table 1-7: Current and Proposed Recycled Water & Power Rates, $/AF ... 6
Table 1-8: Current and Proposed Power Charges, $/AF ... 6
Table 4-1: Current Water and Power Rates ..o 10
Table 4-2: Projected Customer Usage, AF ... e 11
Table 4-3: Projected Power-Related Usage, AF ... 11
Table 4-4: Rate Revenue Under Existing Rates ..o 12
TaDIE 4-5: Other RBVEMUES ........veeeiiiie oot e ettt e e et e e s e e e s s st s s b e e e e e s r e e st staes b 12
Table 4-6: O8M EXDPENSES .......c.oeiiuiieiiieeieie ettt et ee e s e re e st e e e be e e re e e e e e s ab s e ar e i 12
Table 4-7: Budgeted and Proposed Capital Improvement Program ... 13
Table 4-8: Sources and Uses of Capital FUNAS ...........ccoo s 14
Table 4-9: EXisting Debt SEIVICE .......covieuiiiiieie it 14
Table 4-10: Proposed Debt ServiCe ..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiii it 15
Table 4-11: Annual Revenue AdjUStMments ... e 15
Table 4-12: Zone 6 Financial PIan ........cccoiviiiiiiiie i 16
Table 5-1: Projected Net Revenue Requirement, FY 2023..........ccccoiiiiriis 18
Table 5-2: Net O&M AIOCAHION ..........uiiiieiiie e e e e e s e e 20
Table 5-3: Net Capital-Related AOCAtION ..........coooiiiiiiiiii 20
Table 5-4: Unit Cost-of-Service, FY 2023 ... ... o it 21
Table 6-1: Current and Proposed Agricultural Rates, $/AF ..., 22
Table 6-2: Current and Proposed M&I Water Rates, $/AF ... 23
Table 6-3: Proposed Water Supply-Reliability Charge, $/AF ..., 23
‘Table 6-4: Current and Proposed Groundwater Rates, $/AF ... 24
Table 6-5: Current and Proposed Recycled Water and Power Rates, $/AF ... 24
Table 6-6: Current and Proposed Power Charges, $/AF ..., 24
Table 7-1: Estimated New Units Served by Growth Projects...........ccccciriiiriiinii, 27
Table 7-2: Water Supply Capacity FEE...........ccriiiiiiiiii i 27



Figures

Figure 1-1: Proposed Zone 6 Financial Plan ... 3
Figure 4-1: Capital Improvement PrOgram ...........ccooiiiiiiiiii e e 13
Figure 4-2: Zone 6 Projected Fund BalancCe.............occoiiiiiiiiic 16
Figure 4-3: Projected Debt Service COVErage .............ccciiiiiiiimiii i 17
Figure 7-1: Formula for Buy-In ApProach ...........cocciiiiiiiiiiiieoic e 25
Figure 7-2: Formula for Incremental Cost Approach...............oooi 26
Figure 7-3: Formula for Hybrid Method ettt 26

Appendices

Appendix A: Capital Improvement Program, Inflated
Appendix B: Water Supply-Reliability Cashflow Projection
Appendix C: O&M Allocation, Test Year

Appendix D: Net Plant Investment Allocation, Test Year

_21-



-02-



1. Executive Summary

The San Benito County Water District (SBCWD) engaged Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. and Water
Resources Economics (Raftelis Team) to conduct a comprehensive water rates and fees study that could be
utilized to evaluate and optimize user charges for SBCWD's water service while ensuring a proportionate
recovery of costs from the various user classes. This report documents the resultant findings, analyses, and
recommendations.

SBCWD manages the water resources within San Benito County and is the Groundwater Sustainability
Agency for the county. SBCWD provides retail and wholesale potable water services as well as groundwater
and recycled water. SBCWD owns two surface water treatment plants and manages local and impbrted
surface water through the San Benito River System and the San Felipe Distribution System. The drinking
water delivered to the Sunnyslope County Water District and City of Hollister becomes recycled water (from
the City of Hollister’s reclamation plant) that is used for irrigation. The imported water improves overall
water quality as the groundwater pumped from local aquifers has varying levels of salts and high mineral
content.

The major objectives of this study include the following:
e Develop a 10-year financial plan to ensure financial sufficiency and funding for operation and
" maintenance, capital improvement, and capital replacement expenses.

e Conduct a cost-of-service analysis for water services and proportionately allocate the costs of
providing services.

e Develop proposed water rates and capacity fees.

e Develop a report that demonstrates the nexus between SBCWD costs and rates, to align with the
requirements of Proposition 218 and Proposition 26.

This report summarizes the water rate study’s financial plan and rate development key findings and
recommendations.

VMethodoloavy

The Raftelis Team and SBCWD developed the proposed water rates and charges using cost-of-service
principles set forth by the American Water Works Association M1 Manual titled Principles of Water Rates, Fees
and Charges, Seventh Edition (AWW A M1 Manual) and any modifications, as applicable, to align with the
requirements of California’s Proposition 218 and related California law. Cost-of-service principles endeavor to
distribute costs to customer classes in proportion to the way each class uses or places demand on the water
system.

. - - - —r 1 o D w3 3 o €« 5 ~
roposed rinancial lan and RKevenue Adjusiments
i 3

- NS £

The financial planning model enables SBCWD to set rates and charges to generate sufficient revenue to meet
its short-term and long-term obligations, including reserve fund requirements. Table 1-1 shows the proposed
revenue adjustments for the rate setting period (FY 2023 - FY 2025) as well as potential future revenue
adjustments for planning purposes. While no revenue adjustment is planned for FY 2023, the cost-of-service
analysis may result in a change to rates. Revenue adinstments occur on March 1 for each year. The proposed

-23-



financial plan implements a new water supply-reliability charge to support projects that benefit existing

customers and a new capacity fee to support growth-related projects. This proposed scenario allows SBCWD
to maintain reserves, build a more reliable water supply, and meet growing demand.

Effective Date Increase

3/1/2023 0%
3/1/2024 2%
3/1/2025 2%
3/1/2026 2%
3/1/2027 2%
3/1/2028 3%
3/1/2029 3%
3/1/2030 3%
3/1/2031 3%
3/1/2032 3%

Table 1-2 shows the proposed financial plan incorporating the proposed revenue adjustments, water supply-
reliability projected revenue, and projected capacity fee revenue.

Ve N w

—-
-0

12

18

-

9
(o}

~

~

1

~

2
3

N

Lina Ham PY 2022 £Y 2023 £Y 2028 FY 2025 FY 2026 B 2027 FY 1028 FY 2029 2030 FY20:31 FY 2032
Revenues
Water Sales and Power Charges $4,841,584  $4,363,108 54,884,232 $4,905,673 54,927,435 $4,949,524  $4,971,544  $4,994,701  $5,017,799  $5,041,243  $5,065,033
Total Adjustments $0 S0 $32,562 5131472 $233,245 $337,567 $453,666 $629,603 $802,024 $981,182  $1,167,339
Water Supply-Refiability (1] $0 $114,919 $647,483  $1,082,291  $1,618,801 $2,358,619 52,502,291  $2,625766  $2,755,375  $2,891,426  $3,034,240
Capacity Fee Revenue $0  $1,148776  $3,462,681 $3,511,739 43,560,797 $3,613,943  $3,671,177  $3,724,324  $3,781,558  $3,834,704  $3,896,027
Other Revenue
Other Operating Revenue 528,400 $28,826 $29,258 $29,697 $30,143 $30,595 $31,054 $31,520 $31,992 $32,472 $32,959
Finished Water 57,007,058 $8,006,392 $8,124,891  $8,246,181 $8,370,332  $8,497,417  $8,627,511  $8,760,693  $8,897,010  $9,036,634  $8,836,845
Cost of Stored & Acquired Water j2] 51,689,341 $1,689,541 $1,689,541 $1,689,541 $1,689,541 $1,689,541  $1,689,541  $1,689,541  $1,689,541  $1,689,541  $1,689,541
Taxes and Assessments 8,785,000 $9,036,925 $9,213,730  $9,394,013  $9,577,841  $9,765,285  $9,956,416 $10,151,308 $10,330,033 510,552,669 $10,759,291
Other Non-Operating Revenues $344,250 $349,414 $354,655 $359,975 $365,374 $370,855 $376,418 $382,064 $387,795 $393,612 $399,516
Grants $87,400 $87,400 $87,400 $87,400 $87.400 $87,400 $87,400 487,400 $87,400 $87,400 $87,400
Interest [ncame 5185,310 $213,248 $242,297 $270,214 $294,100 $314,052 $317,985 $299,628 $275,658 $256,184 $239,684
Total Revenue $22,968,543 $25,538,549 $28,768,731 529,708,195 $30,755,009 $32,015,199 $32,695415 $33,376,746 $34,076,215 $34,797,067 $35,207,881
Expenses
0&M $14.305,085 $15,410,208 $15,931,685 $16,479,797 $17,048,141 $20,127,361 $23,003,963 $23,967,477 $24,567,224 $25,326,619  $25,893,495
Existing Debt Service $974,347 $932,534 5932,218 $932,695 $931,946 $931,990 $932,793 $932,354 $932,674 $816,958 5469,428
Proposed Debt Service s0 S0 $0 50 : 40 $3,136,802  $5,735,886  $5735.885 96,371,720  $6,371,720  $6,371,720
Capital Projects - Cash Funded [3] 62,163,280 98,742,674 $3,837,456  $7,301,445 $8,299,780  $3,192,148  $7,615,596 _ $8,577,803  $B,277,489  $2,355,573  §$5,229,882
Total Expenses $17,442,713 $25,085,415 $20,701,359 $24,713,938 $26,279,867 §$27,388,301 $37,288,239 $39,213,520 $40,149,106 $34,870,870 $37,964,526
Net Cash Flow (Annual Surplus/(Deficit)) $5,525,830 $453,134  $8,067,371  $4,994,257 $4,475,142 54,626,897  ($4,592,823) (55,836,774} (56,072,892) ($73,803} (52,756,644}
Beginning Batance $45,707,129 $51,232,959 $51,686,093 $59,753,464 §$64,747,722 $68,222,863 $73,849,761 $69,256,937 $63,420,163 $57,347,272 $57,273,468
Ending Balanca §51,232,953 $51,686,093 $59,753,464 $64,747,722 $69,222,863 §$73,849,761 $69,256.937 $63.420,163 $57,347,272 $57273,468 $54,516,824
Target Reserve $22,398,930 $24,274,453 $26,379,750 $28,791,905 $33,972,605 $43,575,319 $47,435,815 $45,934,883  $46,284,354 548,462,217 $47,643,753
Debt Coverage
Caiculated 3.80 12.00 17.39 17.85 18.43 373 199 196 181 1.84 1.92
Required 120 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 120

[1] For the bencfit of existing customers.

(2] Cost of Stored and Acquired Water cost act already captured within Finished Water. This is o pass-through cost from USBR.
[3] Cash from rate based revesues, tax revenue, and capacity fees.

Line 1 shows revenue from current rates, assuming no increase in rates only increased demand at the water
tréatment plants. Revenue from current rates includes San Felipe Distribution water , groundwater, recycled

water, and power charges. Line 2 shows the additio - 24 -:venue received from the revenue adjustments



proposed in Table 1-1. Lines 3 and 4 show two new proposed revenue streams, the water supply-reliability
rate to provide projects that benefit existing customers and the capacity fee to pay for growth-related projects.
Lines 5-11 show the other revenue line items including Finished Water and Taxes and Assessments. Interest
revenues (Line 11) decrease in FY 2029 through FY 2032 due to declining reserve balances caused by funding
major capital projects. Line 12 shows the projected revenues. Lines 13 — 16 summarize the O&M expense
projections, debt-related expenses, and capital outlays. Line 18 shows the annual surplus/deficit. Lines 19 and
20 show the beginning and ending Zone 6 fund balance, respectively. Line 21 shows the target reserves for
Zone 6. Lines 22 and 23 show the calculated and required debt service coverage ratio. The proposed financial
plan supports financial sufficiency and solvency for SBCWD to meet projected expenditures and financial
obligations, including debt service, debt coverage, and reserve targets.

Figure 1-1 graphically illustrates the operating Financial Plan — it compares existing (current) and proposed
revenues with projected expenses. The stacked bars show expenses, including O&M expenses, debt service,
and cash-funded CIP. Total revenues at existing and proposed rates are shown by horizontal black dashed
and black solid lines, respectively. Current revenue from existing rates does not meet future total expenses and
shows the nexus to the proposed revenue adjustments.

Financial Plan Annual Surplus/(Deficit) s Capital Projects/Transfers
Debt Service Q&M Expenses
$50 s Water Purchases = == Current Revenues
. ==mmes Proposed Revenues
]
3

$40 l I I _—

$30
-—---------------.
- on " - o an - e - V---

S SRR
| ey =

$10

$0

FY 2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 FY2031 FY2032

-$10

1.3. Proposed Three-Year Rates

1.3.1. Agricuitural Water Rates

The current and proposed agricultural water rates through FY 2025 are shown in Table 1-3. The March 1,
2023 Cost of Stored & Acquired Water! component rates were provided by SBCWD. The other rate
components (SLDMWA, SCVWD, and SBCWD) are based on cost-of-service.

! Pass-through cost from USBR. g



San Felipe: Agricultural Current March 1,2023 March 1,2024 March 1, 2025

Cost of Stored & Acquired Water [1) $100.84 $115.00 $117.30 $119.65
SLDMWA (2] $13.00 $11.51 $§11.74 $11.97
SCVWD [2] $61.45 $53.74 $54.81 $55.91
SBCWD $98.71 $114.43 $116.73 $119.06
Total $274.00 $294.68 $300.58 $306.59
San Felipe: Agricultural Current March 1, 2023 March 1, 2024 March 1, 2025

Full Cost (RRA Section 205(a){3})
Cost of Stored & Acquired Water [1] $224.38 $115.00 $117.30 $119.65
SLDMWA [2] $15.65 $11.51 $11.74 $11.97
SCVWD [2] $74.03 $53.74 $54.81 $55.91
SBCWD $118.94 $114.43 $116.73 $119.06
Total - $433.00 $294.68 $300.58 $306.59
San Felipe: Agricultural Current March 1, 2023 March 1,2024 dAarch 1, 2025
Full Cost (RRA Section 202(3})

Cost of Stored & Acquired Water [1] $202.38 $115.00 $117.30 $119.65
SLDMWA [2] $15.65 $11.51 $11.74 $11.97
SCVWD [2] $74.03 $53.74 $54.81 $55.91
SBCWD $118.94 $114.43 $116.73 $119.06
Total $411.00 $294.68 $300.58 $306.59

[1] Cost of Stored & Acquired Water for March 1, 2023 provided by SBCWD. Other years escalated.
This is a pass-through cost from USBR.
[2] Subject to pass-through if actual costs higher than projected.

1.3.2. M&I1 Water Rates

Current and proposed M&I rates are shown in Table 1-4. Since the wholesale rates were adjusted in March 1,
2022, different current rates are shown for the WTP than for the small parcel service / Non-Agricultural
(M&I). However, on March 1, 2023 the rates are proposed to be the same for all M&I customers. SBCWD
calculates the Cost of Stored & Acquired Water? component of the San Felipe rate in a separate model and
provided the M&I rates for March 1, 2023 through March 1, 2025. The semitropic O&M subcomponent,
which is a pass-through, is added to the provided rates to develop the full Cost of Stored and Acquired Water
component. The other rate components (SLDMWA, SCVWD, and SBCWD) are based on cost-of-service.

2 Pass-through cost from USBR. -26-



San Felipa: Non-Agricuftural (M&1) Current March 1,2023 March 1, 2024 March 1, 2025

Wholesale
Cost of Stored & Acquired Water [1] $448.96 $450.74 $433.05 $412.36
SLDMWA [2] $13.00 $11.51 $11.74 $11.97
SCVWD [2] $61.45 $53.74 $54.81 $55.91
SBCWD $123.71 $137.71 $140.47 $143.29
Total $647.12 $653.70 $640.07 $623.53
San Felipe: Small Parcel Service, Current March 1,2023 March 1, 2024 March 1, 2025

Non-Agricultural (M&])
Cost of Stored & Acquired Water 1] $225.84 $450.74 $433.05 $412.36
SLDMWA [2] $13.00 §11.51 $11.74 $11.97
SCVWD (2] $61.45 $53.74 $54.81 $55.91
-SBCWD $123.71 $137.71 $140.47 $143.29
Total $424.00 $653.70 $640.07 $623.53

[1] Cost of Stared & Acquired Water provided by SBCWD. This includes a pass-through of USBR costs.
[2] Subject to pass-through if actual costs higher than projected.

1.3.3. Water Supply-Reliability Charge

M&I customers will also see a new water supply-reliability charge. This charge is designed to recover costs
associated with enhancing reliability of the water supply for M&I customers. SBCWD plans to phase in the
charge over four years, drawing upon reserves in the early years.

3. Probosed Wate
Water Supply-Reliability Charge [1] Current March 1,2023 March 1, 2024 March 1, 2025

All M&I Customers $0.00 $100.00 $175.00 $250.00
[1] Charge to cover supply reliability projects for the benefit of existing customers.

1.3.4. Groundwater Rates
Table 1-6 shows the current and proposed groundwater rates, which are based on the cost-of-service analysis.

O: Current ana Froposed { ) dawale

Groundwater Charges Current March 1, 2023 March 1, 2024 March 1, 2025
(Well customers)

Ag $13.55 $13.75 $14.03 $14.31

M&l $40.55 $13.75 $14.03 $14.31

1.3.5. Recycled Water Rates

Table 1-7 shows the current and proposed recycled water rates and power charges related to pumping recycled
water. The rates are based on the cost-of-service. The recycled water power charge is subject to additional
pass-through increases if actual costs are higher than projected.

“27-



Recycled Water Rates Current March 1,2023 March 11,2024 March 1, 2025
Recycled Water $211.00 $294.70 $300.59 $306.61
Power Charge* $63.09 $101.10 $104.65 $108.32
* Subject to pass-through if actual costs higher than projected.

1.3.6. Power Charge

Table 1-8 shows the current and proposed power charges. SBCWD has consolidated the power charge into
those outside subsystem 9 and those within subsystem 9. Subsystem 9 is unique due to additional pumping
requirements. The rates are based on the cost-of-service rates. If the pass-through portion of the power charges
increases, these charges are subject to those pass-throughs.

Power Charge Current March 1, 2023 March 1,2024 March 1, 2025
Subsystem 2* $85.35 $40.22 $41.64 $43.10
Subsystem 6H* $41.50 $40.22 S41.64 $43.10
Subsystem 9L* $93.55 $94.01 $97.31 $100.73
Subsystem 9H* $138.25 $94.01 $97.31 $100.73
All other subsystems* $35.75 $40.22 $41.64 $43.10

* Subject to pass-through if actual costs higher than projected.

Note that tables may not add due to rounding.

_28-



2. Introduction

The San Benito County Water District (SBCWD) engaged Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. and Water
Resources Economics (Raftelis Team) to conduct a comprehensive water rates and fees study that could be
utilized to evaluate and optimize user charges for SBCWD's water service while ensuring a proportionate
recovery of costs from the various user classes. This report documents the resultant findings, analyses, and
recommendations.

SBCWD manages the water resources within San Benito County and is the Groundwater Sustainability
Agency for the county. SBCWD provides retail and wholesale potable water services as well as groundwater
and recycled water. SBCWD owns two surface water treatment plants and manages local and imported
surface water through the San Benito River System and the San Felipe Distribution System. The drinking
water delivered to the Sunnyslope County Water District and City of Hollister becomes recycled water (from
the City of Hollister’s reclamation plant) that is used for irrigation. The imported water improves overall
water quality as the groundwater pumped from local aquifers has varying levels of salts and high mineral
content.

L Sy | ~ &
SCOD v 1 > Study

The scope of this study includes the development of cost-based water rates through a comprehensive cost-of-
service analysis and rate-design study process. The three major processes are as follows:

o Financial Planning: User information and two-year average water usage data are compiled.
Operating and capital costs are compiled and revenue requirements are projected for a ten-year period
from Fiscal Year (FY) 2023 through FY 2032. Financial planning involves estimation and projection
of annual O&M and capital expenditures, annual debt service and reserve requirements, operating
and capital revenue sources, and the determination of required revenues from rates and charges.

o Cost-of-Service Analysis: The cost-of-service analysis apportions annual revenue requirements to the
different user classes, demonstrating the nexus between the cost of providing water service to the
various user classes and the revenue collected from each class. This approach is based on standard
industry practice and commensurate with the legal requirements of Proposition 218.

e Rate Design: Rate design involves the development of a schedule of rates for each of the different user
classes, to proportionately recover the costs attributable to them while considering the pricing
objectives of SBCWD.

-29-



3. Legal Framework and Rate Setting
Methodology

f"":"-‘

Proposition 218, reflected in the California Constitution as Article XIII D, was enacted in 1996 to ensure that
rates and fees are proportional to the cost of providing service. The principal requirements for fairness of the
fees, as they relate to public water service, are as follows:
1. A property-related charge (such as water and recycled water rates) imposed by a public agency on a
parcel shall not exceed the costs required to provide the property-related service.
2. Revenues derived by the charge shall not be used for any purpose other than that for which the charge
was imposed.
3. The amount of the charge imposed upon any parcel shall not exceed the proportional cost of service
attributable to the parcel.
4. No charge may be imposed for a service unless that service is actually used or immediately available
to the owner of the property.
5. A written notice of the proposed charge shall be mailed to the record owner of each parcel at least 45
days prior to the public hearing when the agency considers all written protests against the charge.

As stated in American Water Works Association M1 Manual titled Principles of Water Rates, Fees and Charges,
Seventh Edition (AWW A M1 Manual), “water rates and charges should be recovered from classes of
customers in proportion to the cost of serving those customers.” Proposition 218 requires that water rates
cannot be “arbitrary and capricious,” meaning that the rate setting methodology must be sound and that there
must be a nexus between the costs and the rates charged. This study follows industry-standard rate setting
methodologies set forth by the AWWA M1 Manual, adhering to Proposition 218 requirements by developing
rates that do not exceed the proportionate cost of providing water services.

- f 5 % £ . . .
Mitornia Constitution MArticie A, Yeclion <«

Atrticle X, Section 2 of the California Constitution (established in 1976) states the following:

It is hereby declared that because of the conditions prevailing in this State the general welfare
requires that the water resources of the State be put to beneficial use to the fullest extent of
which they are capable, and that the waste or unreasonable use or unreasonable method of
use of water be prevented, and that the conservation of such waters is to be exercised with a
view to the reasonable and beneficial use thereof in the interest of the people and for the
public welfare.

Article X, Section 2 of the State Constitution institutes the need to preserve the State’s water supplies and to
discourage the wasteful or unreasonable use of water by encouraging conservation. As such, public agencies
are constitutionally mandated to maximize the beneficial use of water, prevent waste, and encoutage
conservation.

-30-



As stated in the AWWA M1 Manual, “the costs of water rates and charges should be recovered from classes
of customers in proportion to the cost of serving those customers.” The four major steps to develop utility
rates that comply with Proposition 218 and industry standards while meeting other emerging goals and
objectives of the utility are discussed below.

3.3.1. Calculate Revenue Requirement

The rate-making process starts by determining the test year (rate setting year) revenue requirement. The
revenue requirement should sufficiently fund the utility’s O&M, debt service, capital expenses, and other
identified costs with funding to reserves (positive cash) or using reserves (negative cashy), all based on a long-
term financial plan.

3.3.2. Cost-of-Service Analysis

The annual cost of providing water service is distributed among customer classes commensurate with their
service requirements. A cost-of-service analysis involves allocating costs to customer classes in proportion to
their burden on the water system.

3.3.3. Rate Design and Calculations

Rates do more than simply recover costs. Within the legal framework and industry standards, properly
designed rates should support and optimize a blend of various utility objectives, such as promoting water
conservation, affordability for essential needs, and revenue stability, among other objectives. Rates may also
act as a public information tool in communicating these objectives to customers.

3.3.4. Rate Adoption

Rate adoption is the last step of the rate-making process and is part of the procedural requirements of
Proposition 218. The Raftelis Team documents the rate study results in this report to serve as the utility’s
administrative record and a public education tool about the proposed changes, the rationale and justifications
behind the changes, and their anticipated financial impacts.

Government Code §54999.7(c) requires that water and wastewater agencies must conduct a cost-of-service
study a minimum of every ten years. The Raftelis Team conducted a comprehensive cost-of-service rate study
for SBCWD in Section 5 and documented the results and findings in this report. This study focuses on
developing a financial plan and cost projections for the next ten years. The proposed revenue adjustments
resulting from the financial plan will be applied to calculate the proposed rates for FY 2023, FY 2024, and
FY 2025.

-31-



4. Financial Plan

Reviewing a utility’s revenue requirement is a key first step in the rate study process. The Raftelis Team
analyzed annual operating revenue under the status quo, operation and maintenance (O&M) expenses,
transfers between funds, and reserve requirements. This section of the report provides a discussion of the
projected revenues, O&M expenses, reserve funding requirements, and the revenue adjustments needed to
support fiscal sustainability and solvency.

A o o 2l 3 ! ¢ —
| ,“j.\):'/' =T ™ 4 ren g 1 % r . - 4 ‘._.:‘ ?",:'f»v_'

SBCWD receives revenues through the sale of raw and treated water as well as tax revenues and other
income. All rate-based revenue is based on $/acre-feet ($/AF); the SBCWD does not collect a customer or
monthly meter charge.

4.1.1. Current Water and Power Rates

The SBCWD generally sets rates effective at the start of each water year (WY), March 1. Table 4-1 shows San
Felipe Distribution water, groundwater, recycled water, and power charges in effect as of March 1, 2022. All
charges are uniform rates based on water use in acre-feet (AF).

1

San Fallge Distribution Water Rates Effective March 1, 2022, $/AF Other Rates Effective March 1, 2022, S/AF

San Felipe Distribution System Water Charges (Water Supply) Power Charges

Agricultural Subsystem 2 $85.35
Cost of Stored & Acquired Water [1] $100.84 Subsystem 6H $41.50
SLDMWA $13.00 Subsystem 9L $93.55
SCVWD $61.45 Subsystem 9H $138.25
SBCWD $98.71 All Other Subsystems $35.75

Agricultural - Total $274.00

Agricultural Full Cost {RRA Section 205(a)(3)) Groundwater Charges
Cost of Stored & Acquired Water [1] $224.38 Metered
SLDMWA $15.65 Water Primarily for Municipal & Industrial Purposes $40.55
SCVWD $74.03 Water Primarily for Agricultural Purposes $13.55
SBCWD $118.94

Agricultural Full Cost (RRA Section 205(a)(3)) $433.00 Recycled Water Charges

Agricultural Full Cost (RRA Section 202(3)) Recycled Water Charge $211.00
Cost of Stored & Acquired Water {1] $202.38 Power Charge $63.09
SLDMWA $15.65 Minimum Annual Purchase of Water for Each Parcel $700.00
SCVWD $74.03 (applied to water charge)
SBCWD $118.94

Agricultural Full Cost (RRA Section 202(3)) $411.00

Non-Agricultural (Municipal & Industrial) - Wholesale
Cost of Stored & Acquired Water (1] $448.96
SLDMWA $13.00
SCVWD $61.45
SBCWD $123.71

Non-Agricultural (Municipal & Industrial) - Wholesale $647.12

Non-Agricultural/ Small Parcel (Municipal & Industrial)
Cost of Stored & Acquired Water [1] $225.84
SLDMWA $13.00
SCVWD $61.45
SBCWD $123.71

Non-Agricultural/ Small Parcet (Municipal & Industrial) $424.00

(1] This is a pass-through cost from USBR.

-32-



4.1.2. Projected Water and Power Use

Based on discussions with SBCWD staff, the assumption is that growth will occur with respect to the water
treatment plants (Finished Water). The SBCWD’s engineer, HDR, has estimated growth to be about

3 percent per year in the final draft water supply and treatment master plan report®. To be conservative from a
rate-setting perspective, the Raftelis Team has presumed that growth in usage by the water treatment plants
(M&I WTP Plants) will increase at 1.5 percent per year and no growth occurs in the other customer classes.
Table 4-2 summarizes the projected water usage.

Customer Usage Data FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 FY2031 FY2032
San Fefipe Distribution Water
Ag 11,003 11,003 11,003 11,003 11,003 11,003 11,003 11,003 11,003 11,003 11,003
Ag Full Cost 2,173 2,173 2,173 2,173 2,173 2,173 2,173 2,173 2,173 2,173 2,173
M&I 226 226 226 226 226 226 226 226 226 226 226
M&I Small Parcel 224 224 224 224 224 224 224 224 224 224 224
M&I (WTP Plants) 5,000 5,075 5,151 5,228 5,307 5,386 5,467 5,549 5,632 5,717 5,803
Total Surface Water (AF) 18,626 18,701 18,777 18,854 18,933 19,012 19,093 19,175 19,258 19,343 19,429
Recycled Water 496 496 496 436 496 496 496 496 496 496 496

Groundwater - Wells

Ag 15,740 15,740 15,740 15,740 15,740 15,740 15,740 15,740 15,740 15,740 15,740
M&I 3,036 3,036 3,036 3,036 3,036 3,036 3,036 3,036 3,036 3,036 3,036

“ Total Groundwater 18,776 18,776 18,776 18,776 18,776 18,776 18,776 18,776 18,776 18,776 18,776
Total Water Usage (AF) 37,402 37,477 37,553 37,630 37,709 37,788 37,869 37,951 38,035 38,119 38,205

Table 4-3 shows the projected power usage. All power usage remains flat except for Subsystem 9L, which
includes the Lessalt water treatment plant, and All Other Subsystems, which includes the West Hills water
treatment plant.

Powear System FY2022 FY2023 FYZ2024 FEY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 FY2031 FY2032

Subsystem 2 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126
Subsystem 6H 35 35 35 35 35 35 35 35 35 35 35
Subsystem 9L 2,062 2,092 2,123 2,154 2,185 2,217 2,249 2,282 2,315 2,349 2,383
Subsystem 9H 275 275 275 275 275 275 275 275 275 275 275
All Other Subsystems 16,132 16,177 16,223 16,269 16,316 16,364 16,412 16,462 16,512 16,562 16,614
Recycled Power Charge 496 496 496 496 496 496 496 496 496 496 496
Total Power-Related Usage 19,126 19,201 19,277 19,354 159,433 19,512 15,593 19,675 19,758 19,843 19,929

4.1.3. Revenue Projections

4.1.3.1. Rate Revenue
Table 4-4 shows the projected rate revenue based on current rates and projected water use. San Felipe

Distribution water revenues exclude the cost of stored and acquired component! as that rate is projected and
provided by SBCWD.

3 Kennedy, Holly, et al., “Final Draft San Benito Urban Areas Water Supply and Treatment Master Plan Update”,
HDR, Folsom, California, June 2022,
* Pass-through cost from USBR. -33-



Line item FY 2022 FY 2023 Fy 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2022 FY 2028 FY 2039 FY 2030 Ff 3631 FY 2032

San Felipe Dist. Water® $3,550,086 $3,566,482 $3,583,125 $3,600,017 $3,617,162 $3,634,585 53,652,228 $3,670,157 3,688,355 $3,706,825 $3,725,573
Power Charges $819,834 $824,249 $828,731 $833,280 $837,896 $842,583 $847,339 $852,167 $857,067 $862,041 $867,089
Groundwater $336,390 $336,390 $336,390 $336,390 $336,390 $336,390 $336,350 $336,390 $336,390 $336,390 $336,390
Recycled \Water & Power $135,275 $135,987 $135,987 $135,987 $135,987 $135,987 $135,987 $135,987 $135,987 $135,987 $135,987
Total Revenue $4,841,584 $4.863,108 $4,884,232 $4,905,673 $4,927,435 $4,949,524 54,971,944 $4,994,701 $5,017,799 $5,041,243 55,065,039

* Excluding the Cost of Stored & Acquired Water component, which is a pass-through from USBR.

4.1.3.2. Other Revenues

Table 4-5 shows the projected other revenues. Finished Water includes the cost of stored and acquired® water
component of the San Felipe Distribution water rates plus other pass-through of costs that are recovered
under Finished Water. Cost of Stored & Acquired Water® revenue includes projected revenue from this

component of the San Felipe Distribution water rate excluding the amount captured within Finished Water.
Other operating and non-operating revenue, as well as general tax revenue, increases at 1.5 percent per year.
Land tax increases at 3 percent per year for FY 2023 then at 2 percent per year thereafter.

Lina Item PY 2022 FY 2023

Finished Water™® $7,007,058  $8,006,392
Cost of Stored & Acquired Water** $1,689,541 $1,689,541
Other Operating Revenue $28,400 $28,826
Taxes and Assessments 58,785,000 $9,036,925
Other Non-Operating Revenues $344,250 $349,414
Grants $87,400 $87,400
Interest Income $185,310 $213,248

FY 2024
$8,124,89
$1,689,54

)

FY 2025 FY 2026

1 $8,246,181 $3,370,332
1 51,689,541 51,689,541
$29,258 $29,697 $30,143
$9,213,730 $9,394,013 $9,577,841
$354,655 $359,975 $365,374
$87,400 $87,400 $87,400
$242,297 $270,214 $294,100

FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030 F¥ 2031 FY 2032
$8,497,417 $8,627,511 $8,760,693 58,897,040 $9,036,634 38,836,845
$1,689,541 $1,689,541 $1,689,541 $1,689,541 $1,689,541 $1,689,541

$30,595 331,054 $31,520 $31,992 $32,472 $32,959
$9,765,285 $9,956,416 $10,151,308 $10,350,033 $10,552,669 $10,759,291
$370,855  $376,418  $382,064  $387,795  $393,612  $399,516
$87,400 587,400 $87,400 $87,400 $87,400 $87,400
$306,191  $295,719  $270,925  $246,611  3226,991  $210,345

Total Other Revenue

$18,126,959 $19,411,746 $19,741,773 $20,077,021 $20,414,731 $20,747,284 $21,064,059 $21,373,450 $21,690,412 $22,018,319 $22,015,898

* Excluding revenue captured under San Felipe Distribution water in Table 4-4.
** Excluding Cost of Stared & Acquired Water revenues captured within Finished Water. The cost of stored and aquired water is a pass-through cost from USBR.

A — N

4.2. Operating and Main

$
£ 1N 2 1
renand

=
,

NS

Fa Y~

Table 4-6 shows SBCWD'’s budget and projected O&M expenses for the study period. General and salary-
related costs escalate at 2.5 percent per year. Benefits escalate at 6 percent per year. Utilities escalate at

3.5 percent per year. The largest contributors to O&M expenses are contract services, wages and related
expenses, the cost of raw water’, and the USBR contract payments.

Line item FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2034 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 BY 2029 Y 2030 PY 2031 FY 2032

Cost Of Water {1] $2,723,427 $3,699,523 53,794,672 $3,892,509 $3,963,513 $3,957,622 §4,032,243 $4,067,384 $4,103,051 44,139,254  $4,176,000
Direct Power & Other Power (Raw Wazter) $116,200 $120,519 $125,002 $129,655 $134,484 $139,497 $144,701 $150,104 $155,712  §161,534 $167,578
USBR Mandatory Contracl $1,942,152  $1,842,152 $1,942,152 $1,942,152 51,942,152 $4,463,378 $6,984,605 56,984,605 $6,984,605 96,984,605 $6,984,605
Conlract Services $4,614,350 $4,276,882 $4,370,2B2 $4,479,539 $4,643,410 $4,837,559 §$4,823,974 54,959,872 $5,068,188 $5,237,519 $5,489,729
General and Administrative $319,250 $327,231 $335,412 §343,797 $352,352 $361,202 $370,232 $379,488 $388,975  $398,700 $408,667
Materials and Equipment $387,750 $398,076 5408,028 $418,229 $428,685 $439,402 $450,387 $461,646 $473,188  $485,017 $497,143
Utilities $551,600 $572,102 §593,382 $615,469 $638,395 $662,193 $686,896 $712,540 $739,161  $766,799 $795,492
Wages and Employee Related Expenses $2,924,167 $3,166,176 $3,270,109 $3,375,126 $3,49042C $3,607,191 $3,728,652 $3,855,027 53,986,551 $4,123,472 $4,266,051
Spot Purchases Until ASR Phase | oniine $27,241 $187,204 $352,138 $519,170 $672,254 $814,983 $955,415 $735,330 $962,188 50 $0
Semitropic O&M $37,000 $40,000 $41,200 $42,436 $43,709 $45,020 $46,371 $47.762 §49,195 $50,671 $52,191
Costs Associated with Santa Clara Valiey WD $414,450 $424,811 $435,432 $446,317 $457,475 $468,912 $480,635 $492,651 $504,967  $517,591 $530,531
Costs Associated with San Luis Deita Mendota (Other} $247,500 $255,531 $263,827 $272,398 $281,253 $290,4C1 $299,851 $309,615 $319,703  $330,125 $340,893
New Supply & Reliability Projects [2] sa sQ $0 S0 50 $0 S0 $B11,453 $831,739  $2,131,331  $2,184,516
Total Expenses $14,305,086 515,410,208 $15,931,685 $16,479,797 $17,048,141 $20,127,361 $23,003,963 $23,967,477 $24,567,224 $25,326,619 $25,893,435

{1] This is a pass-through cost from USBR.
{2] This is O&M related to caliability projects benefiting existing customers.

5 Pass-through cost from USBR.
6 Pass through cost from USBR.
7 Pass-through cost from USBR.

-34-



: | ' J |

4.3.1. Capital improvement Plan

SBCWD has developed a capital improvement program to address current and future needs of the water
system. Near-term capital costs are escalated at 5 percent per year and then by FY 2025 escalate at the long-
term historical average of 3 percent per year. Anticipated capital improvements are summarized in Figure 4-1
and costs at the project category level are shown in Table 4-7. The large increase in the capital plan between
FY 2027 and FY 2030 is due to the new supply-reliability projects and the canal subsidence project. The new
supply and reliability project line item in Table 4-7 includes about $69 million in growth-related projects. The
remaining expense is for projects to enhance water supply reliability for existing customers. The detailed
capital improvement plan is shown in Appendix A.

550
9
82 845
= 240
$35
$30
25
$20
515
S10
- l I
o = H o
FY FY FY F FY EY FY FY FY By FY
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 202% 2030 2031 2032
[Praje Category FY 2022 £ 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2007 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030 FY 2031 FY 2032
Turnout Projects $395,000 $0 ) $0 S0 S0 $0 s0 $0 S0 so
Pumping System Evaluation & Rebuild 547,847 $50,239 $52,751 $54,334 555,964 $57,643 $59,372 $61,153 $62,988 564,877 $66,824
WTP Projects $0 $0 S0 $0 $0 S0 S0 S0 $0 $0 S0
Pachece Pump Replacement $0 $0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 $725,449 $747,213  $769,629 $792,718
Qld Office bidg at Mansfield Rd $0 $21,000 $0 ] $0 S0 $0 S0 50 $0 S0
Storage Bldg $0 S0 $96,579 S0 Ny S0 $0 S0 $0 $0 ]
PLC Project $500,000 S0 S0 S0 S0 $0 S0 S0 S0 $0 $0
Lateral Rehabs SO0 $912,327 $227,258 $159,849 $787,815 $501,559 $503,850 $579,934 $1,013,288 $1,008925 $257,783
SBCWD Share of SCVWD Projects S0  $437,976 $21,492 $215,836 $23,151 $196,550 $3,150,193 $3,255,939 52,441,438 $281,138 $3,881,553
SLDM: Canal Subsidence Estimate $0 S0 $0 S0 $0 $0 S0 $0 $11,518,873 S0 $0
New Supply & Reliability Projects [1] $989,430 $7,090,128 $3,208,372 $6,640,422 57,201,847 $23,837,303 $41,130,553 $19,415,177 $19,997,633 S0 $0
Total CIP $1,932,277 $8,511,670 $3,606,453 $7,070,441 $8,068,777 $24,593,054 $44,843,969 $24,037,653 $35,781,433 $2,124,569 $4,998,878

[1] Includes reliability project(s) and project(s) to meet new growth.

-35-



4.3.2. Capital Sources and Uses of Funds

These projects are paid for through a mix of cash and debt as shown in Table 4-8. Sources of cash include
rate-based revenue, the proposed water-supply reliability charge, withdrawals from the Reach 1 Major R&R
fund, property taxes, the proposed capacity fees*, and draws on undesignated reserves as needed.

Line em FY 2622 FY 2023 FY 2024 PY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 P 2003 Y 2029 FY 2030 FY 2031 BY 2032
Sources
Rate/Reserve Funded $1,173,850 51,214,570 $607,592 $445,187  $1,074,782 $790,205 $794,226  $1,597,540 $2,054,492  $2,074,435  $1,348,328
Reach 1 Majar R&R Fund S0 $437,976 $21,492 $215,836 $23,151 $196,550  $3,150,193 $3,255,939  $2,441,438 $281,138 53,881,553
Supply-Reliability Charge [1] SO $114,915 $647,483  $1,082,291 51,618,801  $2,358,619 $2,502,291 $2,625,766  $2,755.375 $2,891,426  $3,034,240
Property Taxes S0 S0 so S0 $0 51,560,352 $3,178,263  $3,088,747  $2,996,097 52,900,204 52,800,955
Capacity Fees $0  $1,148,776  $3,462,681 63,511,739 $3,560,797  §$3,613,943  $3,671,177  $3,724,324  $3,781,558  $3,834,704  $3,896,027
Bond Proceeds $0 S0 so S0 SO $21,631,909 $37,459,376 $15,690,854 $27,734,948 $0 $0
Reserves (Draws/(Replenish)) $989,430  $5,826,433  ($901,792) $2,046,393  $2,022,249 ($2,190,719) ($3,081,470) ($5,714,512) ($5,751,472) ($9.626,334) (59,731,222
Total Sources $2,163,280 $8,742,674 $3,837,456  $7,301,445 $8,299,780 $27,960,860 S$47,674,057 $24,268,656 536,012,437  $2,355,573  $5,226,882
Uses
Capital $1,932,277 $8,511,670 53,606,453 $7,070,441 58,068,777 524,593,054 544,843,969 $24,037,653 $35,781,433 $2,124,569  $4,998,378
RW Repayment $231,003 $231,003 $231,003 $231,003 $231,003 $231,003 $231,003 $231,003 $231,003 $231,003 $231,003
Debt Reserve $0 S0 $0 S0 SO $3,136,802 52,599,084 S0 S0 50 S0
Total Uses 52,163,280 58,742,674 53,837,456  $7,301,445 $8,299,780 $27,960,860 $47,674,057 $24,268,656 $36,012,437 §2,355,573  $5,229,882

[1] Charge to cover supply reliability projects for the benefit of existing customers.

4.3.3. Debt Service

Debt service requirements include principal and interest payments being made on bonds and loans previously
issued, as well as forecasted payments for projected future bonds and loans.

4.3.3.1. Existing Debt Service
SBCWD has three outstanding loans which is captured within O&M expenses. The annual existing debt
service over the financial planning period is summarized in Table 4-9.

Line item FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2023 FY2023 FY2030 FY2031 Fya032
WIIN CBT $225,932 $226,227 $225,773 $226,258 $225,662 $226,006 $226,269 $226,451 $226,553 $226,573 $226,513

Citi National  $463,117 $463,117 $463,117 $463,117 $463,117 $463,117 $463,117 $463,117 $463,117 $347,338 S0
UAL $285,298 $243,190 $243,329 $243,321 $243,167 $242,867 $243,407 $242,786 $243,004 $243,047 $242,915
Total $974,347 $932,534 $932,218 $932,695 $931,946 $931,990 $932,793 $932,354 $932,674 $816,958 $469,428

4.3.3.2. Projected New Debt Service

The financial plan presumes three new bonds are issued over the financial planning period to help cover the
cost of the canal subsidence project and two water supply-reliability projects. The water supply-reliability
projects comprise a reliability-related project to benefit existing customers and a growth-related project. The
Raftelis Team encourages SBCWD to work with its municipal financial advisor as the time to bid the projects
gets closer to reflect capital pricing at that time as well as bond market terms and conditions. For long-range
modeling purposes, the Raftelis Team, in conjunction with SBCWD, has presumed a bond term of 20 years
with a 3.5 percent interest rate for the reliability project and a 30-year term with an interest rate of 3.5 percent
for the new supply and subsidence projects. Gross bond issues presume 1.5 percent issuance cost. Table 4-10
shows the proposed debt service included in the financial plan.

$ Capacity fees are discussed in more detail in Section 7. -36-



Ling ftem FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2039 FY 2031 FY 2032

Canal Subsidence S0 $0 $0 $635,834 $635,834 $635,834
Water Supply-Reliability [1] $3,136,802 $5,735,886 $5,735,886 $5,735,886 $5,735,886 $5,735,886
Total $3,136,802 $5,735,886 $5,735,886 $6,371,720 $6,371,720 $6,371,720

[1] Includes debt on reliability projects and growth projects.

: Proposed Finand il Plan and Revenue Adjustments
/ !

The proposed financial plan enables SBCWD to set rates to generate sufficient revenues to meet its short-term
and long-term obligations and avoid significant future rate fluctuations. The plan shows the revenues that will
be used to maintain appropriate reserves and provide adequate debt coverage while maintaining a sensitivity
to rate increases.

To meet projected revenue requirements and to maintain desired reserve levels, the revenue adjustments
shown in Table 4-11 are proposed to the existing water rates. Revenue adjustments are shown outside the rate
setting period (FY 2023 — FY 2025) for planning purposes only and are subject to the Board’s approval in future
years. While no revenue adjustment is planned for FY 2023, the cost-of-service analysis may result in a
change to rates.

’

Effective Date Increase

3/1/2023 0%
3/1/2024 2%
3/1/2025 2%
3/1/2026 2%
3/1/2027 2%
3/1/2028 3%
3/1/2029 3%
3/1/2030 3%
3/1/2031 3%
3/1/2032 3%

The Zone 6 financial plan shown in Table 4-12 provides a basis for evaluating the timing and level of water
revenue adjustments needed to meet the revenue requirements over the study period. The financial plan
shows an annual adjustment starting in F'Y 2024. To help cover the costs of the new water supply and
reliability projects, SBCWD is adding a new Water Supply-Reliability charge (discussed in Section 4.5) and a
new capacity fee (discussed in Section 7).

-37-



18

19
20

21

23

Llne tem FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 PY 2027 Y 2023 FY 2029 FY 2030 FY 2031 EY 2032
Revenues
Water Sales and Pewer Charges $4.841,584 54,863,108  $4,284,232 54,905,673  $4,927.435 54,949,524 54,871,344 §4,994,70L  55.017,799  §5,041,243  $5,065,039
Total Adjustments N S0 532,562 $131,472 $233,245 $337,967 $463,666 $629,603 $802,024 $981,182 61,167,339
Water Supply-Relisbility (1] se $114,919 $647,483  $1,082,291  $1,618,801  $2,358,619  $2,502,291  $2,625,766  $2,755,375  $2,891,426  §$3,034,240
Capacity Fee Revenue SCG S1,148,776  $3,462,681 53,511,739  $3,560,797 53,613,943  $3,671,377  §3,724,324  $3,781,558 93,834,704  §3,896,027
Other Revenue
Other Operating Revenue $28,40C $28,826 529,258 $29,697 $30,143 $30,595 $31,054 $31,520 $31,992 532,472 $32,959
Finished Water $7.007,058 $8,006,392 $8,124.891 $5,246,181 $8,370,332 $8,497,417  $8,627,511  $8,760,693  $8,897,040  $9,036,634  $8,836,845
Cost of Stored & Acquirad Water {2] $1,682,541 $1,689,541  $1,689,341 $1,689,541 $1,685,541 $1,689,541  $1,689,541  $1,689,541  $1,689,541  $1,689541  $1,6B9,541
Taxes and Assessments $8,785,000 $9,036,925 59,213,730  $9,394,013  $9,577,841  $5,765,285 $9,656,416 $1C.151,3¢8 $10,350,033 510,552,669  $10,759,291
Other Non-Operating Revenues $344,250 $349,414 $354,655 $359,975 4365,374 $370,855 §376,418 5382,064 $387,795 $393,612 $399,516
Grants $87,40C $87,400 $87,400 $87,4c0 $87,400 $87,400 $87,400 $87,400 $87,400 587,400 $87,400
Interest Income $185,310 $213,248 $242,297 $270,214 $294,100 $314,052 $317.995 $289,828 $275,558 $256,184 $239,684
Total flevenue $22,968,543 $25,538,549 $28,768,731 $29,708,195 $30,755,009 532,013,199 $32,695415 $33,376,746 $34,076,215 $34,797,067 $35,207,881
Expenses
o&M $14,305,086 $15,410,208 $15931,685 $16,479,797 $17,048,241 $20,127,361 $23,003,963 $23,967,477 §24,567,221 525,326,619 $25,893,495
Existing Debt Service $974,347 $932,534 $932,218 $932,595 $931,946 $931,990 §932,793 5932,354 $932,674 $816,958 5468,428
Propesed Debt Service $0 50 50 50 $0 53,136,802  $5,735,886 35,735,886  $6,371,720  $6,371,720  $6,371,720
Capital Projects - Cash Funded {3 $2,163,280 $8,742,674  $3,837,456  $7,301,445  $8,299,780  $3,192,148  $7,615596  $8,577,803  S$B,277,489  $2,355,573  §5,229,882
Total Expenses $17,442,713 $25,085,415 $20,701,359 $24,713,938 $26,279,867 527,388,301 $37,288,239 $35,213,52C $40,149,106 $34,870.870 $37,964,526
Net Cash Flow (Annual Surplus/(Deficit)) 5,525,830 $453,134  $8,067,371 §4,994,257 $4,475,142 54,626,897  ($4,582,823) ($5,836,774) (56,072,892) ($73,803)  ($2,756,644)
Beginning Balance $45,707,129 $51,232,959 $51,686,093 $59,753,464 $64,747,722 §$69,222,863 $73,849,761 $69,256,937 $63,420,163 557,347,272  $57,273,468
Ending Balance $51,232,959 $51,685,093 959,753,464 $64,747,722 $69,222,863 §73,849,761 569,256,937 $€3,420,163 §57,347,272  $57,273,468  $54,516,824
Target Reserve $22,398,930 $24,274,453 $26,379,750 $28,791,905 $33,972,605 543,575,319 547,435,815 $45,934,883 §46,284,351 548,462,217  $47,643,753
Debt Coverage
Calculated 8.80 12.00 17.39 17.85 18.43 3.79 2.99 1.96 1.81 1.84 1.92
Required 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20

[1] For the benetit of existing customers.

[2) Cost of Stored and Acquired Water cost not already captured within Finished Water. This is 2 pass-through cost from USBR.
|3] Cash from rate based revenues, tax revenue, and capacity fees.

Figure 4-2 shows the projected fund balance for Zone 6. With the mix of rates, charges, and bond issues, the
fund balances are projected to stay above target over the planning horizon.

Fund Balances - Total

$80

$70

Millions

$60
$50
$40
$30
$20
$10

S0

FY 2022 FY 2023

s Ending Balance =====Reserve Target

FY 2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY 2028

Balance

[$573m] [$57.3m ]

FY 2029 FY 2030 FY 2031

® Balance Alert

FY 2032

Figure 4-3 graphically displays the projected debt service coverage from FY 2027, when the first bond is
expected to be issued, through the end of the study period, FY 2032. Given the assumptions made for this

-38-



study, SBCWD is expected to stay above its target debt service coverage ratio. Debt coverage prior to these
new issues is well above the required coverage ratio.

Debt Coverage emmmen Ca|culated Required ® Coverage Alert

3.50
3.00
2.50
2.00

1.50

1.00
0.50

0.00
FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030 FY 2031 FY 2032

ywatel D V-ella 1TV | Olects runac O

SBCWD has planned two water supply projects: one to help meet water supply, quality and reliability needs
for existing customers and one to meet water supply needs for projected growth. SBCWD plans to fund these
projects through a mix of bonds and cash. SBCWD plans to cover the interest associated with the new bond
issues with property tax revenue and to pay the principal portion of debt through rate revenue and capacity
fees. Rate revenue will also be used to fund the contributions to the debt reserve for the new issues, O&M,
and replenish reserves. Draws on reserves are needed, particularly in the early years, to balance the immediate
need to fund capital expenditures with minimizing the rate increase. These draws on reserves allow SBCWD
to phase-in the new water supply-reliability charge, which pays for the costs of reliability projects for the
benefit of existing customers. The water supply-reliability charge, in conjunction with other revenue sources,
is designed to eventually replenish those reserves and bring the cashflow associated with these projects back to
$0 by the end of the modeled debt service period, which is FY 2057 (presuming a 30-year loan). The capacity
fee is designed to pay for the cost of the water supply growth project. This fee is assessed on new customers to
the system and is discussed further in Section 7. For a detailed projected cashflow, please see Appendix B.

-39-



5. Cost-of-Service Analysis

The overall goal of the cost-of-service analysis is to allocate the revenue requirernent to the customer classes:
Groundwater, San Felipe Distribution Water, Recycled Water, and Power. Cost-of-service analyses are based
on a single year, the “test year”. The allocation of revenue requirements is based on direct assignments or by
usage. The allocation process ultimately determines the costs on a unit basis (e.g., usage). The unit rates then
help guide the process for setting rates. This process follows the guidelines set out in the AWWA M1 Manual,
modified, as applicable, to align with the Proposition 218 requirements.

(-

The annual cost-of-service, or revenue requirement, to be recovered from water rates includes O&M expenses
(Table 4-6), capital costs (Table 4-7), debt service (Table 4-9 and Table 4-10), and maintaining target reserve
balances (Table 4-12). The total FY 2023 net cost-of-service to be recovered by SBCWD customers is shown
in Table 5-1, row 23. The cost-of-service analysis is based on the need to generate revenues adequate to meet
this estimated revenue requirement. As part of the cost-of-service analysis, revenues from sources other than
water rates are deducted from the appropriate cost elements. Additional deductions are made for interest
income and other non-operating income during FY 2023. Adjustments are also made for additions to
reserves.

Capital
No. Line itam Oparating Related Tatal
Total Revenue Requirements
1 0&M $15,410,208 $15,410,208
Debt Service
2 WIIN Debt Service $226,227 $226,227
3 Citi National DS $463,117 $463,117
4 UAL Sterling $243,190 $243,190
Capital
5 RW Repayment $231,003 $231,003
6  Cash Funded Capital $983,567 $983,567
7 Reach 1 Major R&R $437,976 $437,976
8  Transfer of Taxes to Water Supply-Reliability S0 $0
9  Supply-Reliability Capital $5,941,352  $5,941,352
10  Subtotal $15,410,208 $8,526,432 $23,936,639
Less Revenue Offsets
11 Other Operating Revenue $28,826 $28,826
12 Finished Water $5,454,055 $2,552,337 $8,006,392
13 Cost of Stored & Acquired Water [1] $1,689,541 $1,689,541
14 Taxes and Assessments $4,448,387 $4,588,538 $9,036,925
15 Other Non-Operating Revenues $349,414 $349,414
16 Grants $87,400 587,400
17 Interest Income S0 $213,248 $213,248
18 Supply-Reliability Charge [2] $114,919 $114,919
19  Subtotal $12,057,622 $7,469,042 $19,526,665
Adjustments
20 Change in Funds Available $361,099 $92,035 $453,134
21 Annualized Rate Adjustment ) $0 S0
22 Subtotal $361,099 $92,035 $453,134
23 Costs to be Recovered from Rates $3,713,684 51,149,424 $4,863,108

[1] Cost of Stored and Aquired Water not already captured within
Finished Water. This is a pass-thre' '~ ~~t from USBR.
{2] Charge to cover supply reliability prc_ 40 _r the benefit of existing customers.



Once the costs to be recovered from rate-based revenue are determined, the costs are allocated to cost
components, in this case SBCWD'’s customer classes. Net O&M expense, shown in the “Operating” column
of Table 5-1, is allocated to customer classes as shown in Table 5-2. O&M line item expenses are allocated
based on input and review by SBCWD. For example, O&M costs associated with finished water are allocated
100 percent to finished water. O&M costs solely for groundwater are allocated 100 percent to groundwater.
Source of supply costs are allocated based on flows. More than 50 percent of costs are allocated to San Felipe
cost components. Allocation of O&M line items is shown in Appendix C. Revenue offsets are allocated based
on discussions with SBCWD, are a direct pass-through offset, or are allocated like O&M excluding pass-
through costs.

Net Capital-Related costs are allocated as shown in Table 5-3. Most costs are directly assigned. Those that are
not, are allocated like net plant investment. The allocation of net plant investment is shown in Appendix D.

4] -



“5J3W0I5N2 SunsIXa JO Jyauaq ay) 10y syaload Adjigeljal Ajddns 1aA03 o3 981ey) (7]
"4gsN wouy 3502 ysnoayy-ssed e st siyy [T]

ZIT'orts |0s 03 SPZ'8TLS |YTI'6vs 9/8/6ES 0$ 9/6'LEVS 0S5 0$ 0s 0s$ A A AR
TIS'CS 158°09% 78'6S 01s$ 898°/1$ 0S 0s 0$ 0$ SL$ 9.ES SE0'T6S
0s 0$ 0$ 6T6'VTTS-  0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0s 0s 0s 616 VITS-
1186 |ve6OpTS- 808'77S- |E€8T'TS- 00v'TvS- 0$ 0s$ 0s$ 0$ VLTS T/8%- 8PT'ETLS-
SST'TrTS- [0S 0$ 998’IVEVS- 0$ 0% 0% 0$ 0s 706%- 9TS'vS-  |BES'88S'VS-
0% 04L'£90°TS- 0$ £L95'¥8Y'TS- 0S 0$ 0% 0s 0$ 0s 0$ LEE'TSS'TS-
0s$ 0% 0$ 7SE'TY6'SS 0% 0$ 0$ 0s 0s 0s 0s ZSETYE'SS
03 0s$ 0% 0$ 0s$ 0$ 9/6°LEVS 0% 0s 0s 0$ 9L6'LEVS
7€8'925 |0TE059% 661'SOTS |SSP'SS 156'061$ 0% 0$ 0s 0% 708% LT0YS L95'€86%
€00°T€CS |0S 0$ 0$ 0$ 0s 0$ 0s$ - 0s 0s 0$ €00°1€2S
¥€9'9% 16L°091% 110°97S  |6VETS E€TTLYS  0S 0$ 05 0$ 8615 £665 06T'€¥ZS
SOE'9TTS |718'9€€S 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0s 0$ 0$ LIT'E9%S
0$ 0$ 0$ £€86'TYS yyT'e8TS 0% 0$ 0$ 0s 0$ 0$ VRAAL:TAAS

M

pajAay

ISIER BUNS

HY

BYSIty 2B1eYD Jamod

A0

ao8s

2AI Aito By

amags

amass

-bay Ay paiejay-jende) 1aN

9|qejieay spun4 ul adueyd
{2 @81eyD Anjiqeijey-Aiddns
QWODU| 1S3431U|
SIUIWISSISSY 19 SOXe |
J238M PaYsIuLY

S395}J0O 2NUANRY

[ende) Ayjigerjey-Aiddng

YRy JoleN T yoesy

jeyide) papuny ysed

juawAeday My

Suipa3s vNn

SQ jeuonen 1D

IDIAIDS 3990 NIIM

adifa] ung

GMASS

vAMIAIGTS

[t] pa#intoy

0 poIOIS

Ajeo P3N

Aup By

J91e punocin

JPAA 1591

'3502 yBnouyy-ssed e st siy] 1]

651°0S$ 0% 0$ YZELTTS EVT'VEIS |VSE'OVTS 0$ TOE'SLS'TS 000'/9SS TE€L'STZS  000'DVS 0$ TL1'857$ |VBY'ETL'ES ‘bay "A2Y N0 19N
89%'7S  £1L'6S [0S ¥97'9$  86T'IES |ozT'zts 0s 85919z 0% 0$ 0$ 0s 649'L8S  |660'19€$ 3|ge|ieAy spun4 ui a3uey)
L65$- 15€'2S- [0S 91G'TS-  TSS'LS-  |€€6'TS- 0% TEE'E9S- 0% 0s 0% 0$ 0Z1'6%-  |00V'L8S- suelo
88€'7S-  86£'6%-  |0$ 190'9%-  88T'0€$- [|8TLTTS- 0$ I6T°€52%-  0$ 0$ 0$ 0% 097'9€$- |YIv'6veS- Sunesadp-uon 18410
0s vZv'L6TS- [0S 0S 0$ 0s 0$ 09Z°evL'€S- 0S 0s 0s 0s £0L'L0SS- |£8E'8VV VS~ JUSWISSDSSY 73 SOXEL
0$ 0s 0s 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0s$ 0$ 0s 0% Iv5'689'T$- [0S 1¥5'689°TS$- (1) 193/ JO 350D
0$ 0S §50'vSt'SS- |0S 0$ 0$ 0s 0$ 0s 0s 0s 0% 0s SSO'PSY'SS- Jajep) paysiuly
L6TS- SLLS- 0$ 00S$- 06v'TS-  |896S- 0$ 888°0¢5- 0% 0s 0$ 0$ 800'€$-  |978'8TS- anuaaay Supesadp 19Y10

- mu&m.to BNUDAIY
€/8'0SS  SEZ'00TS [SSOPSYP'SS |LET'6TTIS SLT'EVIS [298°6¥ZS 0$ YIE¥6E'SS 000°£9SS TET'STZS  000'0VS IrS'689'TS €84'9LLS }80Z'0IV'STS WB0

BMod

FSIEAR

pajpArey pagsiuty

BYnS

HY

I3 1AM

A0

Arety By
1PN GMIGES  amags

amIgs

amnos

vmuars

adnag uos

[Tipasinboy 7 paiois - 45

ardoraiag

HESR/M02

ny

JEDA 1551

JSIeM

-punsIs

3g ues



*3502 y8nouyi-ssed e s1siyy (1]

0T'10T$ |0L'v6T3 |10'v6$ TovsS  |TLLETS  EVVITS YL €SS I6°TTS T LS SL'ETS  SL'ETS 4v/$ ‘3502 3jun {ero)
OT'TOTS |0L'v6T$ |BL'€SS Tovs  |LP'ESS  0TO0ES  vT'v8S PLESS 15°T1$ 00°0$ 00'0$ SLUETS 4v/$ ‘Ism
6ST°0SS  |ZTT'ovTs |vze'Lzts 68€'25L$ |89Y'S6ZS 9/8°L6ES TOE'SLS'TS 9L6'VO0'TS TET'STZS  000'OVS 0$ 0% 0% T/1'85Z$ [S0T'€98'VS 04.:
0$ TIT'9v1s$ [0s SYT'8TLS |vIT'6¥S 9L8'L6ES 0S5 9L6'LEVS  0S 03 0% 0% 0s 0% YTr'6vT'TS ‘bay ‘Aay pajepy-EAM | N
65T°05$ [0S YZE'LTTS EvT'vEYS [PSE9YZS 0S 70E'SLS'TS 000'£9SS  TET'STTS  000°0vS 0$ 0$ 03 TLT'85TS [VBI'ETL'ES ‘bay A9y RO 19N
96V 96¥ L9E°C S0L'8T 5Z5°s 9LTET 104°8T 10481 T0L°8T 9£0°E ovL'sT  94L°8T 4v ‘sun

1894 159]

BRI 6 HUDISASTNS 1y Ao e A By GRADES aMNIs Hdosspang ggsA/mos Ao PRI A0 3y

GMITs [1] pasinbay B patois

SRIEYD teMOd athiay Ups INEMPUNDID

‘3Rl 1IUN ¢ WasAsqng ayl pue aes jiun ramod |1y 243 Jo wns ayj st a3reyd 1omod g waisAsqng

[e101 9y ], "91e1 1un A[uQ) [P (IMILGS Pue 218l 3run (JA IS Y3 JO wins 3y st ajel [ 2d19,] ueg a3 jo juauodwod (JMIOES Y], ‘sarel

an AuQ) 8y AMDES PUe (IADES 943 Jo wns 3y st aex 8y adie ues oy Jo jusuodwod M DS 2u3 ‘ojdwexa 104 (381eyd e jo jusuodwod

10) 381eyDd YOra 10 $3IRI PISBY IDTAIIS-JO-SIS0D €707 A Y} 218 -G 3]qe], JO MOI ISe] Y] Ul UMOYS SJBI JIUn p[oq 3Y,[, "SISO 1unN 3Y) JO JUSWdO[AIP
33 SMOUS -C 3[qe, "¢€-S dqe], Put Z-S 3[qe ], wolj sjuawarinbal anuaAal 19U ay) pue (¢-% 2[qe], PUe Z-p 9]qe],) TeaA 1591 o) 10] pajoafoid moy

JO JunOLWe 3Y) UO Paseq SSB[O JOUIOISNID DB JOJ PIUILLIIIP ST IS0 JIUN Y], "IS0D ITUN ) JB[NO[ED 03 SI SISA[RUR IITAIIS-JO-1S0D 33 JO dals Ixau Ay j,

UOIJBALIDQ IS0 JIUN "€°S




6. Proposed Zone 6 Water and Power
Rates

The test year unit costs-of-service presented in Table 5-4 are used to develop the proposed rate schedules
shown in this section.

6.1 Agricultural Water Rates

The current and proposed agricultural water rates through FY 2025 are shown in Table 6-1. The March 1,
2023 Cost of Stored & Acquired Water® component rates were provided by SBCWD. The other rate
components (SLDMWA, SCVWD, and SBCWD) come from the unit rates shown in the last row of
Table 5-4. All rate components for March 1, 2024 and March 1, 2025 are escalated at 2 percent per year in
accordance with Table 4-11.

San Felipe: Agricuitural Current March 1,2023 March 1, 2024 March 1, 2025

Cost of Stored & Acquired Water (1] $100.84 $115.00 $117.30 $119.65
SLDMWA [2] $13.00 $11.51 $11.74 $11.97
SCVWD (2] $61.45 $53.74 $54.81 $55.91
SBCWD $98.71 $114.43 $116.73 $§119.06
Total $274.00 $294.68 $300.58 $306.59
San Felipe: Agricultural Current March 1,2023 March 1, 2024 March 1, 2025

Full Cost (RRA Section 205{a}{3}))
Cost of Stored & Acquired Water [1] $224.38 $115.00 $117.30 $119.65
SLDMWA (2] $15.65 $11.51 $11.74 $11.97
SCVWD [2] $74.03 $53.74 $54.81 $55.91
SBCWD $118.94 $114.43 $116.73 $119.06
Total $433.00 $294.68 $300.58 $306.59
San Felipe: Agricultural Current March 1, 2023 March 1, 2024 March 1, 2025
Full Cast (RRA Section 202(3))

Cost of Stored & Acquired Water {1] $202.38 $115.00 $117.30 $119.65
SLDMWA [2] $15.65 $11.51 $11.74 $11.97
SCVWD [2] $74.03 $53.74 $54.81 $55.91
SBCWD $118.94 $114.43 $116.73 $119.06
Total $411.00 $294.68 $300.58 $306.59

[1] Cost of Stored & Acquired Water for March 1, 2023 provided by SBCWD. Other years escalated.
This is a pass-through cost from USBR.
[2] Subject to pass-through if actual costs higher than projected.

6.2. M&Il Water Rates
Current and proposed M&I rates are shown in Table 6-2. Since the wholesale rates were adjusted in March 1,
2022, different current rates are shown for the WTP than for the small parcel service / Non-Agricultural

? Pass-through cost from USBR. _44-



(M&I). However, on March 1, 2023 the rates are proposed to be the same for all M&I customers. SBCWD
calculates the Cost of Stored & Acquired Water'” component of the San Felipe rate in a separate model and
provided the M&I rates for March 1, 2023 through March 1, 2025. The semitropic O&M subcomponent,
which is a pass-through, is added to the provided rates to develop the full Cost of Stored and Acquired Water
component. The other rate components (SLDMWA, SCVWD, and SBCWD) come from the unit rates
shown in the last row of Table 5-4 for March 1, 2023. The future years for these three rate components are
escalated at 2 percent per year in accordance with Table 4-11.

San Felipe: Non-Agricultural (M&1) Current March 1,2023 March 1,2024 March 1, 2025

Whetesale
Cost of Stored & Acquired Water [1] $448.96 $450.74 $433.05 $412.36
SLDMWA [2] $13.00 $11.51 $11.74 $11.97
SCVWD [2] $61.45 $53.74 $54.81 $55.91
SBCWD $123.71 $137.71 $140.47 $143.29
Total $647.12 $653.70 $640.07 $623.53
San Felipe: Small Parcel Service, Current March 1,2023 WMarch1,2024 March1, 2025

Nan-Agricultural (M&l)
Cost of Stored & Acquired Water [1] $225.84 $450.74 $433.05 $412.36
SLDMWA (2] $13.00 $11.51 $11.74 $11.97
SCVWD [2] $61.45 §53.74 $54.81 $55.91
SBCWD $123.71 $137.71 $140.47 $143.29
Total $424.00 $653.70 $640.07 $623.53

[1] Cost of Stored & Acquired Water provided by SBCWD. This includes a pass-through of USBR costs.
[2] Subject to pass-through if actual costs higher than projected.

6.3. Water Supply-Reliability Charge

M&I customers will also see a new water supply-reliability charge, which is a charge to cover the reliability
projects being developed for the benefit of existing customers. As discussed in Section 4.5, this charge is
designed to recover costs associated with enhancing reliability of the water supply for M&I customets.

SBCWD plans to phase in the charge over four years, drawing upon reserves in the early years.

! Tal'A £ - Yy - 1 | v "na
TOL 1 ¥ \ JIYy=-MNelability Litairys

Water Supply-Reliability Charge [1] Current March 1,2023 March1,2024 March1, 2025
All M&I Customers $0.00 $100.00 $175.00 $250.00
[1] Charge to cover supply reliability projects for the benefit of existing customers.

6.4. Groundwater Rates
Table 6-4 shows the current and proposed groundwater rates. The March 1, 2023 rate is the cost-of-service
rate and the subsequent years are escalated at 2 percent per year in accordance with Table 4-11.

10 Pass-through cost from USBR. -45-



Groundwater Charges Current March 1,2023 March 1,2024 March 1, 2025

(Well customers)

Ag $13.55 $13.75 $14.03 $14.31
M&t $40.55 $13.75 $14.03 $14.31
f},:j' ’”’:"j“-‘,,” l‘l'(j “j\’.v‘;"{,“ i"“(‘i"“‘

Table 6-5 shows the current and proposed recycled water rates and power charges related to pumping recycled
water. The March 1, 2023 rates are the cost-of-service rate. The recycled water rate in subsequent years is
escalated at 2 percent per year in accordance with Table 4-11. The recycled water power rate in subsequent
years is escalated at 3.5 percent per year consistent with the escalation used for utility-related costs. The
recycled water power charge is subject to additional pass-through increases if actual costs are higher than
projected.

Recycled Water Rates Current March 1,2023 March1, 2024 WMarch 1, 2025
Recycled Water $211.00 $294.70 $300.59 $306.61
Power Charge* $63.09 $101.10 $104.65 $108.32

* Subject to pass-through if actual costs higher than projected.

6.6. Power Charge

Table 6-6 shows the current and proposed power charges. SBCWD has consolidated the power charge into
those outside subsystem 9 and those within subsystem 9. Subsystem 9 is unique due to additional pumping
requirements. The March 1, 2023 rates are the cost-of-service rates and the subsequent years are escalated at
3.5 percent per year consistent with the escalation used for utility-related costs. If the pass-through portion of
the power charges increases, these charges are subject to those pass-throughs.

rent and Proposed Power Charges

Power Charge Current March 1, 2023 March 11,2024 March 1, 2025

Subsystem 2* $85.35 $40.22 $41.64 $43.10
Subsystem 6H* $41.50 $40.22 $41.64 $43.10
Subsystem 9L* $93.55 $94.01 $§97.31 $100.73
Subsystem 9H* $138.25 $94.01 $97.31 $100.73
All other subsystems* $35.75 $40.22 $41.64 $43.10

* Subject to pass-through if actual costs higher than projected.

-46-



7. Capacity Fee

Capital facility fees are also commonly known as developer fees, development impact fees, connection fees,
tap fees, and system development charges, among others. All are one-time capital charges, assessed against a
new development, to recover the proportional share of capital facility investment, previously constructed by a
utility (or will be constructed), to accommodate growth. Capital facility fees are codified in the California
Government Code Sections 66000-60025. Capital facility fees must reflect the link between the fee imposed
on, and the benefit received by, a new connection to the system. The fee charged may not exceed the
reasonable share of costs associated with providing the service.

4 -4

. Methodology Options

Broadly, modelers use one of three different methodologies to calculate capacity fees: Buy-In, Incremental,
and Hybrid; with variations of each dictated by local community and system characteristics, as well as policy
objectives. Utilities have broad latitude in the method and approach used to calculate fees, provided the fees
reflect the benefit and do not exceed the costs for providing service to the connection. These fees are designed
to be proportional to the burden placed on the system by new connections.

7.1.1. Buy-In Method

The Buy-In Method is based on the premise that new customers are entitled to service at the same price as
existing customers. Under this approach, new customers pay only an amount equal to the current system
value, either using the original cost or replacement cost as the valuation basis and either netting the value of
depreciation or not. This net investment, or value of the system, is then divided by the current capacity of the
system to determine the Buy-In cost per unit.

For example, if the existing system has 100 units of average usage and the new connector uses an equivalent
unit, then the new customer would pay 1/100 of the total value of the existing system. By contributing this
capacity fee, the new connector has bought into the existing system. The user has effectively acquired a
financial position on par with existing customers and will face future capital re-investment on equal financial
footing with those customers. This approach is suitable when: (1) agencies have built most of their facilities
and only a small portion of future facilities are needed for build-out, (2) agencies do not have a detailed
adopted long-term capital improvement plan, or (3) the “build-out” date is so far out in the future that it is
difficult to accurately project growth and required facilities with precision. Figure 7-1 shows the framework
for calculating the Buy-In capacity fee.

Current
Capacity
(e.g., # of

Value of Existing System

Available for Growth ($) Buy-in Cost

Current Cuerent . Equivalent ($/umt)
Asset L Reserve [0 o"'::xm'
value Balance Mﬁteﬁ)




7.1.2. Incremental Cost Method

The Incremental Cost Method states that new development (new users) should pay for the additional capacity
and expansions necessary to accommodate them. This method is typically used when there are specific capital
improvements needed to furnish growth for development. Under the Incremental Cost Method, growth-
related capital improvements are allocated to new development based on their estimated usage or capacity
requirements, irrespective of the value of past investments made by existing customers.

For instance, if it costs X dollars ($X) to provide 100 additional equivalent units of capacity for average usage
and a new connector uses one of those equivalent units, then the new user would pay $X/100 to connect to
the system. In other words, new customers pay the incremental cost of capacity. Incorporating the use of this
method is generally included when detailed facilities are identified for the capacity required to serve new
customers. Figure 7-2 shows the framework for calculating the incremental cost capacity fee.

Total Capital Improvements
(S) Incremental

Increase in Incremental Cost

CHnapRy {$/unit)
Growth

While California Code 66013 (b)(3) does not define a specific period over which to include future projects,
these periods can be as long as a master planning period.

7.1.3. Hybrid Method

The hybrid method is typically used where some capacity is available to serve new growth, but additional
expansion is still necessary to accommodate new development. Under the hybrid method, the capital facility
fee is based on the summation of the existing capacity and any necessary expansions.

Capital improvements that expand system capacity to serve future customers may be included proportionally

to the percentage of the cost specifically required for expansion of the system. Figure 7-3 summarizes the
framework for calculating the Hybrid capacity fee.

Figure 7-3: Formula for Hybrid Method

Buy-In Cost Incremental Cost

($/unit) ($/unit) Total Cost ($/unit)




7.1.4. Recommended Methodology

Since SBCWD is capacity constrained, the Raftelis Team recommends using the incremental method.

1131

The incremental method capacity fee is based on the cost of the growth-related projects divided by the
additional capacity provided by those projects. Growth-related projects have been identified SBCWD’s
engineering consultants, HDR''. The capital cost associated with this project is approximately $69 million,
escalated. This represents a portion of the New Supply & Reliability project costs shown in Table 4-7.

Table 7-1 shows the steps to determining the estimated number of single-family residential (SFR) dwelling
units that can be served by the new capacity. Per HDR, the average annual yield of the growth project is

1,500 AF'2. Due to mixing of water sources to meet quality requirements, each unit of new demand will be
met with an 81/19 percent mix of new water source to current water source. This in effect increases the
average annual yield to 1,852 AF. The presumed average demand per single-family residential dwelling unit is
0.33 AF". Dividing 1,852 AF of capacity by 0.33 AF of demand per unit results in an estimated 5,612 single-
family equivalent units that can be served by the new capacity.

Average annual yield of growth projects, AF 1,500
% of new demand met through new sources 0.81
Adjusted additional capacity, AF 1,852
Demand (AF)/SFR unit 0.33
Estimated new units 5,612

Table 7-2 shows the calculation of the new water supply capacity fee. The fess is the capital cost divided by
the estimated single family residential units that can be served by that capacity.

Basis of Proposed Water Supply Capacity Fees

Growth Capital Projects 568,824,425
Estimated SFR Units 5,612
Total, $/unit $12,265

I' Kennedy, Holly, et al., “Final Draft San Benito Urban Areas Water Supply and Treatment Master Plan Update”,
HDR, Folsom, California, June 2022.

12 ibid.

13 “Water Demand Projections Technical Memorandum -49_er Plan Update”, HDR, Folsom, California, January 2022.



Capital Improvement
Program, Inflated

-50-



BL8°866'VS 695'VIT'ZLS SEVIBL'SES £59°/E0'VIS G96'EVR'YPS VSO'E6S'WZS LLL'B90'8S TPY'OLO’LS E£SV'O09'ES OL9'TIS'8S LLZ'7£6'1%

pajepu - S150) 123foud 2104

0$ 0s £E9'166°6TS LLT'SIV'ETS L89'6P8'8TS ¥6E'SOT'ZS 6ST'IPIZS S6L'8L0'7$ 9EL'STTTS vwB'LIOTS 0%

0s 0s 0s 03 £98'08T°72S 606'TES'1Z$ 889°090'SS LTYTISVS 9E9'680°TS v8L'TLO'SS OEV'686S

0% 03 £48°8T5'TTS 05 0s 0$ 0% 0% 0$ 0$ 0%

0$ 0$ 0$ 03 0s 0s 0$ 0% 0% 03 0$

£56°I8R'ES BET'IRZS  BEWIVY'TS GEB'SST'ES E610ST'ES 0SS'96TS  TSTETS  9E8'STZS  T6V'TIZS  9L6'LEVS 0%

£€84°L52S 0% 0% 0% 0% 0s 0s 0s 03 0% 0s

0% $T6'800°TS 05 0s 0$ 0% 0s 0$ 0% 0% 0%

0% 0% RBT'ETOLS 0% 0% 0% 0s 0% 0$ 0% 0$

0s 0$ 0% vE6'6LSS 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 05 0%

0% 0% 0% 0% 058'€055 05 0s 0% 0s 0% 0%

0% 0$ 0s 0s 0s 655’7068 0% 0% 0% 0s 0$

0% 0$ 0% 03 0s 0s S18'48L5 0S5 0s 0$ 0s

0% 0% 0s 0% 0s 0% 0% 6Y8'651S  0$ 0% 03

0% 0% 0s 0% 0% 05 0% 0% 857'LLTS 0% 03

0% 0s 0s 0% 0$ 0$ 0s 0s 0$ LTE'TIBS  0S

05 0s 0$ 05 0% 0% 0s s 0s 0% 0%

0% 0$ 0s 0$ 0s 0% 05 0s 0% 0s 0s

0s 0% 0% 0% 0% 0$ 0% 0$ 0% 0$ 0s

0$ 0s 0% 0$ 0% 0$ 0s 0$ 0$ 0$ 000°005%

0% 0s 0% 0% 0s 0s 0s 03 645'965 0% 05

0$ 0% 0% 03 05 0$ 0% 0% 0% 000'1Z$ 0%

8TLT6LS  619'69L$  EITLWLS  6b¥'STLS 0% 0s 0$ 0s 0s 0s 0%

0$ 0$ 0s 0$ s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s

0% 0% 0s 0s 0s 0% 03 03 05 0% 0%

03 0$ 0s 0s 0s 0% 0s 0% 0$ 03 0$

vZ8'99S  LL8'V9S 886'79% €51°79% 2LE'6SS £v9'LS$ p96'SSS  PEE'PSS  TSLGS  6ET'0SS  L¥RULYS

0% 0% 0% 0% 0$ 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 000°051$
0% 0s 0% 0s 0$ 0% 0% 000°$¥$

0 r—— _ 05

CPprAE 0 RYOTAM [Z0PAL EOTAL SIDE AL WEDI A PTOTAY TeOL A

{s)vefoid YIMmoin MaN

(shoeload Anlgeiey maN

BJBWIIST BDUIPISYNS [BURD INTIS

Aydeden T YoeaY PaiiLiWOoIUN 10} BSINQUIRY AMAIS
aieys gMOEs - OM Adjien eiepd ejues

walold qeysy 11 (esien

vafosd aeysy o1 jesaie]

wafolg geysy 6 ™

waloig qeyay L 13N

pafoid qeysy g, ' N

o014 geysy § jpiazed

199{044d qeyay v jeianer

123044 qeyay ¢ jesaie]

18f0ad qeysy ¢ jessie]

1afoig qeyay T jeeen

108{oud 12M04 221113343 uonels duing

uoielS duing 123soog aining JB1eAA pajoAday

$SR07Y Jaguiey?) Jien OIshf ues

19f0.d D7d

Juipjing sdesog

199{0.4 JO0Y ‘PY PIRYSUBI 18 BUIPING 32140 PIO

139{014 Juawade|day duing 0Isyded

123{04d to1adsu) 'R UOIIRY|IGRYDY UNPUCD 18ISI||OH
13{0id JuswaBeuey 19ssY JUeld JUDWIIRSL ] IBIBM SHIIH 159M
109[044d JuU3LIBTRUBI 1955V JUB|d JUSWIILIIL JB1BMN 1BSSDT
weifoid pingay pue uolienieal waisAs Budwing

103{044 JUBWIadR|daY BAjeA Buniein8ay 3inssald InouIny
1vafoigd Bunuied ypowiny

wonduasan Dl




Water Supply-Reliability
Cashflow Projection

-



SOV TeY' TS STL°09€% PSEBSLTS)  (BTL998'€5)  (569°006'SS)  (vel'9L8°LS)  (BEL'160'65)  (BSE'T99'TIS) (8LO'ELV'ETS) asuejeqg Sulpu3

80£'7EE'8S T2£'692'8S 8L5°207'8S £67'(P1'8s 8/7'880'8% 860'TE0'8S LIT'SL6'LS 705'0Z6'LS 612°L98°LS S3S[) |BI0L
0% 0s 0$ 0s 0$ 05 03 0% 0s aAIaSAY 1G3(Q 03 UOHNGLIUOD
YERTOOTS 901'871°2S 601°052°CS S86°298'CS 9/8'18¥°CS S16°'165'CS 7£T'869°CS $56'008'2% y0T'006°CS 153133Uf - AIAIIS IGRQ
TSO'VEL'ES 08£°209°¢S 8L4'S8YES 106°(9€'ES TT0'VST'ES CUG'EVT'ES HS9'LEQES TE6'PEE'TS 789'5£8'7S {edduld - 30IAIS 1920
0% 0% 0s 0s 0$ 0s 0% 0% 0s jexde) papuny ysed
12896528 PRYEESTS 769'1LY'TS LOVIIYTS T6STSETS zre'seT'es T1€T'6EL°LS 919'v81'2S CEETET'TS WSO
sasuadxl
86E'V9Y'0TS  GEV'6BEOTS  ZVE'YIEOLS 027181018 £L05'Y90°0TS £11256'65 LEL'6E8'6S ZLT'IEL'6S YEE'9796S S324N0S B30
6LTLET VS TLE'L66°ES v61'798'€S Pp1089'€S 924'905°¢S 975 ThE'ES SSIPBTES OPT'VEQ’ES 97%'168°75 a81ey) Anpgeyay-Ajddng saiem
YE8100'TS 501°871°T% 601°052'2S $86°£9E°TS 9/818%7S SI6°165°7% 7ET'869°TS $56'008°2S $0T'006'CS soxet
SRTSTEDS 796'€37v$ ov9'ToT'YS TPTEET'VS 906'5L0'VS 2L9810°%S 6YE'LS6'ES LT0'968°€S POL'PER'ES 294 Ajoec %

sanu o

(8T£'998'€$)  (569'006'6S)  (vT/'9/8'L$)  (BEL'L6L'6S)  (BSE'TITTS) (BLO'ELY'ETS) (V6T'ZEL'STS) _3ouejeg Sujuuidag

STL09ES (ySEESLTS)

0z 0% A LEOTAd QEOT Ad 5207 Ad PEOCAd  EEOTAd ZEOL AL 1E02 A4
re12e7's18)  (6E0'9TvbIS)  (z17'e85'e19)  (962°876'01S)  (z14'786'68)  (b9¥'096'28)  {TL0'wi6’sS)  {£98°518°9%)  (0£v'686%) souejeg Supul
v8LU'6VE'0TS  €99'TLZ'0TS  8YT'900°T1S 866'8L¥'8S LY8T0LLS TV Or99s TLE°80T'ES 871°060°LS 0£v'6865 s3s |10}
0% 0s ¥80'665°7S Z208°9¢1'¢eS 0s 0s 0s 0$ 0s 3AIISIY 1G3(Q 03 UOHNGLIUOD
L60°966'7S LVL'380°ES €92'BLT'ES Z5E'095'1S 0s 0s 0s 0% 0s 153491u| - BIIALRS 3G3Q
06L'6€L'2S ovTLY9TS £79'£55'TS 0Sv'945°TS 0$ 0s 0s 0% 03 {edidulld - 901125 1G9
855'18LES PeEVTLES LLT'TL9'ES v6£'502°2S L¥810T'LS TY'ore’es TLE'BOT'ES 871'060°LS 0EV'686% jeydeD papung ysed
6£L'1€8% £SY'T18S 0% 0s 0$ 0$ 0s 0% 0% W30
sasuadx3y
0£0'€E56S 9£8'REV'6S ZEL'TSE'GS SI6'ZES'LS 865'641'6S 620'P65YS o1'0TT'vS S69°€92°1$ 0s $324N0S |230]
SLE'SSL'TS 99/'679°7% 162°205°2% 619'85€°C3 108'819'TS 162°280'1S £8Y'L¥9S 616V1IIS 0$ agiey) Anjigenay-Ajddns so1em
160'966'23 LtL'8BO'ES £97°8L1'ES 7S€°095°'T$ 0s 0s 0s 0% 0s saxey
8S5I8L'ES YETEYTL'ES LLT'TLYES EV6'ET9ES L6£095'ES BELTTIS'ES 189°79V°€S 9LL'8YTTS 0% a4 Awoede)d
SANUIAIY
(6£0'9T¢'vTS)  (Z12°€8SETS)  (964°826°01S)  (212'786'6S)  (v9v'096'4S)  (TL0'v16'SS)  (£98'S18'9%)  (0€V'686S) 03 souejeg Sujuuidag

6Z0Z Ad Q20 Ad LZ0TAd T Ad GEOZAd | vIOT M ETOZAd  TZOL A4

uonoaforg mopgyse) AnjqerpPy-Addng 1a1e M\




(0S) {e09'cT119) (ze0'141'28) (S6£45vTES) [osz150'vS)  (Lv9°068'vS)  (590°£99'6S)  (S81'€8E'93)  (£5L'ev0'LS) aduejeq Suipus

6ET'6Y9'9S 55H°065°95 0BOPSY'9S 950°09¢'9% STE'892°95 TE8'8LT9S 075'160'9% 6EE'900'98 SET'ET6'SS S35 {e30L
0s 0% 0s 0s 0% 0s 0% 03 0% 8AI353Y 1gSQ 01 UORNQLILO)
T68°L8S TI82LIS 658528 TET'VEES STLOTYS 8TLY8rs 8TT'955S OTE'529S 950°769% 158433U} - 3DIAIBS 1620
Z6T'TISTS €L7'9TY'TS STTHVETS TS6'Y9TTS 65£'881°2S LSEYTITZS L5870 SLL'ELE'TS 620°L06'1S {edpulld - 93IAI85 1930
0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 03 0s 0s lende) papund ysed
§ST050vS TLE'TS6'ES 966'VS8'ES TL6°09L'ES I9T'699'€S LYL'6LS'ES 9EVZEY'ES SSTLOV'ES TSTvEe'es W30
sasuadxy
LYRTLLLS v88'L65°LS £48'8ZY'LS L1§'S97°LS STLLOTLS 057'55695 ov6'L08'9S 11959995 960'825'9S $324Nn0S |R10)
056'v89°LS £L0'STYLS €86'€LT'LS SRETEE9S 066'969°9% 725°0L¥'98 [ATRTTAC]S ZOE'0Y0'9S ov0'9e8°sS afieyd Ajjigelay-Alddng so1em
768'48% T18'2L1$ 658'752$ ZET'VEES GZL0TYS 8TL'v8YS 827'955% 01€'s29% 950'769% saxel
0$ 0s 0% 0$ 0$ 0% 0% 0% 0$ aa4 Aloe <
sanu i

(€09'€TT'TS)  (2€0'T41°2)  (S6L'SKT'ES) aouejeg Buluuidag

N € ‘€5 {952°150'v$)
S50Z Ad

 {299'068'%$)
 PSDZ M

$9'068'7$)  (590'299'SS)  (S8Y'E8E'9S)  (£SL°Tw0'LS)
_ ESOZAd

3y'€8€'0S)  (£SL2v0'LS)  (BI9'LYI'LS)
1502A4  DSOZAd

6907 Ad

 BSEM

(819°L1¥9(S) {069°00285) (06v'v0L 83} (zoL'0E1'98) {rs8'v19'es)  (569'6S1°TS) 866'(¥7'1S LTV L6S'ES rr'0L0'ps 3duejeg Supu3
851'7¥8'sS 650'€9.'6S 169°728'8$ €0V LvL'8S 1S6°€£9°85 16270985 6LE'7ES'8S ZLT'pov'8s 829°L6£'8S sas [B10L
0$ 03 0% 0$ 0% 0s 0s 0s 0% SAIBSIY 1GSQ 03 UONNYLIU0D
S¥5'99LS £58'818% 671'5865 €8L'SYT'1S $00°10€1S 9L605Y'1S 9/8'565TS 9/8'SEL'TS WT'TL8'TS 153483 - BIAIBS 1G]
ovS ZYE'1S ZET08L'TS LSL°05L'vS 01°065'7S £88'VEV'YS 1T6'98Z'vS 110°0PT'YS 010'000'vS rLPI8'ES fedund - 9310485 1930
0s 0% 0s 0s 0s 0s 03 0% 03 jende) papuny ysed
PLOEVTES SL6'E9TES S08'980°€S LIS TI0'ES $90'8E6'TS 505'998'7$ £6°96L°73 SBZBTLTS vL199'TS WBRO

' sasuadxy
1€7'66E°9S$ 658'992°9% £06'872°9% 556 T€29% £6LY1T'9S 865'861'9% 166'781'9% L81'T66°LS $99'6/6'6S $33UN0S je30 ]
989'8£9°GS 900'8V%'SS vLL892°5S 7LL'580'SS 68L'ET6'VS 729 (b LS SLO'L85YS 956" TEY VS £80°78Z'PS adseyd Aupqgelsy-Ajddng sa1em
SPS'95LS £58'818% 671°586% £82'SYT'TS P00'10€'1S 9/6'05P'1S 9£8'965TS 9/8'SELTS T'TL8'TS saxel
0s 0s 0s 0$ 0% 0s 0$ PCE'ERTS OvH'TTR'ES 934 Aypeded

SBNUIASY
(069°'002'8$)  (06v'V0L'8S)  (20L'0£1'9S)  (ySBYI9'ES)  (S69'SST'IS)  866'LVZ'TS LTV'LBS'ES  TYP'OLO'YS  SOV'TEV'LS souejeg duluuidag

2707 Ad ZEOT AL SPOT Ad PPOTAd  EVOZAd  TVOZ A 1007 Ad 0b0T Ad

panunuo)) ‘uondaforg mopgyse) Lyjiqeay-Addng 1332




APPENDIX: (

O&M Allocation, Test Year

-55-



#0007
»ocol
#0001
%0001
HO'COT
%0001
%0001
%0001

“0'oot

0007

Y0001

#0001

%0'C01

¥0'C01

260001

%0C0T

#0001

%0'007T

Bt

BV
K000

%0001
$40'00T

ROCOT
=000y

%0'00T

%#0°001

Riveld

5%0'c01
%0'00T

005

#0005

%6
%6
6TV
56T

%0'00T

%0°001
HE'LL

%0001

U6'LL

%0'007

%0°COT

%TL8
%148
pAYA:]
%148

%Y'61

6T

§92'9S
688'S1S
1578

BTE'GSS

HONRELI0IU YANG/AWSILIFAPY
SNRIRNOD

aileaj pue s

asuadx] $3au|sng [Fa09D
SUOHTHLINUIIOY

s&rddng a0
ng/suonduisqng

£76'669°ES

££9'E1S afnsog
985’821 MY 3K v
$a74 pue S3nQ
OvR'6S saduey)yaneuly
BANEASIUNUPY PUE |RIDBUID
998'EVE'FS SIS DRAUOT [I0)
S79°SZS MIOMA [P55NIN PIGAZ OISPT UES J0uy 5 70-205-6T€0-T629-009
SLT'E6S Tesd uoneuaURldl dWAE! §D 20-1 T5-P126-1622-009
v86'995 (sanIADE PAILIR JAD) VAMINTS-SWEIR01d-§D §0-€35-6070°1 629-009
052'01S Aepdn urld JNMEL 724d-52 10°11 5-6810-T629-009
005028 OL-UE oM 01Sn[ UPS-104y §3 20" T25-SrTO-T624-009
Juninsio) wesfioly
£9L°015 SERIg WASASANS-INQL FIMOURIWO 5] £0-25-0T60-5L79-008
£95°Z8 sued/r0qe; IULSUMOQ-SPIBN - $3 €0 T54-8160-5£29-009
389°51S 1212 PAPAIRY HINRUANILIN-5D 1D-25S-P0I0-5L29-009
0EG'TES VO-RMEUAURN-E) 90-E9S-000C §429-009
69¢S VO-PIRGIIC-S) £0-€95-0000-5£29°000
06525 NL-22UBUANPIN-E) 028 500005 L79-009
08L'1LS 20UEUMURI 5D 20" 27500005 £2%-009
005195 Wy-BauBUMUIRA §) €£0/70°2T5-0000-542¢-009
UANNTNy
ETLLELTS dLM SLHM - SH0NRAdD-S) L0-1E5-E090-0£29-C09
WUL'TS GIM HRSSRY - SUONERED D TO-TES-2090-0L79-009
SItjd uAIRI) -FuheIedQ
SL9LTS 193(014 1218 PAPAIIY SUONEIHIO §I 70-1¥S-b0IO-0LTI-009
£18°2TS OSS-VHM--URJd 1WAWATLULA HES-SGQ-$) BO-T1S-L9TD-0LZS 009
CCT'59S QSSAUAWAINSRIN MOj3 WEINS-HO-5) 70 TTS-EFI0-0LTS-009
ST9'L0TS OSS-VEM UONRAIISUOD S312M -ST0$) 8O- T1S-BETD-0L12-00Y
Eligzdy 0S5-1MID AenD 22180 §2 T0-11§-SE10-0429-009
GEL'LS VO-sUoNe:ad0-§3 §0°£95-0000-0£22-009
GLGEES OL-SUONPAGO-§D 20 T#5-000L 0LZE-009
suonessdo
BLLLTS LA SIIH 1591 - 1MIndwiod 53 10 TES-E090-0978-009
SITLES 25537 - 12100Wo) §) [0-1€5-2090-0979-009
15§'S5TS VO-#nduiny-§3 90-€95-0000-0929-009
(143743 VO-2ndwn)-§) 20-£95-0000-0928-009
B00'67S V-2Ind1i03-5) 90-155:0000-0979-009
1aindwiny
520'1S VO IUIasUO) (P1AUAD - S 50-£95-7090-0729-009
52165 VO- dLM Tuninsie) |e12u29-5) T0-£95-€090-0¥29-009
521'5$ VO- dL TUNINSUO) PIBURD-S) T E9S-T090-0779-009
£29'€87S VO-IUN{ASUO) [PIBURD-S) 10-£95-C000-0729-009
Juiynsuo) 208D
9LVIFS VO - Tnwnoy
0018 1arem papAday - Juaauidug €3 70-124-¥090-0279-609
TEI'ELS AanIng SIOAIRSAY OIEN] FS-S) 70 195-GYT0-0T2Y-009
DisaanTuz
S0€'891S v9-123371'53 90-£95-0000-0L22-009
05£'0€S v21#2a1 53 90-155-0000-01Z9-000
L]
$3MMIAS5 PeNUO)
61570718 5 A2M04 1B\I0 '§ JAMOJ 1PAJIQ [210)
FOR'06S PRI - Buidwing 13940-Md 20+ L 5-U000- 1528 009
STL'6ZS By - Aurdwng 24G-Md £0-F1 50000 11Z5-009
{4938 MmeY) JoMOd SDYID F FOMO4 NG
L05'2818 VMINGTIS- WRO ATPR3 dAD-Md
TI8'vZrs am Asjjep eiepd eaues 101
TI8'bTHS {eInIrIues) T PRy adiag ueg

QM ATJIRA RIR]D FILES YA PYEPOTSY SI50D

[1] yFnoayy ssed - smem Jo 1503

3 THE XS B AR prer OM3ES  OMAS YA WO WOSH/AAE)
e Rapnrs e
: {1l panrhay % s
FRR papAsen IRTERA PINSTUTE A

uswelisey Peng /44

Kpmyg e sSTE b ouaZ  JANSIE 1NN AwmoD B1jueg ueg



L ugvae
RZulesle

BOOT

HYTOT
SGORT
HOTOY

HO'001T

pAigie

HOO0T

%007
A DGT

%001

#3007

#0001

560°00%
Kt

S0D0T
50" 001

*10R
%0'001
%0°001T
WBODS %005

RarHy

M'00T

B0
%9 1L HORE

AP00T
%0'00T
H#000T

%001

®=ON0T

HOOT

H/OGS YOS
WOS OO

%00T
5607007
%0001
#O00T
9%0°00T
0007

HOOT
%00t
%0001
00T
05 05

HEO0T

%861

06T
HUOOT

%:0°00T

%0'60T

=®ODGY

%0007

809’92 O-ad0->9eM D0-195-0000-7T19-009
SEV'LIOTS yo-euateunp-ssiem 00-795-000D-1119-009
YIS VI-UDISIAIIONS-SAEA 00-TS5-0000-0TT9-003
[24:43:139 W -uoisiaaong-saties 00-705-0000-0T 15009
£09°12S O1-uomIARGNG SiEM 00 T75-0000-0T19-005
9727C$ Wd-umsIARENS-saRep 00-225- CORD-DTT9-009
SREEM
sawwary patayey s0A0jdw3 pus seem
ZOUTLSS sapna jeie)
ELF055 THERIng IATEA Papkomy ~ ST CD- 175 POS0-0985 009
(4 g S5H 1SRN TRIIN TO-TES/TES-£090-0989-009
078'95TS YPSSTI-d LAA-SHMNN TO-TES/TES-2050-0989-008
743 YOS B0-755-0R00-0989-003
[33 7443 SAEN FO/Z0-795-0000-0989-009
5E5$ 33} (RSOSSN SN €0-THS-CO00-098%-003
59L°E5S 015NN $O/T0-TS-0000-0989-0NS
GED'SETS Od SN YO/70-F75-0000-0989-009
onnn
SLYIGES Wadinb3 ' SRR [TI0L
561915 FURUARNT jRemby
[24:0333 A0 RIRBA
ESE'NTS AIUPUIIEN HIRA
STES Adang 7g SiMBWY ISOH IBIEVPUNGIO HO-TES-0000-0FES-009
£1433 Aang 1§ S19190 INOH IIEMPUNCID 70-1S5-G000-0YES-009
450°8% Addnsjsung PursuMog S5 £0-TIS-BI60-LEES-002
GER'ETS VI-MAN] --SAAEA UeNPIRIRY) £0-T56-9T60-LEFF-D09
EZE'LTS WO-imRN) SIMAN £0° T55-GT60-L FEP-00D
(1A 414 SINRA R SIMBIN E0-TES-POGD-L EE9-009
IMIN
BOES Wi- jeuay by g (D) £0-TeS ¥ 59%-009
S5°55 VO [FuDY UAWENE3 F 100} 50-295-0000-0573 009
BES'TS WAARUeY uawdinby 7 1004 £0-205-0000-0579-009
sy qususdinhy pur 0o}
9TT6IS ¥D ST AINBI/FMTRUNY IO 9-195-0000-0rPH-009
892'TS WE-asEGIng Wawdinb] £0-7¢5-0000-07rS-009
£26% O55--252nng WmNdINDS T0-TTS-0000-0%59-069
FERIPIN NG FNO/ USSR
198 YO-ASYIING $00) 307G DO00-0EE9-009
050'78 WL-PSERING 4e0) ¥0-Zv5-000D-0E£9-009
590% Wi-ARYIINg 00 70-T75-0000-08E9-009
BILS OS5-ISTYN 500 20-TES-O000-0FED 0N
ASPARANG {004
E66'TTS WOL Wb 2nPRnAS-sdng £0-75-0000-TEE9-00%
6H0'ES WOl Sinb3 ampnag-saddns Z0-705-0000- 1265009
4 Wid-dinb3 ampnas-sadong £0-125-0000-T269-009
2£0'7T5 W Wawdinhy in1anag - sddns 20-275-0000-TTER-009
057'155 1594034 WITY IARA INIR-SATANS Z0-745-6E60-0L89-003
3¥'955 SYERIG WAISASNS - W1 SANTTNS £O-Z06-0260-0769-C09
9528 ¥ - saRddng 90-295-¥090-0T£9-009
590§ DL - dféy ~SPAdNg 70-TH5-$090-02€9-009
96°0TS VO-SAEANS 80-295-0000-0759-009
SLO'ES wo-43yddng £0-795-0000-0ZE9-009
28Y°0%S Wi-Saddng £0-T95-0000-0759-609
WIS WL SHdang 70-765-0000-02£3-009
520°TS OL-sAdng €0 THS-0000-0269-009
0ETTS 01-sanddng Z0- T36-CO0D0ZED-00
050'Z W4-Feyddng €0-T75-0000-02£5-009
80E$ Os-saydiing 70-115-0000-02E9-009
sapddng
000175 BIRM PIPPAONY- SIORIBN EO/Z0-2¥5 FOSO-OTES-008
90F'ZS WL-SPIAIBY) £0-THS-0000-D1E9-009
otr$ OS3-SPHWAYT T0-TE5-0000-0169-008
EINNAY)
by pue sRHAER
1ET'4265 IARENIUILIPY PUT PLIUID [RI0L
TETTL5 YL ST RA- POURITRUL T0- P35 € 0B0-1 £95-000
8L 41 YESSITANIEMNY] TO-+95-TO90-T/B9-009
vLE'ESS PIURIDTU] 90-FF5-0000- TL89-H09
AN
521'58 ) G0 AUISIBADY 902550000389 009

Eposg BYER JepNE § SURZ ) DIV DTN AIUNOD MiBes URE

-57-



“pson yincigi-sted e sy s [T)

RED BT WY SE %20 WLy wHT SE E753 %7 REC HOTT S0°S RO IV 30 GoHEIGHY
£LW06S  SETVOIS  S5O'YSY'SE LET'6TTS SLU'EP94 TIN'GHTS SIEPBE'SS DOO'LHES TEL'ETTS O00'0VS THEEED TS E8£°9LLS SOT'OIY'STS PRINGLASPHY - SaSUIORT WBD [MI0L
YOrETS ) 148684 1TSS B6H' 4TS RaupuMUIRYY pauRsy AsRaq 180 soniIopRRY
PIHEES L2E°6% TIEIGTTS 091875 OrL¥6'TS satian pauicey ATRag.d
054°88S YRETES DIGVETS 659798 27055 BRTIYTS FLEESS TL9'TTTS LRGR0'TS el A 8 AR “HESN HUPNKE - WSO pRuilissy AaRag d
207 PRIAPW 30 UOREIONTRY
828'STS r0'(rS ELE09S BOE'ETIS AIURUBWIEIN pBISTY ARG
G¥IGTS 086958 0524165 OL6'83TS BETYPTIS saltnpa pailiey Apsasg
2489715 £54°96% LBTEOYS POL(BTS PUL'IDS IS TI8'PZES (ST'I9IS POSIES LTTHGT'ES mich Y 2 R4 HESN SUIBRIR - 0RO RISy AIRRg

£330 FIBNHPU 40} STICG UONEIOHERY

S6V'P0LS CEYLYE'TS L88'680'1S ££9'0S6  LAVITS  |sso'vsv'ss £52°955 2905008 [0T'L81S OVZ'6LTES TIRBIVS LSTYSIS 000'OvS 15'689°1S $05'99€5 ROTOTY'STS sasuad) WHO 1701
%O00T 200°0rS W20 Adosnss
%0001 POT'LRTS FUYUO | #5RY4 USY BN SRSEPIING 1085
IST'IPGTS Peruey AI0IEPUC RSN RICL
00T YT MUAWAT G TRl PRI
%000t 960'LLLTS iedud pen
PEANC) AICIepURIV YIS
SLT98TES sazuadiy paipay Sadodwy pun SABEM 1210)
%0007 ST L5 5] URGPY (98]0 WNH - YRCIIISP0 SSSPM DO-§95-TRI0-661-009
HOGOT BOE'FZTS FAUAEN3 G340 DO 595 00DD-B619-009
PR
SO0 LIRS SN bur Juauday punsiag
S®ETOOT ORT'ES Hurpwa g Fraq pHn SRR JEsAgg
A CIT 3591 Ty
SODOT T9E°E1S a3rIns] sakojdu
SO L9858 UORESBITHRO] § 08
00T 195°8LS INS/RITXPIN
wh'oot FET'ZSES WBBAULAY
507001 SLTES apesidn Anauey YOYIS-d5 00-195-6760-T219-009
BO0OT 15%3 AI08 SURAITD STRAAG 9GT A -dS 00195 £ T60-TBIS-DND
240'001 ESS'8YS fnepapl g 1wsLRass - SPHEM 00-T95-T090- 1819009
%0'001 TOV'RSE 1014 #04 AUD AlddNg J51RAR J5-SRBCM 00 195-9220-1819-009
HADOT £OHTS dx3 AIaSAY ORHITY -dS DO THGLLTOTRIS-009
#0007 (3343 RARRIN NN NMMENH SSPEM-JS 00 195-STZ-1BTS-009
00T RSES WEID UBNEINBIGU GINAYT SBEM-JS (0-T95 PIZ0-TRIS-009
%0t 95 Epn Rl HAAY-dS DO T95-6RTO-TRTS-008
Y 00F 16355 51990014 jrioads- 340 O0- T95-0000-T819-009
HOOT FACATS YO IMNOF HURD-STHER 00-195-0000-0RT9-0G9
HOGOT ESTTLS YO-353 SI01RNG--HREM 00195 0000-0/ 13009
%108 HEGT  |OwE'SILS WD RPN Tunadhy puc Ml SAEEM 00-155-0000-0319-009
00T L4 1A% YO-HEpEaY VNN SMY-SRREA 00-TSS FOS0-05T9-008
%0°00T 95725 YO-Hupray P SR DY-TSS-D000-05T9-009
HO00Y PET'ETS PL-AIIREBIHEA ANH-SFHER 0D TS HOR0-0VTS-009
HOOOT T30°90ES VD-IWCUIUIPINSIIRA, (0~ T95-0000-05 9008
SOG0T ZLTEVLS Wi -uzuRuIeN-SAHCM D0-TP5-DODO-DFES-009
HABG R0 L0125 WA-AIBURIITA-S3PAL 00-TZS-0000-0FTS-009
%0007 {918 WSS-URUANIIPA-<AtIEAT DD-2T1S-0000-0715-009
Hont 18485 QLUONEIBA0 dMAU-SPREM 00-THS-IS0-0ETI-009
HOBOT FEGLES O4-susaedQ-soRefs 00-145-CO0D-VETD-003
HO0S 00§ 9LLTTS Od-uenend0-$aiem 05 T25-0000-05 19-009
D01 [SLLERS @55 wupptespdQ-alitp 00 TES-0000-0£19-009
001 TYT0LS O1-SaNADS PR GMN-PHEM DO-THS-F0I0-DTTI-008
%0007 0SO'OLS LSRG R saleA 00-THE-0000-0719-009
%0001 752'05% QL-53UAIRS EHUPRLSIEPM 00" TH5-DNR0-02T9- 008
HOOG 5005 IST0ES Od-SRAAIRT [PIUYIL-4RTEM 00" TZ5-0000-0219-009
|revess ) 55-SEHAIS [PAULDDL-SHHEM 00-1[6-0000-07T2-008

Spnyy wioy sIUM § ewad 1 131G 01 Aunns Y Ry

-58-



APPENDIX: D

Net Plant Investment Allocation,

Test Year

-59-



-60-

‘paudisse AjIosHp JO wins ayl 3%} paiedoje sijueld [isueo {1]

%L'T %199 %01 %90 %b61 %0'0 %00 %00 %00 %10 %Y'0 %070 UOIIED0][Y JUBIISDAU JUR]d ION jRI0L

POE'92TTS [OPI'PES'ISS [OVO'oEE'SS  [IBTZTEPS  9LY'ZEISTIS OS (133 0% 113 065'£9% 99€'2IES 0% L66'EV6'LLS JUBUISBAL Jueld DN |BI0L

SHO'6ES y1E'9v6s £80°€61S 8E6'LS 1984478 0% 0% 0$ 0s 89T'1$ 9p8'ss [ 09Z'TEV'1S {1} uonesojy 3uejg jeIBua0
LT %199 %L'0T %9°0 %61 %0°0 %00 %00 %00 %10 %Y'0 %00

65Z'L80'TS |9TE'BRS'0SS [LS5'EBT'8S  {VYE'YIVS  GOE'VSEYIS 0% 0s 0% 0% ZZh'29% 02STIES [:33 LEL'TTS9LS paudissy Ajoaag jelol

%00T PLLTTLYYS juejd Juaunesl )

%00t 652'£80'TS WdISAS UOIINGLAISI) LOISSIUSURL]

%02 %L %BL 91¢'860'61S WISAG UDHNGLIISI] UOISSIUISURLY

%07 %08 %0 %0 ay'67Z'01% Suydwing

%LT %ES EV6VLES Ajddns 4o 22inas

AMucisil - Amoiy

HTuan m.uza.h&mw

0z 0

FAEIEAR ARUNION




ATTACHMENT 3

Finance Committee Recommendation, May 20, 2025

-61-



BOARD AGENDA MEMO

DATE: May 20. 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Finance Committee (Williams*/Freeman)

SUBJECT: Consider Recommending the Board Approve an Ordinance for a
Capacity Fee

The Finance Committee met on May 20, 2025 and staff reviewed the draft
Ordinance that would implement a capacity fee.

The Finance Committee recommends the Board Approve an Ordinance that
implements a Capacity Fee.

ﬂgﬂlw/l)wmmﬁ/\ MW

Dlrector Wﬂhams* ﬁrector Freeman

-62-



Prior Committee or Board Action:
Finance Committee Meeting May 20, 2025
Regular Board Meeting May 28, 2025
Special Board Meeting June 2, 2025

Financial Impact: X Yes No

Action Required: _X Ordinance Motion Review
Board Action

Ordinance No. Motion By Second By

Ayes Abstained

Noes Absent

Reagendized Date No Action Taken

-63-



ATTACHMENT 4

Notice of Exemption under the California Environmental Quality Act.

-64-



Print Form

|

Notice of Exemption Appendix E

To: Office of Planning and Research From: (Public Agency): San Benito County Water District

P.O. Box 3044, Room 113 30 Mansfield Road

Sacramento, CA 95812-3044 -
Hollister, CA 95023
County Clerk

County of.  SanBenito (Address)
1601 Lana Way

Hollister, CA 95023

Project Title: Ordinance Establishing Capacity Fees Within the District's Zone 6 Service Area

Project Applicant: San Benito County Water District

Project Location - Specific:
San Benito County - San Benito County Water District Zone 6 (map attached)

Project Location - City:  ollister-San Juan Bautista, CA  pygject | ocation - County: San Benito

Description of Nature, Purpose and Beneficiaries of Project:

The Capacity Fees are a governmental funding mechanism only and are not considered a "project” under the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and are therefore not subject to environmental review. The Capacity
Fees will be used to fund new water supply projects as described in the San Benito Urban Areas Water Supply
and Treatment Master Plan Update that are needed to meet the demands of anticipated future development.

Name of Public Agency Approving Project: S@n Benito County Water District
Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: San Benito County Water District

Exempt Status: (check one):
O Ministerial (Sec. 21080(b)(1); 15268);
O Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(b)(3); 15269(a));
O Emergency Project (Sec. 21080(b}(4); 15269(b)(c));

O Categorical Exemption. State type and section number:
@  Statutory Exemptions. State code number: Pub. Res. Code sec. 21065; 14 Cal Code Regs, 15378, subd. (b)(4)

Reasons why project is exempt:

The capacity fees do not have the potential to result in either a direct physical or a reasonably
foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment and are not considered a "project” under
CEQA. Capacity fees are a government funding mechanism that does not involve any committment by
the District to any specific project which may result in a potentially significant physical impact on the
environment. Public Resources Code 21065; 14 Cal Code Regs, 15378, subd. (a) and subd (b)(4).
Lead Agency

Contact Person; Dana Jacobson Area Code/Telephone/Extension: 831-637-8218

If filed by applicant:
1. Attach certified document of exemption finding.

2. Has a Notice of Exemption been filed by the public agency approving the project? = Yes No

Signature: Date: Tile:  General Manager

» Signed by Lead Agency = Signed By Applicant

Authority cited: Sections 21083 and 21110, Public Resources Code. Date Received for filing at OPR:
Reference: Sections 21108, 21152, and 21152.1, Public Resources Code.

Revised 2011

-65-



SSCOUNTY iy,
S0 Seie i,
S8 .Y

27 "%t

% ¢
:it : j?‘t Io ;‘;
,?’n ‘-;mh e
% % | £
"" 6:'-:"'0 v, 109800 &
2o e s
Wy LLISTER, &
RIS

|

—
Kool (- P
.

-t |

..‘...
-** %o,

FECR LA LTS

“
o

Agenda
[tem
#7

NO MATERIALS



Sy N
Q . v
SSCOUNLY Wy,
20 S e,
& é\ .n. - ..'g"”
=288 PR L LY
Z008 1 (11 33%
;E: W] i s 02
’ : | |" ' ! Y J : O —
%cﬂ %0 I l: FiNE
‘-" .‘-,'{VD V. s, ‘95{2.,« 5

" ’5’ %ernencet® Kol —d
WO <. U
s

Agenda
[tem
# 8

NO MATERIALS



